

## East Bay Innovation Academy

### **Board Meeting**

#### **Date and Time**

Wednesday January 15, 2020 at 8:00 PM PST

#### Location

3400 Malcolm Avenue, Oakland, CA 94605

Agenda	Durnoso	Procentor	Time
	Purpose	Presenter	Time
I. Opening Items			8:00 PM
A. Record Attendance and Guests		Rochelle Benning	1 m
B. Call the Meeting to Order		Rochelle Benning	1 m
C. Approve Minutes from the Last Board Meeting	Approve Minutes	Rochelle Benning	1 m
Approve minutes for Board Meeting on November 14, 2019			
D. Public Comment		Rochelle Benning	15 m
Up to a maximum of 3 minutes comment time per speaker			
II. Governance			8:18 PM
A. Consent Agenda	Vote	Rochelle Benning	5 m
January Consent Agenda Items - EBIA November 2019 Check and Credit Card Register - EBIA December 2019 Check and Credit Card Register - NPS master contracts - SARC			
III. Academic Excellence			8:23 PM
A. February Intercession Status/Instructional Minute Recovery Due to Dire Days	Discuss	Michelle Cho	10 m
Discuss modification to planned second intersession to recover instruction	onal minutes	due to fire day school cl	osures.
B. 2020 - 2021 Staffing/Recruitment Status	Discuss	Michelle Cho	10 m
Brief update of potential staffing needs for the 20-21 school year			
C. Measure N and G1 updates	Discuss	Michelle Cho	5 m
Status update			
D. WASC update	FYI	Michelle Cho	5 m

IV. Finance and Development			8:53 PM
A. Review and Approval of 2018-2019 Final External Audit Report	Vote	Michelle Cho	10 m
Approve audit report findings and the public release of finalized audit re	eport.		
<b>B.</b> Finance Update - YTD December 2019	Vote	Michelle Cho	15 m
C. Cash Update and factoring	Vote	Michelle Cho	5 m
D. 2019 -2020 EBIA Development Updates	FYI	Michelle Cho	5 m
status update			
E. 2019 - 2020 Student Recruitment Update	Discuss	Michelle Cho	5 m
status update			
V. Facility			9:33 PM
A. Facility Update	FYI	Michelle Cho	5 m
Update on facilities			
- Prop 39 Update			
- Prop 51 Update			
- GGA Update			
VI. Other Business			9:38 PM
A. Key Activities and Events	FYI	Rochelle Benning	2 m
Events coming:			
January 20: MLK Holiday February 17: Presidents Day Holiday			
February 21: End of the 2nd Trimester			
February 25 - 28: Winter Intersession			
March 2 - 3: Student/Family PLP Days March 4: First Day 3rd Trimester			
March 30 - April 3: EBIA Spring Break			
May 1: Senior Signing Day May 25: Memorial Day Holiday			
May 29: EBIA High School Graduation			
June 1 - 5: End of Year Intersession			
June 5: 8th Grade Graduation			
B. Confirm Board Meeting Dates through 2019 - 2020	Discuss	Rochelle Benning	10 m
Current board meetings through the end of the school year are school adjustments that we can incorporate into our schedule now?	eduled follows	- do we need to make any	
Wed Feb 19th - 8PM			
Wed Mar 18th - 8PM			
Wed Apr 15th - 8PM Wed May 20th - 8PM			
Wed Jun 10th - 8PM			
C. Public Comment	FYI	Rochelle Benning	10 m
VII. Closing Items			10:00 PM
A. Adjourn Meeting	Vote	Rochelle Benning	1 m
			1 111

## **Cover Sheet**

## Approve Minutes from the Last Board Meeting

I. Opening Items
C. Approve Minutes from the Last Board Meeting
Approve Minutes
Minutes for Board Meeting on November 14, 2019
( /



## East Bay Innovation Academy

## **Minutes**

**Board Meeting** 

Date and Time Thursday November 14, 2019 at 8:00 PM

DRAFT

Location 3400 Malcolm Avenue, Oakland, CA 94605 - Primary Meeting Location

Hello! Our **regular meetings are held at EBIA**, **3400 Malcolm Ave**. Regular meetings are generally held in the months of Jan, Feb, Mar, April, May, June, August, Sept, Oct and Nov and typically start at 8PM.

We welcome everyone to our board meetings! If you <u>require special accommodations</u> (disability related or other) to attend an EBIA board meeting please let us know by emailing us at board@eastbayia.org or by calling (510) 577-9557 and ask to speak to our Office Manager.

**PLEASE NOTE:** (1) all public comments are limited to 3 minutes per speaker; and (2) if the EBIA Board does not reach quorum for any scheduled meeting due to any unforeseen reasons the meeting will be cancelled and rescheduled. Thank you for your patience if this occurs!

**Directors Present** Brad Edgar, Laurie Jacobson Jones, Rochelle Benning

**Directors Absent** Kelly Garcia, Ken Berrick

Guests Present Michelle Cho

#### I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests

#### B. Call the Meeting to Order

Rochelle Benning called a meeting of the board of directors of East Bay Innovation Academy to order on Thursday Nov 14, 2019 @ 8:04 PM at 3400 Malcolm Avenue, Oakland, CA 94605 - Primary Meeting Location.

#### C. Approve Minutes - October Board Meeting

Laurie Jacobson Jones made a motion to approve minutes from the Board Meeting on 10-14-19. Board Meeting on 10-14-19 Brad Edgar seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### D. Public Comment

No public comment provided.

#### II. Governance

#### A. Consent Agenda

NPS Master Contracts were not approved, as they not ready for the board packet. Laurie Jacobson Jones made a motion to to approve the consent agenda. Brad Edgar seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### **B. Employment Contract - EBIA Executive Director**

Brad Edgar made a motion to to approve employment contract with MIchelle Cho. Laurie Jacobson Jones seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### III. Academic Excellence

#### A. First Trimester Academic Report

The first trimester was concluded. Deep dive into analysis of student outcomes for the first portion of the year. Work to design interventions across grade level and subject matter experts, and D42 staff. School leadership is focused hard on closing the achievement gap and differentiating instruction.

#### **B. Intersession Report Out**

Very challenged due to the power outages called by PG&E. Upper school was able to hold it for three days and Lower School got two days.

#### C. 2020 - 2021 Student Recruitment Update

Michelle provided an update on the status.

#### D. Update on WASC, SARC, Measure N and Measure G1

WASC - first self study report is due six weeks before the committee visit in late spring. Project plan is being put in place to ensure the program is ready for evaluation.

SARC - no update yet - the work to populate the template is underway. It's due in February.

Measure N - site team has been established in the Upper School. Work is underway to redesign out pathway - and we have been getting great feedback and guidance. Computer Science and Design Innovation pathway is being re-established.

Measure G1 - application denied - because we already hired the role that was included in the G1 ask.

#### **IV. Finance and Development**

A. YTD Financial Review (Through October 2019)
 Laurie Jacobson Jones made a motion to to approve the first interim financial report for submission to OUSD.
 Brad Edgar seconded the motion.
 The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion.

#### B. 2019 - 2020 EBIA Development Update

Fall Giving drive has closed. We will potentially do another drive in the spring. The grant writer is up and running.

#### V. Facility

A. General facilities update Submitted Prop 39 to OUSD. The new process was very streamlined.

#### **VI. Other Business**

#### A. Key Activities and Events

reviewed events in the board agenda

B. Public Comment no comments provided by the public

#### VII. Closing Items

#### A. Adjourn Meeting

Brad Edgar made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Laurie Jacobson Jones seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** to approve the motion. There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:08 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, Rochelle Benning

## **Cover Sheet**

## **Consent Agenda**

Section: II. Governance

Item: A. Consent Agenda

Vote

Purpose:

Submitted by:

**Related Material:** 

2019\_School\_Accountability\_Report\_Card\_DRAFT\_(CDE)\_East\_Bay\_Innovation\_Academy\_20200113.pdf EBIA Board Check Register December 2019.pdf EBIA Board Check Register November 2019.pdf EBIA and MV 2019-20 MC.pdf East Bay IA 2019-20 MC\_Devereux.pdf MC EBIA 2019 LC.pdf

## East Bay Innovation Academy School Accountability Report Card Reported Using Data from the 2018-19 School Year Published During 2019-20

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC). The SARC contains information about the condition and performance of each California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) all local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC.

- For more information about SARC requirements, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at <a href="https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/">https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/</a>.
- For more information about the LCFF or LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web page at <a href="https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/">https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/</a>.
- For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community members should contact the school principal or the district office.

#### **DataQuest**

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at <u>https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/</u> that contains additional information about this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test data, enrollment, high school graduates, dropouts, course enrollments, staffing, and data regarding English learners).

#### Internet Access

Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access to the Internet at libraries and public locations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use restrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation may be used (depending on availability), the types of software programs available on a workstation, and the ability to print documents.

#### **About This School**

#### School Contact Information (School Year 2019-20)

Entity	Contact Information
School Name	East Bay Innovation Academy
Street	3400 Malcolm Ave.
City, State, Zip	Oakland, CA 94605
Phone Number	5105779557
Principal	Kim Frankel and Zach Powers
Email Address	kim.frankel@eastbayia.org; zpowers@eastbayia.org
Website	www.eastbayia.org
County-District-School (CDS) Code	01-61259-0129932

Entity	Contact Information
District Name	East Bay Innovation Academy
Phone Number	5105779557
Superintendent	Michelle Cho
Email Address	info@eastbayia.org
Website	www.eastbayia.org

#### School Description and Mission Statement (School Year 2019-20)

Our Mission: To prepare a diverse group of students to be successful in college and to be thoughtful, engaged citizens who are leaders and innovators in a 21st century global world.

Our Vision: EBIA is rethinking how schools are run and structured, so that they better reflect the needs of a 21st century world. Most schools have not changed their structure, organization, facilities or instruction in over 50 years. While schools have not changed, our world has, leaving many of our schools, even the "best" ones, behind. EBIA offers a powerful option for Oakland families and educators to build a diverse school that addresses the needs of the 21st century and beyond.

#### Student Enrollment by Grade Level (School Year 2018-19)

Grade Level	Number of Students
Grade 6	113
Grade 7	124
Grade 8	124
Grade 9	87
Grade 10	70
Grade 11	44
Total Enrollment	562

#### Student Enrollment by Group (School Year 2018-19)

Student Group	Percent of Total Enrollment
Black or African American	20.6
American Indian or Alaska Native	0.5
Asian	5.7
Filipino	0.9
Hispanic or Latino	27.6
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander	0.7
White	30.6
Two or More Races	13.3
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged	27
English Learners	5.9
Students with Disabilities	16.2
Foster Youth	0.2
Homeless	

#### A. Conditions of Learning

#### **State Priority: Basic**

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic (Priority 1):

- Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching;
- Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and
- School facilities are maintained in good repair

#### **Teacher Credentials**

Teachers	School 2017-18	School 2018-19	School 2019-20	District 2019-20
With Full Credential	16	22	25	
Without Full Credential	3	6	4	
Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence (with full credential)	2	0		

#### **Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions**

Indicator	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20
Misassignments of Teachers of English Learners		0	0
Total Teacher Misassignments*		0	2
Vacant Teacher Positions	1	0	0

Note: "Misassignments" refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject area, student group, etc. \*Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of Teachers of English Learners.

#### Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Instructional Materials (School Year 2019-20)

#### Year and month in which data were collected: January 2020

As a blended learning school, all EBIA students have access to a Chromebook laptop throughout their day. Through this laptop they are able to access instructional materials on such platforms as Echo, College Prep Math (CPM), ALEKS, Achieve 3000, APEX, Newsela, Edpuzzle and more. EBIA uses these instructional programs in place of traditional textbooks.

Subject	Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of Adoption	From Most Recent Adoption?	Percent Students Lacking Own Assigned Copy
Reading/Language Arts	Achieve3000		
Mathematics	College Prep Math		
Science Laboratory Equipment (grades 9-12)	High school science has access to science labs at Holy Names University, next door.		

#### School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements (Most Recent Year)

Ongoing monitoring/repair at district facility. Upper campus facility is outdated and in need of deferred maintenance; restrooms were updated in 17-18. Driveway partly repaired in 2019.

#### School Facility Good Repair Status (Most Recent Year)

Using the **most recently collected** FIT data (or equivalent), provide the following:

- Determination of repair status for systems listed
- Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair
- The year and month in which the data were collected
- The overall rating

#### Year and month of the most recent FIT report:

System Inspected	Rating	Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned
Systems: Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer	Good	
Interior: Interior Surfaces	Fair	
<b>Cleanliness:</b> Overall Cleanliness, Pest/ Vermin Infestation	Good	
Electrical: Electrical	Good	
<b>Restrooms/Fountains:</b> Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains	Good	District facility structures repaired fall 2018.
<b>Safety:</b> Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials	Fair	
Structural: Structural Damage, Roofs	Fair	Water main leak was fixed in January 2019.
<b>External:</b> Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ Doors/Gates/Fences	Fair	

System Inspected	Rating	Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned
Overall Rating	Fair	

#### **B. Pupil Outcomes**

#### State Priority: Pupil Achievement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement (Priority 4):

- Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which
  includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general education population and the
  California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three
  through eight and grade eleven. Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items
  are aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for
  students with the most significant cognitive disabilities); and
- The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University, or career technical education sequences or programs of study.

#### CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven

#### Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard

Subject	School 2017-18	School 2018-19	District 2017-18	District 2018-19	State 2017-18	State 2018-19
English Language Arts/Literacy (grades 3-8 and 11)	53	56	36	36	50	50
Mathematics (grades 3-8 and 11)	48	49	29	29	38	39

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The "Percent Met or Exceeded" is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments.

#### CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2018-19)

Student Group	Total Enrollment	Number Tested	Percent Tested	Percent Not Tested	Percent Met or Exceeded
All Students	396	383	96.72	3.28	56.43
Male	228	221	96.93	3.07	50.91
Female	168	162	96.43	3.57	63.98
Black or African American	79	79	100.00	0.00	39.24
American Indian or Alaska Native					
Asian	27	26	96.30	3.70	61.54
Filipino					

Student Group	Total Enrollment	Number Tested	Percent Tested	Percent Not Tested	Percent Met or Exceeded
Hispanic or Latino	100	95	95.00	5.00	39.36
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander					
White	126	124	98.41	1.59	75.61
Two or More Races	55	52	94.55	5.45	69.23
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged	106	101	95.28	4.72	40.00
English Learners	34	31	91.18	8.82	16.13
Students with Disabilities	53	47	88.68	11.32	23.91
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services					
Foster Youth					
Homeless					

Note: ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The "Percent Met or Exceeded" is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments.

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores.

#### CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2018-19)

Student Group	Total Enrollment	Number Tested	Percent Tested	Percent Not Tested	Percent Met or Exceeded
All Students	396	385	97.22	2.78	49.09
Male	228	220	96.49	3.51	52.05
Female	168	165	98.21	1.79	45.12
Black or African American	79	79	100.00	0.00	24.05
American Indian or Alaska Native					
Asian	27	26	96.30	3.70	65.38
Filipino					
Hispanic or Latino	100	98	98.00	2.00	28.87
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander					
White	126	123	97.62	2.38	73.17
Two or More Races	55	52	94.55	5.45	60.78
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged	106	103	97.17	2.83	30.10

2018-19 School Accountability Report Card for East Bay Innovation Academy

Student Group	Total Enrollment	Number Tested	Percent Tested	Percent Not Tested	Percent Met or Exceeded
English Learners	34	34	100.00	0.00	12.12
Students with Disabilities	53	47	88.68	11.32	12.77
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services					
Foster Youth					
Homeless					

Note: Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The "Percent Met or Exceeded" is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments.

Note: Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores.

#### CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students Grades Five, Eight, and Ten

#### Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard

Subject	School	School	District	District	State	State
	2017-18	2018-19	2017-18	2018-19	2017-18	2018-19
Science (grades 5, 8 and high school)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

Note: This is a placeholder for the California Science Test (CAST) which was administered operationally during the 2018-19 school year. However, these data are not available for inclusion in the 2018-19 SARC posting due February 1, 2020. These data will be included in the 2019-20 SARC posting due February 1, 2021.

#### **State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes**

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8):

• Pupil outcomes in the subject areas of physical education.

#### California Physical Fitness Test Results (School Year 2018-19)

Grade Level	Percentage of Students	Percentage of Students	Percentage of Students
	Meeting Four of Six	Meeting Five of Six	Meeting Six of Six
	Fitness Standards	Fitness Standards	Fitness Standards
5			

Note: Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

#### C. Engagement

#### **State Priority: Parental Involvement**

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3):

• Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site.

#### **Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2019-20)**

In order to support active family involvement in our school, EBIA welcomes volunteers during Intersession, holds Project Expos where family members are invited to play a role in presentations, holds monthly cafecito meetings where families can talk with administrators, and conducts PLPs -- personalized learning plans led by students where student, family and advisor meet to discuss progress and goals.

#### **State Priority: School Climate**

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6):

- Pupil suspension rates;
- Pupil expulsion rates; and
- Other local measures on the sense of safety.

#### **Suspensions and Expulsions**

Rate	School 2016-17	School 2017-18	School 2018-19	District 2016-17	District 2017-18	District 2018-19	State 2016-17	State 2017-18	State 2018-19
Suspensions	3.4	0.4	5.0	4.1	4.4	4.4	3.6	3.5	3.5
Expulsions	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1

#### School Safety Plan (School Year 2019-20)

Current plan was updated in October 2017 and reviewed by the board and staff in November 2017.

East Bay Innovation Academy has a Comprehensive School Safety Plan that covers the school's policies and expectations regarding the practices that maintain the security and safety of the physical campus, student body, and staff. The plan covers campus safety and security including visitor and adult supervision policies, emergency preparedness and response by disaster type. The plan also addresses student discipline and abuse/harassment prevention.

#### Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary)

Subject	Average	# of	2016-17 # of Classes* Size 23-32	# of	2017-18 Average Class Size	# of	# of		Average	# of	# of	2018-19 # of Classes* Size 33+
English	32	4	4	4	30	1	9	3	27	5	12	
Mathematics					31		10	3	28	2	14	
Science	25	7	5	4	31		10	3	28	2	14	
Social Science	24	8	4	4	32	1	7	5	28	4	12	

\*Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

#### Ratio of Academic Counselors to Pupils (School Year 2018-19)

Title	Ratio
Academic Counselors*	.0

\*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

#### Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2018-19)

Title	Number of FTE* Assigned to School
Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development)	
Library Media Teacher (Librarian)	
Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)	
Psychologist	
Social Worker	
Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist	
Resource Specialist (non-teaching)	4.0

\*One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time.

#### Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries (Fiscal Year 2017-18)

Level	Total Expenditures Per Pupil	Expenditures Per Pupil (Restricted)	Expenditures Per Pupil (Unrestricted)	Average Teacher Salary
School Site	\$10,762	\$2,465	\$8,297	\$66,629
District	N/A	N/A		\$63,149.00
Percent Difference - School Site and District	N/A	N/A		5.4
State	N/A	N/A	\$7,506.64	\$82,403.00
Percent Difference - School Site and State	N/A	N/A	10.0	-21.2

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

The California Department of Education issued guidance to LEAs on August 1, 2018, regarding how to calculate school-level per-pupil expenditures that will be reported on 2018-19 report cards.

#### Types of Services Funded (Fiscal Year 2018-19)

Special Education services, academic support/tutoring services

#### **Teacher and Administrative Salaries (Fiscal Year 2017-18)**

Category	District Amount	State Average For Districts In Same Category
Beginning Teacher Salary	\$46,570	\$48,612
Mid-Range Teacher Salary	\$64,124	\$74,676
Highest Teacher Salary	\$83,724	\$99,791
Average Principal Salary (Elementary)	\$111,786	\$125,830
Average Principal Salary (Middle)	\$117,636	\$131,167

Category	District Amount	State Average For Districts In Same Category
Average Principal Salary (High)	\$120,003	\$144,822
Superintendent Salary	\$280,000	\$275,796
Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries	30%	34%
Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries	10%	5%

For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE Certificated Salaries & Benefits web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/.

#### **Professional Development (Most Recent Three Years)**

Measure	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20
Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement	21	21	21

Across the schoolyear, EBIA's teachers receive up to 23 days of professional development, in addition to individual and team coaching and evaluation. Teachers have two full weeks of professional development before the start of the schoolyear, one full week at the end of our first trimester in October, another full week at the end of our second trimester in February, and another full day at the end of the schoolyear. During these professional development sessions, our administrative team onboards staff to our instructional model, reviews student performance and growth data, sets school priorities and trains teachers in new techniques related to school culture and climate and instructional practice.

Further, in an effort to create a professional culture that supports unit member growth, EBIA implements a consistent evaluation process to advance the improvement of the professional skills of all teachers and thereby, advancing improvement of the quality of education for all students of EBIA. EBIA's expectation is that teachers will set goals that connect classroom teaching strategies and student learning, with an emphasis on continued improvement of instructional practice. The purpose of the Personalized Educator Plan (PEP) is the support continuous improvement and innovation of the instructional program at EBIA. EBIA encourages teachers to reflect on their classroom practice, set realistic goals for the year and collaborate with colleagues and administrators to design engaging and challenging activities for students. Teachers are supported in this process through thrice yearly formal observations, biweekly coaching meetings with their supervisors and weekly team (grade and department) meetings.

#### **Check Register**

EBIA

December 2019



Grand Total 147,727.70

					Check
Vendor	Check Number	Void	Date	Description	Amount
Mountain Valley Child & Family Services		Voided	12/16/2019	Client EASTBAY, JW, IN000030585	(16,663.20)
AALRR Attorneys at Law	6334		12/6/2019	Client No. 006340	11,937.64
Beehively	6335		12/6/2019	Inv 2019-0363	37.74
				Bonsai Foundational IT services, quarterly	
Bonsai	6336		12/6/2019	cost (minus credit from summer install)	4,367.11
				Science Olympiad: registration, science kits,	
Michelle Fitts	6337		12/6/2019	materials	1,238.60
Darius Foster	6338			Football jersey screenprinting supplies	80.21
Golden Gate Academy	6339		12/6/2019	Orkin 9126349trap replacement	50.00
Kaiser Foundation Health Plan	6340		12/6/2019	January 2020 healthcare plan benefit	28,994.41
Kwan, Ethan (reimb)	6341			Volunteer LiveScan	67.00
Lina's Janitorial Services	6342		12/6/2019	Janitorial services 11/1-11/30	6,000.00
Denise Sainer	6343			Travel expense Oct 2019 BF	808.44
STARLINE SUPPLY COMPANY	6344		12/6/2019		378.75
Swing Education	6345			Sub coverage LS 10/26-11/1	800.00
Waste Management Of Alameda County	6346		12/6/2019	Recycle dumpster November service	163.04
Waste Management	6347			Customer ID 15-00043-73002	1,394.69
<u>AT &amp; T</u>	6348			BAN 9391066883	673.50
AT&T	6349		12/16/2019	BAN 9391062435	673.50
Berkeley Rep School of Theatre	6350		12/16/2019	EBIA order no 1932726	4,399.00
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP	6351		12/16/2019	Account Number 213-115060	2,500.00
East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.	6352		12/16/2019	Inv 1154	12,005.00
				State reporting and attendance reporting	
Edtec	6353		12/16/2019	support Oct 2019	300.00
Law Offices of Young, Minney & Corr, LLP	6354		12/16/2019	Inv #62683	972.80
Megan Reed	6355			EBIA Inv# 001	1,760.00
Mountain Valley Child & Family Services	6356		12/16/2019	Client EASTBAY, JW, IN000030585	16,663.20
Office Depot	6357		12/16/2019	US copy paper, qty 4	467.61
Overgrad	6358		12/16/2019	Overgrad Pro student licenses, 240 qty	960.00
Revolution Foods, Inc.	6359		12/16/2019	customer #C001339	7,656.99
Swing Education	6360		12/16/2019	Sub coverage LS 11/1-11/8	2,100.00
Vision Service Plan - (CA)	6361		12/16/2019	Client ID 30050552	512.64
Elizabeth Walser	6362		12/16/2019	Supervision of School Psychiatrist May thru	1,100.00
Achieve3000	6363		12/20/2019	Inv #43446	16,475.00

Note: Multiple expenses or "Itemized/Invoice Amounts" may be paid by one check. The total "Check Amount" will appear for each "Itemized/Invoice Amount" paid by the check.

#### East Bay Innovation Academy - Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday January 15, 2020 at 8:00 PM Page 2 of 2

					Check
Vendor	Check Number	Void	Date	Description	Amount
BambooHR	6364		12/20/2019	Customer 25902	281.50
				Travel expenses: 2 Southwest flights,	
Michelle Cho	6365		12/20/2019	Parking, Uber rides	568.52
Devereux	6366		12/20/2019	Account Number 348720	8,319.00
Edtec	6367		12/20/2019	Back office service, Nov 2019	5,250.00
Christine Mandilag	6368		12/20/2019	Soccer balls for PE	224.39
Mountain Valley Child & Family Services	6369		12/20/2019	Client EASTBAY, JW, IN000030690	17,250.30
Play-Well TEKnologies	6370		12/20/2019	Inv DB19262	2,900.00
Zach Powers	6371		12/20/2019	Student of the Month 4 dozen donuts	41.00
Ready Refresh	6372		12/20/2019	Account Number: 0035832435	46.47
RingCentral Inc.	6373		12/20/2019	Customer User ID: 1184099019	737.13
Swing Education	6374		12/20/2019	INV00141235	3,100.00
Edmund Zander	6375		12/20/2019	Mileage reimbursement- 10/16, 10/17,	135.72

**Check Register** 



**EBIA** 

November 2019 Grand Total 164,998.58

Vendor         Check Number         Void         Date         Description         Amount           CDW Government         6286         11/6/2019         Customer Number 12218286         815.52           Aylin Delacruz         6287         11/6/2019         Livescan for CTC to get STSP         79.00           Kenneth Griswa         6288         11/6/2019         Mular Intersession program         1,200.00           Kenneth Griswa         6289         11/6/2019         Project         231.34           Matt Irvin         6290         11/6/2019         Making Comics' intersession         1.200.00           A CHEIM SCHOOL, INC         6291         11/6/2019         Assign 2019         6.164.80           Northwest Evaluation Association         6292         11/6/2019         Acount No: 4052865603-2         2.529.64           Revolution Foods, Inc.         6293         11/6/2019         Orden No 3050552         5.12.64           Waste Management (CA)         6296         11/6/2019         OPS CHARTER - East Bay Innovation Academy         163.04           Vaste Management         6297         11/6/2019         Intersession         1.394.69           Zion Carcia         6298         11/6/2019         Intersession         1.394.69           AT C         <						Check
Aylin Delacruz         6287         11/6/2019         Livescan for CTC to get STSP         79.00           Kenneth Griswa         6288         11/6/2019         Mural Art intersession program         1.200.00           Kenneth Griswa         6289         11/6/2019         Project         231.34           Matt Itvin         6290         11/6/2019         Stading Comics' intersession         1.200.00           LA CHEIM SCHOOL, INC         6291         11/6/2019         ESAugust2019         6.164.80           Northwest Evaluation Association         6292         11/6/2019         Partner ID         8.000.00           PG&E         6293         11/6/2019         Account No: 4052865603.2         2.529.64           Revolution Foods, Inc.         6295         11/6/2019         Intersession "Enterpreneurship' class         1.200.00           Waste Management         6295         11/6/2019         Interneurship' class         1.200.00           AT T         6296         11/6/2019         Interneurship' class         1.200.00           AT & CAP         6296         11/6/2019         Interneurship' class         1.200.00           AT & CAP         6299         11/15/2019         BAN 391062433         673.50           AT & CAP         6300         11/15/	Vendor	Check Number	Void	Date	Description	Amount
Kenneth Griswa         6288         11/6/2019         Mural Art intersession program         1,200.00           Menteh Griswa         6289         11/6/2019         project         231.34           Matt Ivin         6290         11/6/2019         Project         231.34           Matt Ivin         6290         11/6/2019         EXAugust2019         6.164.80           Northwest Evaluation Association         6292         11/6/2019         Patner iD         8.000.00           PG&E         6293         11/6/2019         Account No: 4052865603-2         2.529.64           Revolution Foods, Inc.         6294         11/6/2019         Account No: 4052865603-2         2.529.64           Waste Management         6295         11/6/2019         Cleiner ID 30050552         512.64           Waste Management         6297         11/6/2019         Customer ID 15-00043-73002         1.394.69           Zion Garcia         6298         11/6/2019         Intersession "Entrepreneurship' class         1.200.00           AT & T         6290         11/15/2019         Intersession "Entrepreneurship' class         673.50           Zion Garcia         6298         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         673.50           Griftin LarsonAllen LLP         6301	CDW Government	6286		11/6/2019	Customer Number 12218286	815.52
materials for Fall 2019 Mural Arts intersession           Matt Ivin         6289         11/6/2019         project         231.34           Matt Ivin         6290         11/6/2019         Making Comics' intersession         1,200.00           LA CHEIM SCHOOL, INC         6291         11/6/2019         Partner ID         8,000.00           PG&E         6293         11/6/2019         Partner ID         8,000.00           PG&E         6293         11/6/2019         Inviewer ID         8,000.00           Vision Service Plan - (CA)         6295         11/6/2019         Inviewer ID         300.40           Vision Service Plan - (CA)         6295         11/6/2019         Client ID 30050552         512.64           Waste Management Of Alameda County         6296         11/6/2019         Ocs CHARTER - East Bay Innovation Academy         163.04           Vision Service Plan - (CA)         6297         11/6/2019         Intersession Entrepneurship' class         1,200.00           AT & T         6299         11/15/2019         Intersession Entrepneurship' class         1,200.00           AT& T         6299         11/15/2019         BAN 3931062435         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019         BAN 3931062435         673.50 <t< td=""><td>Aylin Delacruz</td><td>6287</td><td></td><td>11/6/2019</td><td>Livescan for CTC to get STSP</td><td>79.00</td></t<>	Aylin Delacruz	6287		11/6/2019	Livescan for CTC to get STSP	79.00
Kenneth Griswa         6289         11/6/2019         project         231.34           Matt Irvin         6290         11/6/2019         Making Comics' intersession         1.200.00           LA CHEIM SCHOOL, INC         6291         11/6/2019         ESAugust2019         6.164.80           Northwest Evaluation Association         6292         11/6/2019         Partner ID         8,000.00           PG&E         6293         11/6/2019         Partner ID         8,000.00           PG&E         6293         11/6/2019         Avagova         8,740.84           Vision Service Plan - (CA)         6295         11/6/2019         ODS CHARTER - East Bay Innovation Academy         163.04           Waste Management         6296         11/6/2019         Customer ID 15-00043-73002         1.394.69           Zion Garcia         6298         11/6/2019         Intersession Tentrepreneurship' class         1.200.00           AT & T         6299         11/15/2019         Intersession Tentrepreneurship' class         1.200.00           AT & T         6300         11/15/2019         BAN 3931062435         673.50           Garcia         6303         11/15/2019         BAN 3931062435         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019	Kenneth Griswa	6288		11/6/2019		1,200.00
Matt Irvin         6290         11/6/2019         Making Comics' intersession         1,200.00           LA CHEIM SCHOL, INC         6291         11/6/2019         EXAugust2019         6,164.80           Northwest Evaluation Association         6292         11/6/2019         Partner ID         8,000.00           PG&E         6293         11/6/2019         Account No: 4052865603-2         2,529.64           Revolution Foods, Inc.         6294         11/6/2019         Inv 439749         8,740.84           Vision Service Plan - (CA)         6295         11/6/2019         OES CHARTER - East Bay Innovation Academy         163.04           Waste Management Of Alameda County         6296         11/6/2019         Oustomer ID 15-00043-73002         1,394.69           Zion Garcia         6298         11/6/2019         Lustomer ID 15-0043-73002         1,394.69           Zion Garcia         6299         11/15/2019         Interression Timepreneurship' class         1,200.00           AT & T         6299         11/15/2019         Interression Charterpreneurship' class         673.50           GFI         6301         11/15/2019         AN 9391062435         673.50           OFI         6302         11/15/2019         Acount Number 348720         16,850.70           Ea					materials for Fall 2019 Mural Arts intersession	
LA CHEIM SCHOOL, INC         6291         11/6/2019         ESAugust2019         6,164.80           Northwest Evaluation Association         6292         11/6/2019         Partner ID         8,000.00           PG&E         6293         11/6/2019         Partner ID         8,000.00           PG&E         6293         11/6/2019         Inv 439749         8,740.84           Vision Service Plan - (CA)         6295         11/6/2019         OPS CHARTER - East Bay Innovation Academy         153.04           Waste Management         6297         11/6/2019         OPS CHARTER - East Bay Innovation Academy         163.04           Vaste Management         6298         11/6/2019         Customer ID 15-00043-73002         1,394.69           Zin Garcia         6298         11/6/2019         Intersession 'Entrepreneurship' class         1,200.00           AT & T         6300         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           CilitonLarsonAllen LLP         6302         11/15/2019         Rodit Measure G1         6,500.00           Devereux         6306         11/15/2019         Account Number 348720         16,250.70           East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc. <t< td=""><td>Kenneth Griswa</td><td>6289</td><td></td><td>11/6/2019</td><td></td><td>231.34</td></t<>	Kenneth Griswa	6289		11/6/2019		231.34
Northwest Evaluation Association         6292         11/6/2019         Partner ID         8,000.00           PG&E         6293         11/6/2019         Account No: 4052865603-2         2,529.64           Hevolution Foods, Inc.         6294         11/6/2019         Inv 439749         8,740.84           Vision Service Plan - (CA)         6295         11/6/2019         OPS CHARTER - East Bay Innovation Academy         163.04           Waste Management Of Alameda County         6296         11/6/2019         OUS CHARTER - East Bay Innovation Academy         163.04           Waste Management         6297         11/6/2019         Customer ID 15-00043-73002         1,394.69           Zion Garcia         6298         11/6/2019         Intersession 'Entrepreneurship' class         1,200.00           AT & T         6299         11/15/2019         Intersession 'Entrepreneurship' class         673.50           CFI         6300         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           Devereux         6303         11/15/2019         Account Number 348720         16,250.70           East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.         6304         11/15/2019         Invt 1144         8,974.00		6290		11/6/2019	'Making Comics' intersession	1,200.00
PG&E         6293         11/6/2019         Account No: 4052865603-2         2,529.64           Revolution Foods, Inc.         6294         11/6/2019         Inv 439749         8,740.84           Vision Service Plan - (CA)         6295         11/6/2019         Olient ID 30050552         512.64           Waste Management Of Alameda County         6296         11/6/2019         OList ID 30050552         13.04           Waste Management         6297         11/6/2019         Oustomer ID 15-00043-73002         1,394.69           Zion Garcia         6298         11/6/2019         Interrepreneurship' class         1,200.00           AT & T         6299         11/15/2019         Interrepreneurship' class         1,200.00           AT&T         6300         11/15/2019         Interrepreneurship' class         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019         Audit and Measure G1         6,500.00           Devereux         6303         11/15/2019         Account Number 348720         16,250.70           East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.         6304         11/15/2019         Interresesion 2019         2,400.00           Care mowered         6306         11						
Revolution Foods, Inc.         6294         11/6/2019         Inv 439749         8,740.84           Vision Service Plan - (CA)         6295         11/6/2019         Client ID 30050552         512.64           Waste Management Of Alameda County         6296         11/6/2019         Obstance         11/6/2019         Client ID 30050552         13.94.69           Zion Garcia         6297         11/6/2019         Intersession 'Entrepreneurship' class         1,200.00           AT & T         6299         11/15/2019         Intersession 'Entrepreneurship' class         1,200.00           AT & T         6299         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           AT & T         6300         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           CliftonLarsonAllen LLP         6302         11/15/2019         Audit and Measure G1         6,500.00           Devereux         6303         11/15/2019         Audit and Measure G1         6,500.00         6,88.28           Caffec         6305         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,700.00         6,255.70           East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.         6306         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019	Northwest Evaluation Association	6292		11/6/2019	Partner ID	8,000.00
Vision Service Plan - (CA)         6295         11/6/2019         Client ID 30050552         512.64           Waste Management Of Alameda County         6296         11/6/2019         OPS CHARTER - East Bay Innovation Academy         163.04           Waste Management         6297         11/6/2019         Customer ID 15-00043-73002         1,394.69           Zion Garcia         6298         11/6/2019         Intersession 'Entrepreneurship' class         1,200.00           AT & T         6299         11/15/2019         Intersession 'Entrepreneurship' class         1,200.00           AT & T         6300         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         650.00           Devereux         6302         11/15/2019         BAC and Measure G1         6,500.00           Devereux         6303         11/15/2019         Account Number 348720         16,250.70           East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.         6304         11/15/2019         Inv 144         8,974.00           Copoeira and World Drumming, LS Fall         Graffiti and Hip Hop Culture classLS Fall         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Customer ID: 000709549	PG&E	6293		11/6/2019	Account No: 4052865603-2	2,529.64
Waste Management Of Alameda County         6296         11/6/2019         OPS CHARTER - East Bay Innovation Academy         163.04           Waste Management         6297         11/6/2019         Customer ID 15-00043-73002         1,394.69           Zion Garcia         6298         11/6/2019         Intersession 'Entrepreneurship' class         1,200.00           AT & T         6299         11/15/2019         Internent Mountain Blvd 9/16-10/15/19         673.50           AT&T         6300         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019         Addit and Measure G1         6,500.00           Devereux         6303         11/15/2019         Acti and Measure G1         6,500.00           East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.         6304         11/15/2019         Acti and Measure G1         6,037.50           Copoeira and World Drumming, LS Fall         Get Empowered         6306         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,700.00           Kaster Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,700.00           Kaster Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,700.00           Kaster Foundation Health Plan         6309         11/15/2019	Revolution Foods, Inc.	6294		11/6/2019	Inv 439749	8,740.84
Waste Management         6297         11/6/2019         Customer ID 15-00043-73002         1,394.69           Zion Garcia         6298         11/6/2019         Intersession 'Entrepreneurship' class         1,200.00           AT & T         6299         11/15/2019         Internet Mountain Blvd 9/16-10/15/19         673.50           AT & T         6300         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         6500.00           Devereux         6302         11/15/2019         Audit and Measure G1         6,500.00           Devereux         6303         11/15/2019         Auctount Number 348720         16,250.70           East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.         6304         11/15/2019         Inv 1144         8,974.00           EdTec         6305         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,700.00           Get Empowered         6306         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,700.00           HipHopForChange, Inc         6307         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Customer ID: 000709549-0000         27,526.55           Notes Music Academy         6310 <td>Vision Service Plan - (CA)</td> <td>6295</td> <td></td> <td>11/6/2019</td> <td>Client ID 30050552</td> <td>512.64</td>	Vision Service Plan - (CA)	6295		11/6/2019	Client ID 30050552	512.64
Zion Garcia         6298         11/6/2019         Intersession 'Entrepreneurship' class         1,200.00           AT & T         6299         11/15/2019         Internet Mountain Blvd 9/16-10/15/19         673.50           AT&T         6300         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019         BUA Upper School         688.28           CliftonLarsonAllen LLP         6302         11/15/2019         Account Number 348720         16,550.70           East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.         6304         11/15/2019         Inversession 2019         6,037.50           Clet C         6305         11/15/2019         Inversession 2019         2,700.00           EdTec         6306         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,700.00           Get Empowered         6307         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Customer ID: 000709549-0000         27,526.55           Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6310         11/15/2019         Acce Kids Golf, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Office Depot         6311         11/15/2019         Acce Kids Golf 744         172.06 <t< td=""><td>Waste Management Of Alameda County</td><td>6296</td><td></td><td>11/6/2019</td><td>OPS CHARTER - East Bay Innovation Academy</td><td>163.04</td></t<>	Waste Management Of Alameda County	6296		11/6/2019	OPS CHARTER - East Bay Innovation Academy	163.04
AT & T         6299         11/15/2019         Internet Mountain Blvd 9/16-10/15/19         673.50           AT & T         6300         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019         BBIA Upper School         688.28           CliftonLarsonAllen LLP         6302         11/15/2019         Audit and Measure G1         6,500.00           Devereux         6303         11/15/2019         Accunt Number 348720         16,250.70           East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.         6304         11/15/2019         Inv 1144         8,974.00           EdTec         6305         11/15/2019         Inv 1144         8,974.00           Get Empowered         6306         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,700.00           Graffiti and Hip Hop Culture classLS Fall         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6310         11/15/2019         Dace Kids Golf, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Office Depot         6311	Waste Management	6297		11/6/2019	Customer ID 15-00043-73002	1,394.69
AT&T         6300         11/15/2019         BAN 9391062435         673.50           CFI         6301         11/15/2019         EBIA Upper School         688.28           CliftonLarsonAllen LLP         6302         11/15/2019         Audit and Measure G1         6.500.00           Devereux         6303         11/15/2019         Account Number 348720         16,250.00           East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.         6304         11/15/2019         Nort Number 348720         6,037.50           EdTec         6305         11/15/2019         Oct 2019 monthly back office service         6,037.50           Copoeira and World Drumming, LS Fall         Copoeira and World Drumming, LS Fall         2,700.00           Get Empowered         6306         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Customer ID: 000709549-0000         27,526.55           Notes Music Academy         6309         11/15/2019         Drum Class, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6310         11/15/2019         Account Number 16610744         172.06           Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Account Number 16610744         172.06      <	Zion Garcia	6298		11/6/2019	Intersession 'Entrepreneurship' class	1,200.00
CFI         6301         11/15/2019         EBIA Upper School         688.28           CliftonLarsonAllen LLP         6302         11/15/2019         Audit and Measure G1         6,500.00           Devereux         6303         11/15/2019         Account Number 348720         16,250.70           East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.         6304         11/15/2019         Inv 1144         8,974.00           EdTec         6305         11/15/2019         Oct 2019         monthly back office service         6,037.50           Copoeira and World Drumming, LS Fall         Copoeira and Hip Hop Culture classLS Fall         2,700.00           HipHopForChange, Inc         6307         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Customer ID: 000709549-0000         27,526.55           Notes Music Academy         6309         11/15/2019         Drum Class, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6311         11/15/2019         Account Number 16610744         172.06           Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Account Number 16610744         172.06           Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Beamaking class, U	AT & T	6299		11/15/2019	Internet Mountain Blvd 9/16-10/15/19	673.50
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP         6302         11/15/2019         Audit and Measure G1         6,500.00           Devereux         6303         11/15/2019         Account Number 348720         16,250.70           East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.         6304         11/15/2019         Inv 144         8,974.00           EdTec         6305         11/15/2019         Inv 144         8,974.00           Get Empowered         6306         11/15/2019         Oct 2019 monthly back office service         6,037.50           Get Empowered         6306         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,700.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Customer ID: 000709549-0000         27,526.55           Notes Music Academy         6309         11/15/2019         Drum Class, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6310         11/15/2019         Acc Kids Golf, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,200.00           Office Depot         6311         11/15/2019         Acc with Number 16610744         172.06           Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Beatmaking class	AT&T	6300		11/15/2019	BAN 9391062435	673.50
Devereux         6303         11/15/2019         Account Number 348720         16,250.70           East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.         6304         11/15/2019         Inv 1144         8,974.00           EdTec         6305         11/15/2019         Oct 2019 monthly back office service         6,037.50           Copoeira and World Drumming, LS Fall         Copoeira and World Drumming, LS Fall         2,700.00           Get Empowered         6306         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,700.00           HipHopForChange, Inc         6307         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Customer ID: 000709549-0000         27,526.55           Notes Music Academy         6309         11/15/2019         Drum Class, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6310         11/15/2019         Account Number 16610744         172.06           Office Depot         6311         11/15/2019         Beatmaking class, US Intersession Fall 2019         1,200.00           Skateboarding and Mindfullnes, US and LS Fall         Skateboarding and Mindfullnes, US and LS Fall         2,400.00           Swing Education         6313         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019	CFI	6301		11/15/2019	EBIA Upper School	688.28
East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.         6304         11/15/2019         Inv 1144         8,974.00           EdTec         6305         11/15/2019         Oct 2019 monthly back office service         6,037.50           Copoeira and World Drumming, LS Fall           Get Empowered         6306         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,700.00           Graffiti and Hip Hop Culture classLS Fall           HipHopForChange, Inc         6307         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Customer ID: 000709549-0000         27,526.55           Notes Music Academy         6310         11/15/2019         Drum Class, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6310         11/15/2019         Ace Kids Golf, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Office Depot         6311         11/15/2019         Ace Kids Golf Program         6312         11/15/2019         Ace Kids Golf Program         172.06           Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Beatmaking class, US Intersession Fall 2019         1,200.00           Skateboarding and Mindfullnes, US and LS Fall         Rob Skate Academy         6313         11/15/2019	CliftonLarsonAllen LLP	6302		11/15/2019	Audit and Measure G1	6,500.00
EdTec         6305         11/15/2019         Oct 2019 monthly back office service         6,037.50           Get Empowered         6306         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,700.00           Graffiti and Hip Hop Culture classLS Fall         Graffiti and Hip Hop Culture classLS Fall         2,400.00           HipHopForChange, Inc         6307         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Customer ID: 000709549-0000         27,526.55           Notes Music Academy         6309         11/15/2019         Drum Class, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6310         11/15/2019         Acce Kids Golf, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Office Depot         6311         11/15/2019         Account Number 16610744         172.06           Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Beatmaking class, US Intersession Fall 2019         1,200.00           Skate Academy         6313         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Swing Education         6314         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00	Devereux	6303		11/15/2019	Account Number 348720	16,250.70
Copoeira and World Drumming, LS FallGet Empowered630611/15/2019Intersession 20192,700.00Graffiti and Hip Hop Culture classLS FallHipHopForChange, Inc630711/15/2019Intersession 20192,400.00Kaiser Foundation Health Plan630811/15/2019Customer ID: 000709549-000027,526.55Notes Music Academy630911/15/2019Drum Class, LS Fall Intersession 20191,500.00Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program631011/15/2019Ace Kids Golf, LS Fall Intersession 20191,500.00Office Depot631111/15/2019Account Number 16610744172.06Carlos Marlon Richardson631211/15/2019Beatmaking class, US Intersession Fall 20191,200.00Skate Academy631311/15/2019Intersession 20192,400.00Swing Education631411/15/2019Intersession 20192,400.00	East Bay Speech Pathology, Inc.	6304		11/15/2019	Inv 1144	8,974.00
Get Empowered         6306         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,700.00           Graffiti and Hip Hop Culture classLS Fall         Graffiti and Hip Hop Culture classLS Fall         2,400.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Customer ID: 000709549-0000         27,526.55           Notes Music Academy         6309         11/15/2019         Drum Class, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6310         11/15/2019         Ace Kids Golf, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Office Depot         6311         11/15/2019         Account Number 16610744         172.06           Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Beatmaking class, US Intersession Fall 2019         1,200.00           Skate Academy         6313         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Swing Education         6314         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00	EdTec	6305		11/15/2019	Oct 2019 monthly back office service	6,037.50
Graffiti and Hip Hop Culture classLS Fall           HipHopForChange, Inc         6307         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Customer ID: 000709549-0000         27,526.55           Notes Music Academy         6309         11/15/2019         Drum Class, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6310         11/15/2019         Ace Kids Golf, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Office Depot         6311         11/15/2019         Account Number 16610744         172.06           Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Beatmaking class, US Intersession Fall 2019         1,200.00           Skate Academy         6313         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Swing Education         6314         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00					Copoeira and World Drumming, LS Fall	
HipHopForChange, Inc         6307         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Customer ID: 000709549-0000         27,526.55           Notes Music Academy         6309         11/15/2019         Drum Class, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6310         11/15/2019         Ace Kids Golf, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Office Depot         6311         11/15/2019         Account Number 16610744         172.06           Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Beatmaking class, US Intersession Fall 2019         1,200.00           Rob Skate Academy         6313         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Swing Education         6314         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00	Get Empowered	6306		11/15/2019	Intersession 2019	2,700.00
Kaiser Foundation Health Plan         6308         11/15/2019         Customer ID: 000709549-0000         27,526.55           Notes Music Academy         6309         11/15/2019         Drum Class, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6310         11/15/2019         Ace Kids Golf, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Office Depot         6311         11/15/2019         Account Number 16610744         172.06           Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Beatmaking class, US Intersession Fall 2019         1,200.00           Rob Skate Academy         6313         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Swing Education         6314         11/15/2019         INV00129548         3,800.00					Graffiti and Hip Hop Culture classLS Fall	
Notes Music Academy         6309         11/15/2019         Drum Class, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6310         11/15/2019         Ace Kids Golf, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Office Depot         6311         11/15/2019         Account Number 16610744         172.06           Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Beatmaking class, US Intersession Fall 2019         1,200.00           Skateboarding and Mindfullnes, US and LS Fall           Rob Skate Academy         6313         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Swing Education         6314         11/15/2019         INV00129548         3,800.00	HipHopForChange, Inc	6307		11/15/2019	Intersession 2019	2,400.00
Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program         6310         11/15/2019         Ace Kids Golf, LS Fall Intersession 2019         1,500.00           Office Depot         6311         11/15/2019         Account Number 16610744         172.06           Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Beatmaking class, US Intersession Fall 2019         1,200.00           Skateboarding and Mindfullnes, US and LS Fall         6313         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Swing Education         6314         11/15/2019         INV00129548         3,800.00	Kaiser Foundation Health Plan	6308		11/15/2019	Customer ID: 000709549-0000	27,526.55
Office Depot         6311         11/15/2019         Account Number 16610744         172.06           Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Beatmaking class, US Intersession Fall 2019         1,200.00           Skateboarding and Mindfullnes, US and LS Fall         6313         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Swing Education         6314         11/15/2019         INV00129548         3,800.00	Notes Music Academy	6309		11/15/2019	Drum Class, LS Fall Intersession 2019	1,500.00
Carlos Marlon Richardson         6312         11/15/2019         Beatmaking class, US Intersession Fall 2019         1,200.00           Skateboarding and Mindfullnes, US and LS Fall         Skateboarding and Mindfullnes, US and LS Fall         2,400.00           Swing Education         6314         11/15/2019         INV00129548         3,800.00	Friends of Oakland Ace Kids Golf Program	6310		11/15/2019	Ace Kids Golf, LS Fall Intersession 2019	1,500.00
Skateboarding and Mindfullnes, US and LS Fall           Rob Skate Academy         6313         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Swing Education         6314         11/15/2019         INV00129548         3,800.00	Office Depot	6311		11/15/2019	Account Number 16610744	172.06
Skateboarding and Mindfullnes, US and LS Fall           Rob Skate Academy         6313         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Swing Education         6314         11/15/2019         INV00129548         3,800.00	Carlos Marlon Richardson	6312		11/15/2019	Beatmaking class, US Intersession Fall 2019	1,200.00
Rob Skate Academy         6313         11/15/2019         Intersession 2019         2,400.00           Swing Education         6314         11/15/2019         INV00129548         3,800.00					Skateboarding and Mindfullnes, US and LS Fall	
Swing Education         6314         11/15/2019         INV00129548         3,800.00	Rob Skate Academy	6313		11/15/2019	Intersession 2019	2,400.00
Teachers on Reserve         6315         11/15/2019         Inv 84386         590.80	Swing Education	6314		11/15/2019	INV00129548	3,800.00
	Teachers on Reserve	6315		11/15/2019	Inv 84386	590.80

Note: Multiple expenses or "Itemized/Invoice Amounts" may be paid by one check. The total "Check Amount" will appear for each "Itemized/Invoice Amount" paid by the check.

#### East Bay Innovation Academy - Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday January 15, 2020 at 8:00 PM Page 2 of 2

					Check
Vendor	Check Number	Void	Date	Description	Amount
				Special intersession ride program, LS Fall 2019,	
Trips For Kids Marin	6316		11/15/2019	10/31+11/1	300.00
Wells Fargo	6317		11/15/2019	Periodic finance charge	300.50
WeVideo Inc.	6318		11/15/2019	PO 3432	539.00
BambooHR	6319		11/25/2019	Customer 25902	281.50
Beehively	6320		11/25/2019	EBIA inv 2019-0630	720.00
CoPower	6321		11/25/2019	Dental plan Dec 2019	2,919.55
EBMUD	6322		11/25/2019	Account Number 49867400001	2,956.78
EdTec	6323		11/25/2019	Inv 17458	225.00
				Monthly rent of Golden Gate Academy campus 19-	
Golden Gate Academy	6324		11/25/2019	20	26,745.00
K12 Health	6325		11/25/2019	Inv 11347	440.00
LA CHEIM SCHOOL, INC	6326		11/25/2019	Customer ID EBIA	4,194.00
Law Offices of Young, Minney & Corr, LLP	6327		11/25/2019	Inv # 62274	643.50
Office Depot	6328		11/25/2019	copy paper	451.05
PG&E	6329		11/25/2019	Account No: 4052865603-2	2,381.63
Ready Refresh	6330		11/25/2019	Account Number: 0035832427	40.92
Ready Refresh	6331		11/25/2019	Account Number: 0035832435	104.62
RingCentral Inc.	6332		11/25/2019	Customer User ID: 1184099019	737.13
Swing Education	6333		11/25/2019	INV00132815	5,200.00

# Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School/Agency Services

## Master Contract

## 2019-2020

LEA	
Contract Year	2019-2020
	ıblic School ıblic Agency
Type of Contract:	
Master Contract for fiscal ye throughout the term of this	ear with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be appro contract.
Agreement (ISA) into the te student. Interim Contract: an extensi The sole purpose of this Int	erms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a si on of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and ra
Agreement (ISA) into the te student. Interim Contract: an extensi The sole purpose of this Int year's rates for 90 days at th	erms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a sin on of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and ra erim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the p e sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:
Agreement (ISA) into the te student. Interim Contract: an extensi The sole purpose of this Int year's rates for 90 days at th When this section is included as	part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above sho
Agreement (ISA) into the te student. Interim Contract: an extensi The sole purpose of this Int year's rates for 90 days at th When this section is included as	erms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a sin on of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and ra erim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the p e sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:
Agreement (ISA) into the te student. Interim Contract: an extensi The sole purpose of this Int year's rates for 90 days at th When this section is included as	erms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a sin on of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and ra erim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the p e sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:

## **Table of Contents**

AUTHC	ORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS	1
1.	MASTER CONTRACT	1
2.	CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES	1
3.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS	2
4.	TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT	2
5.	INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION	ON 3
6.	INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT	3
7.	DEFINITIONS	4
ADMIN	NISTRATION OF CONTRACT	5
8.	NOTICES	5
9.	MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS	5
10.	SEVERABILITY CLAUSE	6
11.	SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST	6
12.	VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW	6
13. ADM	MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND INISTRATIVE GUIDELINES	6
14.	TERMINATION	7
15.	INSURANCE	7
16.	INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS	9
17.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	
18.	SUBCONTRACTING	10
19.	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	10
20.	NON-DISCRIMINATION	11
EDUCA	ATIONAL PROGRAM	11
21.	FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)	
22.	GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION	
23.	INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES	13
24.	CLASS SIZE	
25.	CALENDARS	14
26.	DATA REPORTING	15
27.	LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT	15
28.	STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING	15

29.	MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS	15
30.	POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS	16
31.	STUDENT DISCIPLINE	17
32.	IEP TEAM MEETINGS	17
33.	SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH	18
34.	DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS	18
35.	COMPLAINT PROCEDURES	18
36.	STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS	19
37.	TRANSCRIPTS	19
38.	STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE	20
39.	WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM	20
40.	PARENT ACCESS	20
41. CENT	LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION ("LCI") CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT ER ("RTC") CONTRACTORS	20
42.	STATE MEAL MANDATE	21
43.	MONITORING	21
PERSO	NNEL	22
44.	CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS	22
45.	STAFF QUALIFICATIONS	23
46.	VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS	23
47.	STAFF ABSENCE	24
48. RELA <sup>-</sup>	STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL TED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME	24
HEALTH	AND SAFETY MANDATES	25
49.	HEALTH AND SAFETY	25
50.	FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS	25
51.	ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION	25
52.	INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING	25
53.	CHILD ABUSE REPORTING	26
54.	SEXUAL HARASSMENT	26
55.	REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN	26
FINANC	CIAL	26
56. PROC	ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING	
57.	RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT	27

58.	PAYME	INT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES	28
59.	PAYME	INT FOR ABSENCES	29
60.	LEA an	d/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY	30
61.	INSPEC	TION AND AUDIT	30
		CHEDULE	
63.	DEBAR	MENT CERTIFICATION	31
EXHIBI	T A:	2019-2020 RATES	33
EXHIBI	T B:	2019-2020 ISA	35

2019-2020

CONTRACT NUMBER:

#### LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY: \_\_\_\_\_ NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: Mountain Valley Child and Family Services, Inc.

#### NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT

#### **AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS**

#### 1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract is entered into on July 1, 2019, between Eastbay Innovations Academy, hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA"), a member of the <u>SELPA and</u> <u>Mountain Valley Child and Family Services, Inc.</u> (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as NPS/A or "CONTRACTOR" for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 *et seq.* and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 *et seq.*, AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this agreement does not commit LEA to pay for special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA"). Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all services specified in the student's Individualized Education Plan (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days of a student's enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each student served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent or authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with nonpublic school placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a nonpublic school placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent.

#### 2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency. All nonpublic school and nonpublic agency services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 *et seq* and within the professional scope of practice of each provider's license, certification and/or credential. A current copy of CONTRACTOR's nonpublic school/agency certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code

section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this contract is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification and in Section 24 of the Master Contract.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state to license, to provide nonmedical care to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional needs. The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child, and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed. If the CONTRACTOR operates a program outside of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the appropriate licensing agency in both California and in the state where the LCI is located.

With respect to CONTRACTOR's certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS

During the term of this contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to; the provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a).

#### 4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

The term of this Master Contract shall be from July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years. However, the parties acknowledge that any subsequent Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2019. In the event the contract is not renegotiated by June 30<sup>th</sup>, an interim contract may be made available as mutually agreed upon for up to 90 days from July 1 of the new fiscal year. (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR is at the sole discretion of the LEA.

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR's ownership or authorized representative shall be provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized representative.

#### 5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

This Master Contract includes each Individual Services Agreement and they are incorporated herein by this reference. This Master Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement. This Master Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract or a renewal.

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of teacher credentials and clearance, insurance documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued. If CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new Master Contract's effective date. If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such ninety day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion of the LEA.

#### 6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This contract shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect. In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students.

Any and all changes to a student's educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student's IEP. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a student's parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student's IEP subject to all procedural safeguards required by law.

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5) business days of the last date a service was provided. CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result of lack of provision of services while student was served by the nonpublic school or agency.

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, CONTRACTOR shall abide by the "stay-put" requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code section 56366(c) (2).

#### 7. **DEFINITIONS**

The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract:

a. The term "CONTRACTOR" means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the California Department of Education and its officers, agents and employees.

b. The term "authorized LEA representative" means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible for nonpublic school/agencies. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA maintains sole responsibility for the contract, unless otherwise specified in the contract.

c. The term "credential" means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g).

d. The term "qualified" means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and designated instruction and services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which he or she is providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations. (Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (r)).

e. The term "license" means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to themselves using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental health and board and care services at a residential placement. If a license is not available through an appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at the national or state level

which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(l).

- f. "Parent" means:
  - i. a biological or adoptive parent; unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal authority to make educational decisions for the child,
  - ii. a guardian generally authorized to act as the child's parent or authorized to make educational decisions for the child,
  - iii. an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally responsible for the child's welfare,
  - iv. a surrogate parent,
  - v. a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational decisions on the child's behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2).

Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the nonpublic school or agency under contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services for a child. (California Education Code section 56028).

- g. The term "days" means calendar days unless otherwise specified.
- h. The phrase "billable day" means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs.
- i. The phrase "billable day of attendance" means a school day as defined in California Education Code Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA.
- j. It is understood that the term "Master Contract" also means "Agreement" and is referred to as such in this document.

#### **ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT**

#### 8. NOTICES

All notices provided for by this contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of the Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of this Master Contract.

#### 9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master Contract, "records" shall include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including

supervision; daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional instructional assistants, NPA behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state nonpublic school and/or agency certifications by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of CONTRACTOR's employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an access log for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, and date/time of access for each individual requesting or receiving information from the student's record. Such log needs to record access to the student's records by: (a) the student's parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the student's parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records. For purposes of this paragraph, "employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR" do not include subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall grant parents access to student records, and comply with parents' requests for copies of student records, as required by state and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency closure, to forward student records within ten (10) business days to LEA. These shall include, but not limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, and reports. LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within five (5) business days.

#### **10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE**

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

#### 11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

This contract binds CONTRACTOR's successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of any change of ownership or corporate control.

#### 12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the County where the LEA is located.

## 13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking such modification

shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days' notice of any such changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which the modification or changes are based.

#### 14. TERMINATION

This Master Contract or Individual Service Agreement may be terminated for cause. The cause shall not be the availability of a public class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the public school program at an IEP team meeting. To terminate the contract either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Master Contract. ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 5 or 6. CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice.

#### 15. INSURANCE

CONTRACTOR shall, at his, her, or its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term of this Agreement, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof:

#### PART I - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES

- **A.** Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:
  - \$2,000,000 per occurrence
    \$500,000 fire damage
    \$5,000 medical expenses
    \$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury
    \$3,000,000 general aggregate
    \$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual molestation or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR's policy should have an exclusion for sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a supplemental policy providing such coverage.

- B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- **C.** Commercial Auto Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a \$1 million combined single limit.

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.

If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from students' homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements.

D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, <u>including</u> Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits:

\$1,000,000 per occurrence \$2,000,000 general aggregate

- E. CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this contract and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of Education additional insured's premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR's obligations under this contract at no additional charge.
- **F. Any deductibles** or self-insured retentions above \$100,000 must be declared to and approved by the LEA. At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR's sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation.
- **G.** For any claims related to the services, the CONTRACTOR's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects to the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- **H.** All Certificates of Insurance may reference the contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on the certificate.

## PART II - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY ("RTC")

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school affiliated with a **residential treatment center (NPS/RTC**), the following insurance policies are required:

A. Commercial General Liability including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$3,000,000 per occurrence \$6,000,000 in General Aggregate.

The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as *named* additional insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC's insurance primary despite any conflicting provisions in the RTC's policy. Coverage shall be maintained with no Self-Insured Retention above \$100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA.

- B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- C. Commercial Auto Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides student bus services, the required coverage limit is \$5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence.
- D. Fidelity Bond or Crime Coverage shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be \$250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured retention.
- E. Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice coverage with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.
- F. Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations.

#### 16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors ("LEA Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall arise immediately upon tender of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR. The LEA and the Member District(s) shall have the right in their sole discretion to select counsel of its choice to provide the defense at the sole cost of the CONTRACTOR or the applicable insurance carrier.

To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors ("CONTRACTOR Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent or willful act or omission of LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities).

LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the state of California, that the selfinsurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its self-insurance covers LEA's indemnification obligations under this Master Contract.

#### **17.** INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this Agreement as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.

If the LEA is held to be a partner, joint venturer, co-principle, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that holding, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.

#### 18. SUBCONTRACTING

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract. In the event LEA determines that it can provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s). If LEA elects to provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of receipt of CONTRACTOR's original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s).

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the fullest extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the provision of special education and/or related services (including, but not limited to, transportation) for any student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term of each subcontract. Such subcontractor's insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage required by Section 15. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor's work commences. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA Board of Education as additional insured.

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract. All Certificates of Insurance may reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate. In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in Section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.

#### **19.** CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student's advocate. Pursuant to California Education code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at

CONTRACTOR's facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest.

Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, LEA shall neither execute an ISA with CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e., before or after the student is enrolled in CONTRACTOR's school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as "IEE") and its recommendations, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom the IEE is requested. Likewise, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund services through the evaluator whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund. When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE.

When CONTRACTOR is a Nonpublic Agency, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an individual who was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty five (365) days prior to executing this contract. This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to ten months of the school year by LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a private pay or tuition free "scholarship" basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings.

#### 20. NON-DISCRIMINATION

CONTRACTOR shall not, in employment or operation of its programs, unlawfully discriminate on the basis of gender, nationality, national origin, ancestry, race, color, ethnicity, ethnic group affiliation, religion, age, marital status, pregnancy or parental status, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or expression, physical or mental disability, genetic information or any other classification protected by federal or state law or the perception of one or more of such characteristics or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

#### EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

#### 21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)

LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan (hereinafter referred to as "ITP") of each student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide to each student special education and/or related services (including transition services) within the nonpublic school or nonpublic agency consistent with the student's IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services outlined in the student's IEP. If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease.

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities for students, as specified in the student's

IEP and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student's enrollment under the terms of this Master Contract). LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence disabilities when specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the nonpublic school. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations. CONTRACTOR may charge a student's parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility.

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education shall not interfere with the student's receipt of special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in writing.

#### 22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION

All nonpublic school and nonpublic agency services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 *et seq.*, and shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment, which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize evidence-based practices and predictors and be consistent with LEA's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Students shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted Common Core State Standards ("CCSS") for curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive; and provide standards – aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used by a local education agency (LEA), that contracts with the nonpublic school: (b) college preparation courses; (c) extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college counseling.

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades nine through twelve inclusive, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading toward graduation or completion of LEA's diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall not award a high school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA's graduation requirements.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and predictors and be consistent with LEA and CDE guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. The nonpublic agency providing Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the nature of their nonpublic agency service for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA. School-based services may not be unilaterally

converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. Except for services provided by a CONTRACTOR that is a licensed children's institution, all services not provided in the school setting require the presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as requested. Licensed Children's Institution (LCI) CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is present during the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master Contract. CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a trained behaviorist or trained equivalent on staff. It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing.

#### 23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and pass time shall be at the same level that Ed. Code prescribes for the LEA.

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

#### 24. CLASS SIZE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing. Upon prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a ratio of 1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to provide services to students with disabilities.

In the event a nonpublic school is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students, and the vacancy has direct impact on the California Department of Education Certification of that school, the nonpublic school shall develop a plan to assure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated staff. The nonpublic school and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may be increased to assure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not apply to a nonpublic agency.

CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between the ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 et seq.

#### 25. CALENDARS

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school calendar with the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent to the number of days determined by the LEA's extended school year calendar. Billable days shall include only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the IEP (developed by the LEA) for each student. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school calendar and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA. Nothing in this Master Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes.

Unless otherwise specified by the students' IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site. A student shall only be eligible for extended school year services if such are recommended by his/her IEP Team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school year shall consist of twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP Team convened by the LEA. Any days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing, prior to the start of the extended school year.

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school year and actually received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any nonpublic school service. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, President's Day, Memorial Day and Independence Day. With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by the LEA.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEAdeveloped/approved calendar prior to the initiation of services. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. Unless otherwise specified in the LEA student's ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those days that the LEA student's school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school. CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the LEA calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing. Student must have actually been in attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any nonpublic agency service provided by CONTRACTOR. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

#### 26. DATA REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing information with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide all data related to any and all sections of this contract and requested by and in the format required by the LEA. It is understood that all nonpublic school and agencies shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to by the LEA. Additional progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access.

The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data including, but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA may approve use of CONTRACTOR'S provided forms at their discretion.

#### 27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive Environment ("LRE") options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate.

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings.

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team's recommended activities to support the transition.

#### 28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer all Statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress ("CAASPP"), Desired Results Developmental Profile ("DRDP"), California Alternative Assessment ("CAA"), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram, , the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("ELPAC"), and as appropriate to the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code section 52052, in the same manner as public schools. Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability program. LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR'S qualified staff. CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as required by LEA.

#### 29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS

CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation, standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, and standardized

testing and IEPs. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s).

#### 30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 49005, *et seq.*, 56521.1 and 56521.2. LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the federal law and it's implementing regulations. If the Individualized Education Program ("IEP") team determines that a student's behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention Plan ("BIP"), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student's behavioral problems through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all of its staff members are trained annually in crisis intervention and emergency procedures as related to appropriate behavior management strategies. Training includes certification with an approved SELPA crisis intervention program. Evidence of such training to applicable or relevant staff shall be submitted to the LEA at the beginning of the school year and within six (6) days of any new hire as referenced above.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for a BIP, and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency.

CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others. It requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used. Emergencies *require* a behavior emergency report form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for administrative action. CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone. If the student's IEP does not contain a Behavior Intervention Plan ("BIP") or Positive Behavior Intervention Plan ("PBIP"), an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan. If the student already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule with LEA an IEP meeting within two (2) days.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following: (1) Any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, electric-shock (2) An intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual. (3) An intervention that denies adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities. (4) An

intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma. (5) Restrictive interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, including the procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention. (6) Locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room. (7) An intervention that precludes adequate supervision of the individual. (8) An intervention that deprives the individual of one or more of his or her senses. (b) In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child's learning or that of others, the individualized education program team shall consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations.

All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple uses by the same individual. CONTRACTOR shall notify the student's parent/guardian when any type of physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used. Upon the use of any type of physical or mechanical restraint or a District student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the reporting and notification requirements listed above.

#### 31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with state and federal law and regulations.

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA and a manifestation IEP team meeting shall be scheduled. Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the student's name; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such discipline report. A copy of the student's behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) day of suspension. CONTRACTOR shall notify and invite LEA representatives to the IEP team meeting where the manifestation determination will be made.

#### 32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the nonpublic school; and (3) whether changes to the student's IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be transitioned to a public school setting. (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)) and pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).)

If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document, if appropriate, a description of activities provided to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team. Except as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student's IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that attendance at an IEP meeting is part of CONTRACTOR's professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this Master Contract.

It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for all IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA's discretion. The SELPA shall provide training for any NPS and NPA to assure access to the approved system. The NPS and/or NPA shall maintain confidentiality of all IEP data on the approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the system. When a student dis-enrolls from the NPS, the NPS/NPA shall discontinue use of the approved system for that student.

Changes in any student's educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student's IEP. In the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student's IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student's placement. Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.

#### 33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 42238.01(b). The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has designated as the educational liaison for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a nonpublic school by the LEA any time after the completion of the pupil's second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless provided notice otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1.

#### 34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations and hearings, as requested by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state and/or federal governmental body or agency. Full participation shall include, but in no way be limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator and/or the immediate provision of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of CONTRACTOR's program and/or the implementation of a particular student's IEP/Individual and Family Service Plan ("IFSP").

#### 35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent complaints. These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 *et seq.*; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d)

and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ("HIPAA"). CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA.

#### **36.** STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards. At a minimum, progress reports shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A copy of the progress reports/report cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR's place of business and shall be submitted to the LEA and LEA student's parent(s).

The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans. The LEA may request such data at any time within five (5) years of the date of service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data supporting progress within five (5) business days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by the LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the student's annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student's present levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices. CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of its reports, documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days prior to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols and data collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All assessments resulting from an assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that CONTRACTOR perform such additional assessment. Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at the LEA's sole discretion.

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA. For Nonpublic Agency services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065, shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA. Supervision means the direct observation of services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each professional's license, certification, or credential.

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student's parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings. It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil's record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request.

#### 37. TRANSCRIPTS

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them on LEA approved forms to the student's school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall submit

to the LEA names of students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA.

#### **38.** STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

Within five (5) school days after CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student's change of residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA of the student's change of residence as specified in LEA Procedures. Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation to notify CONTRACTOR of the student's change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents.

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student's change of residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered after the student's change of residence.

#### **39. WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM**

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including student's change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and student's discharge against professional advice from a Nonpublic Schools/Residential Treatment Center ("NPS/RTC").

#### 40. PARENT ACCESS

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters. CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA students.

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent's reasonable request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC. CONTRACTOR shall require that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA at least thirty (30) days in advance. CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations and for providing travel information to the parent as appropriate. Payment by LEA for approved travel-related expenses shall be made directly through the LEA.

CONTRACTOR providing services in the student's home as specified in the IEP shall assure that at least one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an emergency, is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization for emergency situation. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider.

For services provided in a pupil's home as specified in the IEP, CONTRACTOR must assure that the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided to the LEA.

#### 41. LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION ("LCI") CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER ("RTC") CONTRACTORS

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b), AB 1858 (2004), AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003), AB 1261 (2005), AB 1166 Chapter 171 (2015), AB 167 Chapter 224 (2010), AB 216 Chapter 324 (2013), AB 379 Chapter 772 (2015), AB 1012 Chapter 703 (2015), and the procedures set forth in the LEA Procedures. An LCI shall not require that a pupil be placed in its nonpublic school as a condition of being placed in its residential facility.

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic, nonsectarian school that is owned, operated by, or associated with a residential treatment center (hereinafter referred to as "NPS/RTC"), CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1412(a)(1)(A) and Education Code section 56000, et seq.; amended and reorganized by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA), 20 U.S.C. section 1401(29); Education Code section 56031; Cal. Code Regs., Title 5, section 3001 et seq., Cal. Code Regs., Title 2, section 60100 et seq. regarding the provision of counseling services, including residential care for students to receive a FAPE as set forth in the LEA student's IEPs.

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic, nonsectarian school that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special education. For those identified special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each student's IEP at the time of enrollment.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with nonpublic school placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a nonpublic school placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent or another adult with educational decision-making rights.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

#### 42. STATE MEAL MANDATE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under California Education Code sections 49530, 49530.5 and 49550.

#### 43. MONITORING

CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for periodic monitoring of each student's instructional program and shall be invited to participate in the formal review of each student's progress. LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student's records and progress. Such access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office. CONTRACTOR shall be invited to participate in the review of each student's progress.

If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction ("Superintendent") shall monitor CONTRACTOR'S facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and (3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three.

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA and CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the nonpublic school, compliance with relevant state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or corrective action procedures related to review findings.

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause. The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California Education Code Section 33126.

#### PERSONNEL

#### 44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237, 35021.1 and 35021.2 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as "CDOJ") and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers who will have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, or subcontractors who may come into contact with students have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee's conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j). Clearance certification shall be submitted to the LEA.

The passage of AB 389 amends Education Code sections 44237 and 56366.1 as to the verification that the CONTRACTOR has received a successful criminal background check clearance and has enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service, as specified, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. Further this bill deletes the exemption for applicants possessing a valid California state teaching credential or who are currently licensed by another state agency that requires a criminal record summary, from submitting two (2) sets of fingerprints for the purpose of obtaining a criminal record summary from the Department of Justice and the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency. Background clearances and proof of subsequent arrest

notification service, as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.

#### 45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations sections 3001(y), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession, and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher's scope of practice.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided to the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)).

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development. CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 45340 *et seq.* and 45350 *et seq.* Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate's (or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing readiness, and mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

#### 46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any student.

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is providing services under this Master Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 47. STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute for their student. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative.

#### 48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME

It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified nonpublic school or agency shall adhere to the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall only be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to the CONTRACTOR.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by nonpublic school or agency providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the CONTRACTOR upon request. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the instructional program.

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student's school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in an emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home-based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA.

#### **HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES**

#### 49. HEALTH AND SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 *et. seq.*, 49406, and Health and Safety Code Section 3454(a) regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual comes in contact with a student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code.

#### 50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to: disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning permits; and occupancy capacity. When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR's facilities as required complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49423 when CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the administration of such medication after the student's parent(s) provides to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student's parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician's statement. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to whom medication is administered. Such written log shall specify the student's name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR's employee who administered the medication. CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for assuring appropriate staff training in the administration of such medication consistent with physician's written orders. Any change in medication type, administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.

#### 52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures specified in LEA Procedures.

#### 53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e. reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA.

#### 54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR's policy, as well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.

#### 55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 49370. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The written statement shall be submitted as specified by the LEA.

#### **FINANCIAL**

### 56. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the school or agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services specified in the student's IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides. Original attendance forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being billed for payment.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be properly submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA in the LEA Procedures. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when the service was provided.

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training.

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days of LEA's receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA.

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond December 31<sup>st</sup> after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or re-billing error is the responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year. LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee.

#### 57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole or in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive services; (c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more students enrolled in CONTRACTOR's educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student's change of residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA

within five (5) days of such confirmation; or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for regular ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety (90) days. The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected.

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding paragraph are as follows: (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of overpayment; (c) the entire amount of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e) the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service provided to the student.

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA's withholding payment and the amount to be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA's withholding payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies. Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR's written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR's time to correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied.

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR's notice within thirty (30) business days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the withholding of payment continues after the LEA's response to CONTRACTOR's notice, CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.

<u>After forty-five (45) business days</u>: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA's Representative of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in writing within fifteen (15) business days.

<u>After sixty (60) business days</u>: Disagreements between the LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code Section 56366(c) (2).

#### 58. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any

other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students.

#### 59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES

#### NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE

Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher.

Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in student's IEP.

#### NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, no later than the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) cumulative day of a student's unexcused absence, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence as specified in the LEA Procedures.

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. LEA shall not pay for services provided on days that a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under state law. *Per Diem* rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance ("ADA") reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-up services.

#### NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. LEA shall not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not provided shall be included.

#### NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) consecutive service day of the student's absence, as specified in the LEA Procedures. LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services when a student is absent.

#### 60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY

The following shall apply in the event of a LEA or NPS school closure due to an emergency consistent with guidelines followed by LEAs under Education Code Section 41422:

- a. If CONTRACTOR remains open during an emergency and serves students appropriately as delineated in the ISA, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment, regardless of whether a sending LEA is open or closed.
- b. NPS School Closure- If the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance due to school closure. If the LEA is unable to obtain an alternative placement, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the signed ISA, as though the student were continuing in their regular attendance, until alternative placement can be found.
- c. LEA and NPS School Closure- On days the LEA is funded, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the signed ISA, until alternative placement can be found. If the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance due to school closure.

When the emergency school closure is lifted, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEAs it serves of any lost instructional minutes. CONTRACTOR and LEAs shall work collaboratively to determine the need for makeup days or service changes, and shall work together to amend IEP and ISA paperwork as appropriate.

#### 61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides, bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents evidencing other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state nonpublic school and/or agency certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Such access shall include unannounced inspections by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR's offices (to be specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided to LEA within five (5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide assistance for such examination or audit. LEA's rights under this section shall also include access to CONTRACTOR's offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR's employees. If any document or evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA agrees to the use of the electronic format.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA's written notice demanding payment.

#### 62. RATE SCHEDULE

The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on the required minimum number of minutes per grade level as noted in California Education Code Section 46200-46208.

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A.

#### 63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that:

- (a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are <u>not</u> presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency, and
- (b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these offenses.

The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives. This contract is effective on the  $1^{st}$  day of July, 2019 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2020, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

CONTRACTOR	LEA			
Mountain Valley Child and Family Servion Nonpublic School/Agency	-	LEA Name		
Ву:	_	Ву:	C	
Signature Date		Signature	L	Date
Teresa Petrie Name and Title of Authorized Representative	-	Name and Title of	Authorized Represer	ntative
Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to: Teresa Petrie		Notices to LEA	A shall be addressed	to:
Name and Title		Name and Tit	le	
Mountain Valley Child and Family Services, Inc.				
Nonpublic School/Agency/Related Service Provi	ider	LEA		
24077 St Hwy 49				
Address		Address		
Nevada City, Ca 95959				
City State Zip 530-265-9057		City	State	Zip
Phone Fax Teresa@mv.email		Phone	Fax	
Email		Email		

Additional LEA Notification (Required if completed)

Name and Title			
Address			
City	State	Zip	
Phone	Fax		
Email			

#### EXHIBIT A: 2019-2020 RATES

#### 4.1 RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONTRACT YEAR

The CONTRACTOR: \_\_\_\_\_ Mountain Valley Child and Family Services, Inc. \_\_\_\_\_\_

The CONTRACTOR CDS NUMBER: 693 6876

PER ED CODE 56366 – TEACHER-TO-PUPIL RATIO:

Maximum Contract Amount:

Education service(s) offered by the CONTRACTOR and the charges for such service(s) during the term of this contract shall be as follows:

- 1) Daily Basic Education Rate: \$195.70
- Inclusive Education Program (Includes Educational Counseling (not ed related mental health) services, Speech & Language services, Behavior Intervention Planning, and Occupational Therapy as specified on the student's IEP.) DAILY RATE:
- 3) Related Services

Service	Rate	Period
Intensive Individual Services (340)		
Language and Speech (415)		
Adapted Physical Education (425)		
Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (43	35)	
Health and Nursing: Other Services (436)		
Assistive Technology Services (445)		
Occupational Therapy (450)		
Physical Therapy (460)		
Individual Counseling (510)		
Counseling and Guidance (515)		
Parent Counseling (520)		
Social Work Services (525)		

Psychological Services (530)		
Behavior Intervention Services (535)		
Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)		
Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing (710)		
Interpreter Services (715)		
Audiological Services (720)		
Specialized Vision Services (725)		
Orientation and Mobility (730)		
Specialized Orthopedic Services (740)		
Reader Services (745)		
Transcription Services (755)		
Recreation Services, Including Therapeutic (760)		
College Awareness (820)		
Work Experience Education (850)		
Job Coaching (855)		
Mentoring (860)		
Travel Training (870)		
Other Transition Services (890)		
Other (900)	<u>\$616.66</u>	Day/365 days
Other (900)		

#### EXHIBIT B: 2019-2020 ISA

INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (ISA) FOR NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL SERVICES	
(Education Code Sections 56365 et seq.)	

This agreement is effective on from a nonpublic agency, if after the date identified, and terr Contract and by applicable law.							
Local Education Agency				Nonpublic School_			
LEA Case Manager: Name				Phone Number			
Pupil Name(Last)		(First)		Sex: 🗌 M 🗌 F Grade <u>:</u>			
Address		• •		• •		Sta	ate/Zip
DOB Residential Se	tting:	] Home	Foster	LCI #			R
Parent/Guardian				) (Residence)	( (Busine	)	
Address (If different from student				City			ate/Zip
AGREEMENT TERMS:							
1. Nonpublic School: The average	number o	of mins ir	n the instruct		during re during e		
2. <i>Nonpublic School</i> : The number	of school	days in t	the calendar	of the school year ar		ng regular scho ng extended so	
3. Educational services as specifie	d in the l	EP shall b	pe provided l	by the CONTRACTOR	and paid at th	e rates specifi	ed below.
A. INCLUSIVE AND/OR BASIC	EDUCAT	ION PRO	GRAM RATE:	: (Applies to nonpubl	ic schools only	/): Da	ily Rate:
Estimated Number of Days	_x Daily	Rate		= PROJECTE	D BASIC EDUC	ATION COSTS	6
B. RELATED SERVICES:							
	Provid		1				
SERVICE	LEA	NPS	OTHER Specify	# of Times per wk/mo/yr., Duration; or per IEP; or as needed	Cost per session	Maximum Number of Sessions	Estimated Maximum Total Cost for Contracted Period
Intensive Individual Services							

	Provide	r					
SERVICE	LEA	NPS	OTHER Specify	# of Times per wk/mo/yr., Duration; or per IEP; or as needed	Cost per session	Maximum Number of Sessions	Estimated Maximum Total Cost for Contracted Period
Adapted Physical Ed. (425)							
Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)							
Health and Nursing Services: Other (436)							
Assistive Technology Services (445)							
Occupational Therapy (450)							
Physical Therapy (460)							
Individual Counseling (510)							
Counseling and guidance (515).							
Parent Counseling (520)							
Social Work Services (525)							
Psychological Services (530)							
Behavior Intervention Services (535)							
Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)							
Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services (710)							
Interpreter Services (715)							
Audiological Services (720)							
Specialized Vision Services (725)							
Orientation and Mobility (730)							
Braille Transcription (735)							
Specialized Orthopedic Service (740)							
Reader Services (745)							
Note Taking Services (750)							
Transcription Services (755)							
Recreation Services (760)							
College Awareness Preparation (820)							
Vocational Assessment, Counseling, Guidance and Career Assessment (830)							
Career Awareness (840)							

	Provider						
SERVICE	LEA	NPS	OTHER Specify	# of Times per wk/mo/yr., Duration; or per IEP; or as needed	Cost per session	Maximum Number of Sessions	Estimated Maximum Total Cost for Contracted Period
Work Experience Education (850)							
Mentoring (860)							
Agency Linkages (865)							
Travel Training (870)							
Other Transition Services (890)							
Other (900)J							
Other (900)							
Transportation-Emergency b. Transportation-Parent							
Bus Passes							
Other							
<b>TOTAL ESTIMATED MAXIMUM B</b> 4. Other Provisions/Attachments 5. MASTER CONTRACT APPROV	5 <u>:</u>				<b>\$</b> \$		
					Othor	Spacify)	
6. Progress Reporting Requirem	ients.					Specify)	
The parties hereto have execute representatives as set forth below		ndividua	I Services A	greement by and	through the	ir duly autho	rized agents or
CONTRACTOR-			-L	EA/SELPA-			
(Name of Nonpublic School/Agency)			()	lame of LEA/SELPA	)		
(Signature)	(Date)		(S	ignature)			(Date)
(Name and Title)			(N	lame of Superinten	dent or Auth	orized Design	ee)

### NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES

# Master Contract

## 2019-2020

	Master Contract
	GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN, NONPUBLIC SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES
	LEA EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY
с. Э	Contract Year2019-2020
	X
	Nonpublic School
	Nonpublic Agency
Type of Contrac	t:
	ter Contract for the fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout
——— the t	term of this contract.
indiv	vidual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) int
	vidual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) int terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student.
Inter	rim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole
purp	bose of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at
the s	sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:
	When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above
	shall amend Section 4 – Term of Master Contract.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Α	итно	RIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS	_ 1
	1.	MASTER CONTRACT	1
	2.	CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES	1
	3.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS	2
	4.	TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT	2
	5.	INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATIONOR TERMINATION	3
	6.	INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT	3
	7.	DEFINITIONS	_ 4
A	DMIN	ISTRATION OF CONTRACT	_ 5
	8.	NOTICES	5
	9.	MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS	5
	<b>10</b> .	SEVERABILITY CLAUSE	6
	11.	SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST	6
	12.	VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW	6
	13.	MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES	6
	14.	TERMINATION	_ 7
	15.	INSURANCE	_ 7
	16.	INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS	9
	17.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	9
	18.	SUBCONTRACTING	_ 10
	19.	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	_ 10
	20.	NON-DISCRIMINATION	_ 11
EL	DUCAT	TIONAL PROGRAM	11
	21.	FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)	_ 11
	22.	GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION	
	23.	INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES	_ 13
	24.	CLASS SIZE	
	25.	CALENDARS	
	26.	DATA REPORTING	
	27.	LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT	
	28.	STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING	

29.	MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS	_ 15
30.	POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS	_ 15
31.	STUDENT DISCIPLINE	_ 17
32.	IEP TEAM MEETINGS	_ 17
33.	SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH	_ 18
34.	DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS	_ 18
35.	COMPLAINT PROCEDURES	
36.	STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS	_ 18
37.	TRANSCRIPTS	19
38.	STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE	_ 19
39.	WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM	_ 20
40.	PARENT ACCESS	_ 20
41.	SERVICES AND SUPERVISION AND PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT	_ 20
42.	LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION ("LCI") CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER ("RTC") CONTRACTORS	
43.	STATE MEAL MANDATE	22
44.	MONITORING	_ 22
PERSO	NNEL	22
45.		22
46.	STAFF QUALIFICATIONS	23
47.	VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS	
48.	STAFF ABSENCE	24
49.	STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME	25
HEALT	H AND SAFETY MANDATES	
50.	HEALTH AND SAFETY	25
51.	FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS	25
52.	ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION	26
53.	INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING	26
54.	CHILD ABUSE REPORTING	26
55.	SEXUAL HARASSMENT	26
56.	REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN	26
FINAN	CIAL	27
57.	ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING PROCEDURES	G _ 27

58.	RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT	28
59.	PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES	29
60.	PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES	29
61.	INSPECTION AND AUDIT	30
62.	RATE SCHEDULE	31
63.	DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION	31
EXHIBI	TA: 2019-2020 RATES	33
EXHIBI	T B: 2019-2020 ISA	Error! Bookmark not defined.

#### 2018-2019

#### **CONTRACT NUMBER:**

### LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY: East Bay Innovation Academy NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: Devereux Texas

#### NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT

#### AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### 1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract is entered into on July 1, 2018, between <u>East Bay Innovation Academy</u>, hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA"), a member of the <u>El Dorado County Charter</u> SELPA and <u>Devereux Texas Treatment Network</u> (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as NPS/A or "CONTRACTOR" for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 *et seq.* and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 *et seq.*, AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this agreement does not commit LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any student, or CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA") and a Nonpublic Services student Enrollment form as specified in the LEA Procedures. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all services specified in the student's Individualized Education Plan (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days of a student's enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each student served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent or authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with nonpublic school placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a nonpublic school placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent.

#### 2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency. All nonpublic school and nonpublic agency services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 *et seq* and within the professional scope of practice of each provider's license, certification and/or credential. A current copy of CONTRACTOR's nonpublic school/agency certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code

section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this contract is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state to license, to provide nonmedical care to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional needs. The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child, and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed. If the CONTRACTOR operates a program outside of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the appropriate licensing agency in both California and in the state where the LCI is located.

With respect to CONTRACTOR's certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS

During the term of this contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to, the provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a).

#### 4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

The term of this Master Contract shall be from July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years. However, the parties acknowledge that any subsequent Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2018. In the event the contract is not renegotiated by June 30<sup>th</sup>, an interim contract may be made available as mutually agreed upon for up to 90 days from July 1 of the new fiscal year. (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No

Master Contract will be offered unless and until all of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR is at the sole discretion of the LEA.

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR's ownership or authorized representative shall be provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized representative.

#### 5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATIONOR TERMINATION

This Master Contract includes each Individual Services Agreement and they are incorporated herein by this reference. This Master Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement. This Master Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract or a renewal.

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of teacher credentials and clearance, insurance documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued. If CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new Master Contract's effective date. If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such ninety day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion of the LEA.

#### 6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This contract shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect. In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students.

Any and all changes to a student's educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student's IEP. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a student's parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student's IEP subject to all procedural safeguards required by law.

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5)

business days of the last date a service was provided. CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result of lack of provision of services while student was served by the nonpublic school or agency.

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, CONTRACTOR shall abide by the "stay-put" requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code section 56366(c) (2).

#### 7. DEFINITIONS

The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract:

- a. The term "CONTRACTOR" means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the California Department of Education and its officers, agents and employees.
- b. The term "authorized LEA representative" means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible for nonpublic school/agencies. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA maintains sole responsibility for the contract, unless otherwise specified in the contract.
- c. The term "credential" means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g).
- d. The term "qualified" means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and designated instruction and services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which he or she is providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations. (Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (r)).

e The term "license" means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to

themselves using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental health and board and care services at a residential placement. If a license is not available through an appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(I).

f. "Parent" means a biological or adoptive parent, unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal authority to make educational decisions for the child, a guardian generally authorized to act as the child's parent or authorized to make educational decisions for the child, an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally responsible for the child's welfare, a surrogate parent, a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational decisions on the child's behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2). Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the nonpublic school or agency under contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services for a child. (California Education Code section 56028).

- g. The term "days" means calendar days unless otherwise specified.
- h. The phrase "billable day" means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs.
- i. The phrase "billable day of attendance" means a school day as defined in California Education Code Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA.
- j. It is understood that the term "Master Contract" also means "Agreement" and is referred to as such in this document.

#### ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

#### 8. NOTICES

All notices provided for by this contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of the Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of this Master Contract.

#### 9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master Contract, "records" shall include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including

supervision; daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional instructional assistants, NPA behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state nonpublic school and/or agency certifications by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Positive attendance is required.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of CONTRACTOR's employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an access log for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, and date/time of access for each individual requesting or receiving information from the student's record. Such log needs to record access to the student's records by: (a) the student's parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the student's parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records. For purposes of this paragraph, "employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR" do not include subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall grant parents access to student records, and comply with parents' requests for copies of student records, as required by state and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency closure, to forward student records within ten (10) business days to LEA. These shall include, but not limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, and reports. LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within five (5) business days.

#### 10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

#### 11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

This contract binds CONTRACTOR's successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of any change of ownership or corporate control.

#### 12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the County where the LEA is located.

# 13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking such modification shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days' notice of any such changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which the modification or changes are based.

#### 14. TERMINATION

This Master Contract or Individual Service Agreement may be terminated for cause. The cause shall not be the availability of a public class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the public school program at an IEP team meeting. To terminate the contract either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Master Contract. ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 5 or 6. CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice.

## 15. INSURANCE \*See attached Addendum

CONTRACTOR shall, at his, her, or its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term of this Agreement, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof:

#### PART I

A. **Commercial General Liability Insurance**, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$2,000,000 per occurrence
\$500,000 fire damage
\$5,000 medical expenses
\$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury
\$3,000,000 general aggregate
\$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual molestation or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR's policy should have an exclusion for sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a supplemental policy providing such coverage.

B. **Business Auto Liability Insurance** for all owned scheduled, non-owned or hired automobiles with a \$1 million combined single limit.

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.

If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from students' homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements.

C. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance in a form and

amount covering CONTRACTOR's full liability under the California Workers' Compensation Insurance and Safety Act and in accordance with applicable state and federal laws.

Part A – Statutory Limits

Part B - \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000/\$1,000,000 Employers Liability

D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, including Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits:

\$1,000,000 per occurrence \$2,000,000 general aggregate

- E. CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this contract and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of Education additional insured's premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR's obligations under this contract at no additional charge.
- F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above \$100,000 must be declared to and approved by the LEA. At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR's sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation.
- G. For any claims related to the services, the CONTRACTOR's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects to the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- H. All Certificates of Insurance may reference the contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on the certificate.

### PART II - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY ("RTC")

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school affiliated with a **residential treatment center (NPS/RTC**), the following insurance policies are required:

A. Commercial General Liability coverage of \$3,000,000 per Occurrence and \$6,000,000 in General Aggregate. The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as named additional insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC's insurance primary despite any conflicting provisions in the RTC's policy. Coverage shall be maintained with no Self-Insured Retention above \$100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA.

- B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- C. **Commercial Auto Liability** coverage with limits of **\$1,000,000** Combined Single Limit per Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides student bus services, the required coverage limit is \$5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence.
- D. Fidelity Bond or Crime Coverage shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be \$250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured retention.
- E. Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice coverage with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.
- F. Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations.

#### 16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors ("LEA Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall arise immediately upon tender of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR.

To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors ("CONTRACTOR Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent or willful act or omission of LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities).

LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the state of California, that the self-insurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its self-insurance covers LEA's indemnification obligations under this Master Contract.

#### 17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this

Agreement as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.

If the LEA is held to be a partner, joint venturer, co-principle, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that holding, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.

#### 18. SUBCONTRACTING

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract. In the event LEA determines that it can provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s). If LEA elects to provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of receipt of CONTRACTOR's original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s).

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the fullest extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the provision of special education and/or related services (including without limitation transportation) for any student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term of each subcontract. Such subcontractor's insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage required by Section 15. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor's work commences. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA Board of Education as additional insured.

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract. All Certificates of Insurance may reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate. In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in Section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.

#### 19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student's advocate. Pursuant to California Education code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at CONTRACTOR's facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest.

Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, LEA shall neither execute an ISA with CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education

and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e. before or after the student is enrolled in CONTRACTOR's school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as "IEE") and its recommendations, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom the IEE is requested. Likewise, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund services through the evaluator whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund. When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE.

When CONTRACTOR is a Nonpublic Agency, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an individual who was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty five (365) days prior to executing this contract. This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to ten months of the school year by LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a private pay or tuition free "scholarship" basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings.

#### 20. NON-DISCRIMINATION

CONTRACTOR shall not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of gender, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, or disability or any other classification protected by federal or state law, in employment or operation of its programs.

#### EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

#### 21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)

LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan (hereinafter referred to as "ITP") of each student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide to each student special education and/or related services (including transition services) within the nonpublic school or nonpublic agency consistent with the student's IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services outlined in the student's IEP. If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease.

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities for students, as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student's enrollment under the terms of this Master Contract). LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence disabilities when specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the nonpublic school. CONTRACTOR shall

ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations. CONTRACTOR may charge a student's parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility.

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education shall not interfere with the student's receipt of special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in writing.

## 22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION \*See attached Addendum

All nonpublic school and nonpublic agency services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 *et seq.*, and shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment, which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize evidence-based practices and predictors and be consistent with LEA's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Students shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted Common Core State Standards ("CCSS") for curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive; and provide standards – aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used by a local education agency (LEA), that contracts with the nonpublic school: (b) college preparation courses; (c) extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college counseling.

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades nine through twelve inclusive, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading toward graduation or completion of LEA's diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall not award a high school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA's graduation requirements.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and predictors and be consistent with LEA and CDE guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. The nonpublic agency providing Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the nature of their nonpublic agency service for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA. School-based services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. Except for services provided by a CONTRACTOR that is a licensed children's institution, all services not provided in the school setting require the presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as requested. Licensed Children's Institution (LCI) CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is present during the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA in

writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master Contract. CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a trained behaviorist or trained equivalent on staff. It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing.

#### 23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and pass time shall be at the same level that Ed. Code prescribes for the LEA.

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

#### 24. CLASS SIZE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing. Upon prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a ratio of 1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to provide services to students with disabilities.

In the event a nonpublic school is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students, and the vacancy has direct impact on the California Department of Education Certification of that school, the nonpublic school shall develop a plan to assure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated staff. The nonpublic school and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may be increased to assure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not apply to a nonpublic agency.

## 25. CALENDARS \*See attached Addendum

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school calendar with the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent to the number of days determined by the LEA's extended school year calendar. Billable days shall include only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or

required by the IEP (developed by the LEA) for each student. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school calendar and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA. Nothing in this Master Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes.

Unless otherwise specified by the students' IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site. A student shall only be eligible for extended school year services if such are recommended by his/her IEP Team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school year shall consist of twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP Team convened by the LEA. Any days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing, prior to the start of the extended school year.

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school year and actually received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any nonpublic school service. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, President's Day, Memorial Day and Independence Day. With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by the LEA.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEAdeveloped/approved calendar prior to the initiation of services. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. Unless otherwise specified in the LEA student's ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those days that the LEA student's school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school. CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the LEA calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing. Student must have actually been in attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any nonpublic agency service provided by CONTRACTOR. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

#### 26. DATA REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing information with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide all data related to any and all sections of this contract and requested by and in the format required by the LEA. It is understood that all nonpublic school and agencies shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to by the LEA. Additional progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access.

The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data including, but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA may approve use of CONTRACTOR'S provided forms at their discretion.

#### 27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive Environment ("LRE") options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate.

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings.

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team's recommended activities to support the transition.

#### 28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer all Statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress ("CAASPP"), Desired Results Developmental Profile ("DRDP"), California Alternative Assessment ("CAA"), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram, the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("ELPAC"), and as appropriate to the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code section 52052, in the same manner as public schools. Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability program. LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR'S qualified staff. CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as required by LEA.

#### 29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS

CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation, standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, and standardized testing and IEPs. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s).

#### **30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS**

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 56521.1 and 56521.2. LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the federal law and it's implementing regulations. If the Individualized Education Program ("IEP") team

determines that a student's behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention Plan ("BIP"), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student's behavioral problems through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all of its staff members are trained annually in crisis intervention and emergency procedures as related to appropriate behavior management strategies. Training includes certification with an approved SELPA crisis intervention program. Evidence of such training to applicable or relevant staff shall be submitted to the LEA at the beginning of the school year and within six (6) days of any new hire as referenced above.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for a BIP, and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency.

CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others. It requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used. Emergencies *require* a behavior emergency report form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for administrative action. CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone. If the student's IEP does not contain a Behavior Intervention Plan ("BIP") or Positive Behavior Intervention Plan ("PBIP"), an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan. If the student already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule with LEA an IEP meeting within two (2) days.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following: (1) Any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, electric-shock (2) An intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual. (3) An intervention that denies adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities. (4) An intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma. (5) Restrictive interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, including the procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention. (6) Locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room. (7) An intervention that precludes adequate supervision of the individual. (8) An intervention that deprives the individual of one or more of his or her senses. (b) In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child's learning or that of others, the individualized education program team shall consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations.

(Added by Stats. 2013, Ch. 48, Sec. 43. Effective July 1, 2013.)

All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple uses by the same individual. CONTRACTOR shall notify the student's parent/guardian when any type of physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used. Upon the use of any type of physical or mechanical restraint or seclusions of a District student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the reporting and notification requirements listed above.

#### 31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with state and federal law and regulations.

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA and a manifestation IEP team meeting shall be scheduled. Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the student's name; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such disciplinary action. A copy of the student's behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) day of suspension. CONTRACTOR shall notify and invite LEA representatives to the IEP team meeting where the manifestation determination will be made.

#### 32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the nonpublic school; and (3) whether changes to the student's IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be transitioned to a public school setting. (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)) and pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).)

If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document, if appropriate, a description of activities provided to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team. Except as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student's IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that attendance at an IEP meeting is part of CONTRACTOR's professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this Master Contract. It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for all IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA's discretion. The SELPA shall provide training for any NPS and NPA to assure access to the approved system. The NPS and/or NPA shall maintain confidentiality of all IEP data on the approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the system. When a student dis-enrolls from the NPS, the NPS/NPA shall discontinue use of the approved system for that student.

Changes in any student's educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student's IEP. In the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student's IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student's placement. Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.

#### 33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 42238.01(b). The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has designated as the educational liaison for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a nonpublic school by the LEA any time after the completion of the pupil's second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless provided notice otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1.

#### 34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations and hearings, as requested by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state and/or federal governmental body or agency. Full participation shall include, but in no way be limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator and/or the immediate provision of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of CONTRACTOR's program and/or the implementation of a particular student's IEP/Individual and Family Service Plan ("IFSP").

#### 35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent complaints. These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 *et seq.*; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ("HIPAA"). CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA.

#### 36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards. At a minimum, progress reports shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A copy of the progress reports/report cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR's place of business and shall be submitted to the LEA and LEA student's parent(s).

The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans. The LEA may request such data at any time within five (5) years of the date of service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data supporting progress within five (5) business days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by the LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the student's annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student's present levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices. CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of its reports, documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days prior to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols and data collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All assessments resulting from an assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that CONTRACTOR perform such additional assessment. Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at the LEA's sole discretion.

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA. For Nonpublic Agency services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065, shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA. Supervision means the direct observation of services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each professional's license, certification, or credential.

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student's parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings. It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil's record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request.

#### 37. TRANSCRIPTS

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them on LEA approved forms to the student's school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA.

#### 38. STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

Within five (5) school days after CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student's change of residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA of the student's change of residence as specified in LEA Procedures. Upon

enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation to notify CONTRACTOR of the student's change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents.

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student's change of residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered after the student's change of residence.

#### 39. WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including student's change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and student's discharge against professional advice from a Nonpublic Schools/Residential Treatment Center ("NPS/RTC").

#### 40. PARENT ACCESS

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters. CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA students.

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent's reasonable request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC. CONTRACTOR shall require that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA at least thirty (30) days in advance. CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations and for providing travel information to the parent as appropriate. Payment by LEA for approved travel-related expenses shall be made directly through the LEA.

CONTRACTOR providing services in the student's home as specified in the IEP shall assure that at least one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an emergency, is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization for emergency situation. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider.

For services provided in a pupil's home as specified in the IEP, CONTRACTOR must assure that the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided to the LEA.

#### 41. SERVICES AND SUPERVISION AND PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT

If CONTRACTOR provides services on LEA public school campuses, CONTRACTOR shall comply with Penal Code Section 627.1 *et. seq.*, and LEA procedures regarding visitors to school campuses specified by LEA policy and in the LEA procedures, and the procedures of the campus being visited. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for purchase and provision of the supplies and assessment tools necessary to implement the provision of services on LEA public school campuses.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed along with all procedures for being on campus consistent with school and LEA policy. It is understood that the public

school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the educational program and all nonpublic agency service providers shall work collaboratively with the classroom teacher, who shall remain in charge of the instructional program.

It is understood, that all employees, subcontractors and volunteers of any certified nonpublic school or agency shall adhere to customary professional standards when providing services. All practices shall be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession. Reports regarding student progress shall be consistent with the provision of the contract.

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student's school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in an emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA.

## 42. LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION ("LCI") CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER ("RTC") CONTRACTORS

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b), AB 1858 (2004), AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003), AB 1261 (2005), AB 1166 Chapter 171 (2015), AB 167 Chapter 224 (2010), AB 216 Chapter 324 (2013), AB 379 Chapter 772 (2015), AB 1012 Chapter 703 (2015), and the procedures set forth in the LEA Procedures. An LCI shall not require that a pupil be placed in its nonpublic school as a condition of being placed in its residential facility.

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic, nonsectarian school that is owned, operated by, or associated with a residential treatment center (hereinafter referred to as "NPS/RTC"), CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1412(a)(1)(A) and Education Code section 56000, et seq.; amended and reorganized by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA), 20 U.S.C. section 1401(29); Education Code section 56031; Cal. Code Regs., Title 5, section 3001 et seq., Cal. Code Regs., Title 2, section 60100 et seq. regarding the provision of counseling services, including residential care for students to receive a FAPE as set forth in the LEA student's IEPs.

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic, nonsectarian school that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special education. For those identified special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each student's IEP at the time of enrollment.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with nonpublic school placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a nonpublic school placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent or another adult with educational decision-making rights.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively,

special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

#### 43. STATE MEAL MANDATE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under California Education Code sections 49530, 49530.5 and 49550.

#### 44. MONITORING

CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for periodic monitoring of each student's instructional program and shall be invited to participate in the formal review of each student's progress. LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student's records and progress. Such access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office. CONTRACTOR shall be invited to participate in the review of each student's progress.

If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction ("Superintendent") shall monitor CONTRACTOR'S facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and (3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three.

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA and CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the nonpublic school, compliance with relevant state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or corrective action procedures related to review findings.

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause. The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California Education Code Section 33126.

#### PERSONNEL

# 45. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS \*See attached Addendum

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237, 35021.1 and 35021.2 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California Department of

Justice (hereinafter referred to as "CDOJ") and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers who will have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, or subcontractors who may come into contact with students have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee's conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j). Clearance certification shall be submitted to the LEA.

The passage of AB 389 amends Education Code sections 44237 and 56366.1 as to the verification that the CONTRACTOR has received a successful criminal background check clearance and has enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service, as specified, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. Further this bill deletes the exemption for applicants possessing a valid California state teaching credential or who are currently licensed by another state agency that requires a criminal record summary, from submitting two (2) sets of fingerprints for the purpose of obtaining a criminal record summary from the Department of Justice and the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency. Background clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.

#### 46. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations sections 3001(y), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession, and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher's scope of practice.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided to the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)).

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 45340 *et seq.* and 45350 *et seq.* Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services,

shall possess a high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate's (or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

#### 47. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA in writing within thirty (30) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to students as specified in the LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any student.

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is providing services under this Master Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 48. STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute for their student. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative.

# 49. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME

It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified nonpublic school or agency shall adhere to the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall only be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to the CONTRACTOR.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by nonpublic agency providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the CONTRACTOR. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the instructional program.

For services provided in a pupil's home as specified in the IEP, CONTRACTOR must assure that the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written shall also be provided to the LEA.

#### **HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES**

#### 50. HEALTH AND SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 *et. seq.*, 49406, and Health and Safety Code Section 3454(a) regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual comes in contact with a student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code.

#### 51. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to: disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning permits; and occupancy capacity. When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR's facilities as required complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the

LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 52. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49423 when CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the administration of such medication after the student's parent(s) provides to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student's parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician's statement. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to whom medication is administered. Such written log shall specify the student's name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR's employee who administered the medication. CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for assuring appropriate staff training in the administration of such medication consistent with physician's written orders. Any change in medication type, administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.

#### 53. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures specified in LEA Procedures.

#### 54. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e. reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA.

#### 55. SEXUAL HARASSMENT

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR's policy, as well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.

#### 56. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 49370. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of

staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The written statement shall be submitted as specified by the LEA.

#### FINANCIAL

# 57. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the school or agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services specified in the student's IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides. Original attendance forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being billed for payment.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be properly submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA in the LEA Procedures. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when the service was provided.

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training.

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days of LEA's receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as

specified in California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA.

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond December 31<sup>st</sup> after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or rebilling error is the responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year. LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee.

#### 58. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole or in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive services; (c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more students enrolled in CONTRACTOR's educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student's change of residence to another district or confirms the change or residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA within five (5) days of such confirmation; or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for regular ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety (90) days. The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected.

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding paragraph are as follows: (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of overpayment; (c) the entire amount of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e) the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service provided to the student.

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA's withholding payment and the amount to

be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA's withholding payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies. Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR's written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR's time to correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied.

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR's notice within thirty (30) business days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the withholding of payment continues after the LEA's response to CONTRACTOR's notice, CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.

<u>After forty-five (45) business days</u>: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA's Representative of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in writing within fifteen (15) business days.

<u>After sixty (60) business days</u>: Disagreements between the LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code Section 56366(c) (2).

#### 59. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students.

#### 60. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES

#### NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE

Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher.

Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in student's IEP.

#### NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, no later than the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) cumulative day of a student's unexcused absence, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence as specified in the LEA Procedures.

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. LEA shall not pay for services provided on days that a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under state law. *Per Diem* rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance ("ADA") reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-up services.

#### NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. LEA shall not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not provided shall be included.

#### NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) consecutive service day of the student's absence, as specified in the LEA Procedures. LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services when a student is absent.

#### 61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides, bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents evidencing other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state nonpublic school and/or agency certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Such access shall include unannounced inspections by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR's offices (to be specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided to LEA within five (5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide assistance for such examination or audit. LEA's rights under this section shall also include access to CONTRACTOR's

offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR's employees. If any document or evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA agrees to the use of the electronic format.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA's written notice demanding payment.

#### 62. RATE SCHEDULE

The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on the required minimum number of minutes per grade level as noted in California Education Code Section 46200-46208.

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A.

#### 63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that:

- (a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are <u>not</u> presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency, and
- (b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these offenses.

The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives. This contract is effective on the  $1^{st}$  day of July, 2019 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2020, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

#### CONTRACTOR

#### **Devereux Texas Treatment Network**

Nonpublic School/Agency

/	aulight		10/23/10
By: Sig	nature	Date	

Pamela E. Reed, Executive Director

Name and Title of Authorized Representative

LEA
-----

**East Bay Innovation Academy** 

LEA Name

By: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Signature

Date

Name and Title of Authorized Representative

Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to:	Notices to LEA shall be addressed to:			
Name and Title	Name and Title			
Penny Milner, Contracts Manager	Devin Krugman, Head of School			
Nonpublic School/Agency/Related Service Provider	LEA			
Devereux Texas Treatment Network	East Bay Innovation Academy			
Address	Address			
1150 Devereux Drive	3400 Malcolm Ave			
City State Zip	City State Zip			
League City, TX 77573	Oakland, CA 94605			
Phone Fax	Phone Fax			
281-316-5433 281-554-7447	510-577-9557			
Email	Email			
pmilner@devereux.org	dkrugman@eastbayia.org			

Additional LEA Notification (Required if completed)

Edmund Zander, Dire	ector of Student S	Support Services
Name and Title		
3400 Malcolm Ave		
Address		
Oakland, CA 94605		
City	State	Zip
510-577-95 <mark>57</mark>		
Phone	Fax	
edmund.zander@e	astbayia.org	
Email		

# EXHIBIT A: 2019-2020 RATES \*See attached Addendum

#### 4.1 RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONTRACT YEAR

The CONTRACTOR: <u>Devereux Texas Treatment Network</u>
The CONTRACTOR CDS NUMBER: <u>77-76422-6131056</u>

PER ED CODE 56366 – TEACHER-TO-PUPIL RATIO:12:1

Maximum Contract Amount: \$75,000.00

Education service(s) offered by the CONTRACTOR and the charges for such service(s) during the term of this contract shall be as follows:

- 1) Daily Basic Education Rate: \$138.97
- 2) Inclusive Education Program

(Includes Educational Counseling (not ed related mental health) services, Speech & Language services, Behavior Intervention Planning, and Occupational Therapy as specified on the student's IEP.) DAILY RATE: <u>N/A</u>

#### 3) <u>Related Services</u>

SERVICE	<u>RATE</u>	PERIOD
Intensive Individual Services (340) 1:1 Supervision	\$25.00	Hourly
Language and Speech (415)	\$110.00	Hourly
Adapted Physical Education (425)		
Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)		
Health and Nursing: Other Services (436)	······································	
Assistive Technology Services (445)		
Occupational Therapy (450)	100.00	Hourly
Physical Therapy (460)		
Individual Counseling (510)	\$185.09	Daily
Counseling and Guidance (515)		,
Parent Counseling (520)		
Social Work Services (525)		
Psychological Services (530)	·	
Behavior Intervention Services (535)		
Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)		

Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing (710)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Interpreter Services (715)		
Audiological Services (720)		
Specialized Vision Services (725)		
Orientation and Mobility (730)		14
Specialized Orthopedic Services (740)		
Reader Services (745)		-
Transcription Services (755)		a v
Recreation Services, Including Therapeutic (760)		
College Awareness (820)		
Work Experience Education (850)		
Job Coaching (855)		
Mentoring (860)		,
Travel Training (870)		
Other Transition Services (890)		
Other (900) Residential Room and Board	\$230.62	Daily



1150 Devereux Drive, League City, Texas 77573 p 281-335-1000 f 281-332-2301 devereux.org

#### Addendum

# To the NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT 2019-20

#### Section 15 - Insurance:

- Items B. and C. Auto and Worker's Compensation claims shall be administered under the laws of the state in which services are performed.
- Item E. Our insurers will not include a non-renewal notice/endorsement as requested. Devereux will endeavor to provide thirty (30) day written notice if needed.
- Item F. Deductible levels will not be reduced. Devereux will provide evidence of crime/fidelity coverage or provide financial documentation demonstrating ability to pay upon request.

#### Section 22 - General Program of Instruction:

Chapter 28 of the Texas Education Code requires Texas Schools to use the Texas Essential Knowledge and Skills (TEKS) as their curriculum because the State of Texas Assessments of Academic Readiness (STAAR) tests are based entirely on those TEKS. Knowing this and knowing that many of our students come from states that adopted the Common Core State Standards (CCSS), we at Devereux are committed to adopting textbooks that are aligned with the CCSS and we will take full advantage of all available online resources to prepare students for your State's test.

#### Section 25 - Calendars:

Devereux Texas operates a year round school with 250 billable attendance days for Fiscal Year 2019-20 based on the official School Calendar attached.

#### Section 45 – Personnel, Clearance Requirements:

Pre-employment criminal history background, fingerprint clearances, and subsequent notice services are obtained through the appropriate agencies of the state in which services are performed. A complete staff list with clearance dates including tuberculosis screening is also submitted to the California Department of Education on a monthly basis.

#### Section 62, Exhibit A – Rate Schedule:

A Service Fee Description is attached to include all rates and programs offered by Devereux Texas.

Executive Director, Devereux Texas

East Bay Innovation Academy Representative



# SERVICE FEE DESCRIPTION

FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2019 - JUNE 30, 2020

League City Long Term - Units 2 & 3	Per Diem	Days	Annual Cost	Daily	Monthly
Room & Board	\$230.62	366	\$84,406.92		11 I. 11 I.
Mental Health	\$185.09	366	\$67,742.94		
Special Education	\$138.97	250	\$34,742.50		
Total Per Diem			\$186,892.36	\$511.00	\$15,574.00

League City Residential - Units 1, 4, 5 & 6	Per Diem	Days	Annual Cost	Daily	Monthly
Room & Board	\$230.62	366	\$84,406.92		
Mental Health	\$135.23	366	\$49,494.18		
Special Education	\$132.82	250	\$33,205.00		
Total Per Diem	10 A	1	\$167,106.10	\$457.00	\$13,926.00

Related Services - League City Programs	Rate	Frequency	
*One-to-One Supervision	\$25.00	Per Hour	1.15
Speech & Language Services	\$110.00	Per Hour	1.1.1.1
Speech & Language Evaluation	\$350.00	Per Evaluation	
Occupational Therapy	\$100.00	Per Hour	
Occupational Therapy Evaluation	\$250.00	Per Evaluation	
Evaluations / Assessments	at Provider	Cost	

Victoria Children's Program	Per Diem	Days	Annual Cost	Daily	Monthly
Room & Board	\$188.68	366	\$69,056.88		
Mental Health	\$69.37	366	\$25,389.42		
Special Education	\$150.03	250	\$37,507.50		
Total Per Diem			\$131,953.80	\$361.00	\$10,996.00

Victoria Transitional Program	Per Diem	Days	Annual Cost	Daily	Monthly
Room & Board	\$230.62	366	\$84,406.92		
Mental Health	\$57.71	366	\$21,121.86		
Special Education	\$109.08	250	\$27,270.00		1
Total Per Diem			\$132,798.78	\$363.00	\$11,067.00

Victoria Enhanced Program	Per Diem	Days	Annual Cost	Daily	Monthly
Room & Board	\$230.62	366	\$84,406.92	ta tras	25 a
Mental Health	\$689.91	366	\$252,507.06	]	
Special Education	\$295.41	250	\$73,852.50		
Total Per Diem		1	\$410,766.48	\$1,122.00	\$34,231.00

<b>Related Services - Victoria Programs</b>	Rate	Frequency	
*One-to-One Supervision	\$25.00	Per Hour	
Speech & Language Services	\$135.00	Per Hour	
Speech & Language Evaluation	\$260.00	Per Evaluation	
Occupational Therapy	\$270.00	Per Hour	
Occupational Therapy Evaluation	\$300.00	Per Evaluation	
Evaluations / Assessments	at Provider	Cost	

The daily fee does not cover, and Devereux shall not be responsible for client's medical, pharmacy, dental, vision, medical insurance premiums, personal and clothing expenses, transportation to and from Devereux and other expenses generally considered as being personal to an individual in residential placement. Devereux will provide or obtain transportation for the client to a hospital and/or physician's office when needed.

\* Devereux will provide 1:1 supervision when an individual's dangerous behaviors cannot be safely managed without the supervision of a dedicated 1:1 staff member. In these rare instances, 1:1 supervision will begin at the onset of significantly unsafe behaviors. The treatment team will promptly notify the funder of the 1:1 supervision, regularly evaluate for safety, and discontinue 1:1 supervision as soon as possible.

		Γ		Total	Days	Γ	31		31		8	24	5	30		31	1			Total	Days		31	00	22	31		30		5	30	] [	366					
			Week		Days D		80		6	-	თ	α	>	თ		σ			Week	End To	Days Da		8	c	2	ດ		8		2	8		104 3					
				1		-	-		~	,	-	C	,	2		2		ler	1.				7		-	0	-	-		-	0	1						
			Teacher	Holiday	Days													Teacher	Vacation	Holiday	Days												12					
		and the second se		School	Days		22		21		20	23	2	19		20				School	Days		21	0	2	22		21		20	22		250					
				Т	ш			8	s		+	Т	60	Т		Γ				<i>"</i>	F	31	s	Т	+	Т			29	~	Г							
					T			29	s		20	5 0	+	Sau							Т	-	s		1		30	-		0	$\vdash$		20					
					N	31	-	28	-		+	2 0									N	1	s				29			0	T		ne zu		(1)	210	1 0	
					T	30	ш	27	s		00	2 0	26	s	31	s					T	28	s		31	S		-	26	000	ш		IOLAL July 2019 - June 2020			KSY:		
		61			Σ	29	ш	26	s	30	n %	9 v.	25	s	30	s					M	27	s		30	S	27	s	25	59 1	ш		y 201					
		1/22/2019			ш	26	ш	23	s	27	0 4	3 0	22	s	27	s					н	24	S	v 78	27	s	24	s	2	26 0	ш		In J					
					Т	25	ш	3	s	26	0 2	t v	21	s	26	s					T	23	S	21	26	s	23	s	21	25	ш	L L C L	IUIAI					
tion		Last Kevised:			>	24	ш	51	S	25	0 8	3 0	20	s	25	т					>	ដ	S	97 v	25	S	ដ	s	20	24 0	ш					INI	<u> </u>	
duca		Last K			F	23	ш	20	s	24	0 8	3 0	19	s	24	Т					T	51	S	22 0	24	S	5	S	6 0	33	ш					HVPERION	TX1	
City E					Z	22	ш	10	s	53	0 5	v v	9	S	23	s					×	20	-	24	33	S	8	S	<u>م</u>	22	ш					Ч		
Texas - League City Education	i ]				ц	19	ш	9	-	2	0 <del>0</del>	2 0	15	S	20	s					ш	17	S	2	20	S	1	S	5	96	s				011	Зц	JI	
s - Le		Ì	<u> </u>		T	18	ш	15	ш	6	0	- 0	14	S	19	s					H	16	S	20	19	S	16	S	4	<b>∞</b>	S					CENSUS	5	
Texa		Ctoto	State: 1A		>	17	ш	14	ш	<u>م</u>	0 4	2 0	13	S	18	s					3	15	S	5 0	18	S	15	S	13	1	s							
					-	16	ш	13	ш	40	0 4	2 0	12	S	17	s					F	14	S	2 v.	17	S	4	S	20	9	s						SOCAL	
		10			Σ	15	ш	12	ш	9	0 2	t s	11	s	16	s					z	13	s :	7 +	16	S	13	S	= 0	15	s					CMHC	2151 - 460CAL1	
SAM:		1612-11	400	and the second second	ш	12	ш	ດ	ш	33	0 5	5	00	S	13	s					ш	9	s,	4 v.	13	S	9	- (	x (	5	s					C	21	
CENTER/PROGRAM:	-				T	1	ш	ω I	ш	24	0	2 0	2	s	12	S					-	σ	s,	2 0	12	S	ດ	2	- 0	5	s							
ER/P	Ģ	Program/RU:	-		3	10	ш		ш :	Ęu	0 0	n v	ဖ	s	11	s					3	00	s	2 0	1-	S	ω	so o	0	90	s						etc.)	
CENT		Progr	Center.		H	თ	ш	ωI	ш	90	οα	o v	S	s	10	S					F	~	s :	- 0	10	s	2	<i>s</i>	n u	00	s						School Closed due to Emergency (Weather, etc.)	
					Σ	ω	ш	5	ш	თ <b>ძ</b>	0	S	4	s	6	s					Σ	ω	s,	2 0	0	S	6	so .	4 0	0 00	S						cy (We	
				Contraction of Contraction	Ч	S	ш	~	ш	<b>0</b> 0	0 4	r s	-	s	9	s	8				щ	m (	s I	- 0	9	S	m	so .	- 0	o v	s						nergen	
					T	4	т	- 1	ш	<b>5</b> 0	0 ~	n v			2	s					F	2	s	0 0	S	S	2	0		4	s		2	14141-	able)	VEC	e to Err	
					3	ო	ш			4 0	0 0	v s			4	s					3	-	I I	ດທ	4	S	-	2		e	s		1001		ling-uo	I look-	ed due	
					T	2	ш		1	<b>т</b> и	0 +	- 0			3	s					-		•	4 03	e	S				2	S	de Coh	Idi oci	ay in the	N) UOI	iei ided St	ol Clos	
					M	-	ш		-		E	T			2	s					Σ		•	n n	2	S				-	s		- Regular School Day	= Holiday	= Vacation (Non-Billable) = Teacher	= reacher = Extended School Dav	= Schoo	
			Year 2019		Month	JULY		AUG		SEPT	LUC	3	NON		DEC				Year 2020		Month	NAL		Ξ.	MAR		APR		MAY	JUNE					" " > F		" 3	

DEVEREUX FOUNDATION

Powered by BoardOnTrack

G:\Admin\School Calendars\FY 2019-20\League City 2019-20 Educ 250-day cal.xlsx 3/22/2019

			Total	Davs		31		31		30		31		30		31				Total	Days	Γ	31	Γ	29		31		30		31		30	000	200				
			Week			Ø		თ		თ		ω		თ		σ			Week	End	Days		8		თ		ດ		8		10		80		104				
			Vacation Holidav	-		~		~		~		0		2		2		Teacher			Days		2		-		0	-	-		-		0	40					
		Tea		122	-	22		21		20		23		19		20	192	Tea	Vac			BAS	-	-	19	Line.	22		-	655	20	335	22	1					
			School	Days		2		2		2		2		-		2				School	Days		21		-		2		21		~		2	JED	1007				
				LL.			30	S					29	Т			1				щ	31	S							29	S								
				F			29	s			31	S	28	H							F	30	s					30	S	28	S			000	242				
				8	31	ш	28	s			30	s	27	s							3	29	s	S.				29	s	27	S			TOTA1 1110 2019 - P100 VIII	1 2 1 1		210	40	
-				H	30	ш	27	s			29	S	26	S	31	s					T	28	s			31	S	28	S	26	S	30	ш	10.1	5		RSY:	ESY:	
Source Control	2019			Σ	29	ш	26	s	30	S	28	S	25	S	30	S					M	27	s			30	S	27	S	25	I	29	ш	14, 20					
	1/22/2019			ш	26	ш	23	s	27	s	25	s	22	S	27	s					F	24	s	28	s	27	S	24	S	22	S	50	ш		5				
Conception of	ed:			F	25	ш	22	S	26	s	24	S	21	S	26	S					L	23	s	27	S	26	S	23	S	21	S	27	ш	TOT					
	Last Revised:			3	24	ш	21	S	25	s	23	S	20	S	25	H					8	22	s	26	S	25	S	ដ	S	20	s i	74	ш				NO		
Contraction of the Contraction	Last			F	23		20	S	24	S	22	S	19	S	24	T					T	21	S	25	S	24	S	5	S	19	0	53	ш				HYPERION	TX2	
				Σ	_	ш				S		S		-	23		A.				Σ	20	F	24	S	23	S	8	S	9	20 C	3	ш				Έ		
				ш	19	ш	16		20	_	18	S		S	20	S						-	S	-	-		S		-	_	2	2	S			CENSUS	SITE		7196-20
		State: TX		H	18	ш	15			-	-	S		S	19	S							-	20	_		-	16	_	-	0	2 (	s			CEN	S		719
		Stat		M	17	ш				_	-	_		-	18	S							-		-		-	15	-	_	n (	+	ŝ				<u>o</u>	AL4	AL18
A DECEMBER OF A	12-719			T	16			ш	_	-				-	17	S				1			-	18		-	-	-	-	-	+	+	ŝ				CMHC ID NO.	460C	460C/
	11-7192, 12-7196				-	_	_	ш	-	-	-	-	-	-								-	S	_		-	S	-	-	-	+	+	-				CMH	7192 - 460CAL4	196 -
	11-	460		ш.	-	-		ш	-	-	-	-	-							-		-	S	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	+	-						
	RU:			L I	-		-	ш	-		-	-	-	_	1 12	-				and the second se		თ	-	-	-	-	S	+	-	-	+	+	n N						~
	Program/RU:	nter:		N .	10	ш		ш			_	S	_		10 11	S					8	00	-	-	-	-	S	-	-	-	-	+	<i>n</i>						er, etc.
	Pre	ပီ		LV	-			ш	-	_	-	s	-	_		-					Σ	6	-	-	_	-	S I	-	S	-		+	_						Weath
					_			ш	_		_	-	-	s						1000		-	s	-	-	-	+	+	+	-		+	-						gency
			C.	T		100		ш	_	-	_	_			5	-				and the second se	-	-	s	-	-	-	+	+	-		-	1 0	-			le)		_	Emer
				M	3	193		-	-	s	-	-	-		4					et of a local de la local de l	~	-	I		-	-	+	-	+	+	-	2	-	ol Day		h-Billab		ool Day	I due to
			5		2			-	с С	_	-	-	-		ო					ŀ	-			-	s	-	+	-	+	+	+	10	-	r Schoe		n (Nor	-	ed Sch	Closed
				M		ш		-	2			-	-	-	2						N		-	-	s	-	+	-	-	+	-	- 0	-	= Regular School Day	= Holiday	= Vacation (Non-Billable)	= Teacher	= Extended School Day	= School Closed due to Emergency (Weather, etc.)
		0100 2007	6107		_		ບ ບ	-			<u>ה</u>	-	2	_		_			Year 2020	0000		z	+	_			-	щ щ	-		+		-		100				
		ACON		Month	JULY		AUG		SEPT		OCT		NON		DEC			3	Year	N	INDUIRI	NAL		FEB		MAR		APR		MAY		2		S	I	>	T	ш	5

DEVEREUX FOUNDATION Texas - Victoria Education FISCAL YEAR 2019-20

CENTER/PROGRAM:

106 of 199

G:\Admin\School Calendars\FY 2019-20\Victoria 2019-20 Educ 250-day cal.xlsx 3/22/2019



# Master Contract

# **2019-20**20

Г

	LEA		AND AGENCY SERVICES											
	LEA	EAST I	3AY INNOVATION ACADEMY											
		Contract Year	2019-2020											
	X	Nonpublic School												
		Nonpublic Agency	,											
Type of Co	ontract:													
	Master Contract for t the term of this contr		vidual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughou											
X	Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student.													
	purpose of this Interi		us fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole e for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days te:											
			f any Master Contract, the changes specified above - Term of Master Contract.											

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

AUTH	ORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS	_ 1
1.	MASTER CONTRACT	1
2.	CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES	1
3.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS	2
4.	TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT	2
5.	INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATIONOR TERMINATION	3
6.	INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT	3
7.	DEFINITIONS	4
ADMI	NISTRATION OF CONTRACT	_ 5
8.	NOTICES	5
9.	MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS	
10.	SEVERABILITY CLAUSE	
11.	SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST	6
12.	VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW	6
13.	MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES	6
14.	TERMINATION	7
15.	INSURANCE	7
16.	INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS	9
17.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	9
18.	SUBCONTRACTING	_ 10
19.	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	_ 10
20.	NON-DISCRIMINATION	_ 11
EDUCA	ATIONAL PROGRAM	_ 11
21.	FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)	_ 11
22.	GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION	_ 12
23.	INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES	_ 13
24.	CLASS SIZE	_ 13
25.	CALENDARS	_ 13
26.	DATA REPORTING	_ 14
27.	LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT	_ 15
28.	STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING	_ 15

29.	MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS	15
30.	POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS	
31.	STUDENT DISCIPLINE	
32.	IEP TEAM MEETINGS	
33.	SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH	18
34.	DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS	18
35.	COMPLAINT PROCEDURES	18
36.	STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS	18
37.	TRANSCRIPTS	
38.	STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE	19
39.	WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM	20
40.	PARENT ACCESS	
41.	SERVICES AND SUPERVISION AND PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT	20
42.	LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION ("LCI") CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER ("RTC") CONTRACTORS	
43.	STATE MEAL MANDATE	22
44.	MONITORING	22
PERSO	NNEL	22
45.	CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS	22
46.	STAFF QUALIFICATIONS	
47.	VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS	24
48.	STAFF ABSENCE	
49.	STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME	25
HEALTI		
50.	HEALTH AND SAFETY	25
51.	FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS	25
52.	ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION	25
53.	INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING	26
54.	CHILD ABUSE REPORTING	26
55.	SEXUAL HARASSMENT	26
56.	REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN	26
FINANCIAL 26		
57.	ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING PROCEDURES	

58.	RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT	28
59.	PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES	29
60.	PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES	29
61.	INSPECTION AND AUDIT	30
62.	RATE SCHEDULE	31
63.	DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION	31
EXHIB	TTA: 2019-2020 RATES	32
EXHIB	IT B: 2019-2020 ISA	

### 2019-2020

### **CONTRACT NUMBER:**

## LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY: <u>East Bay Innovation Academy</u> NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: <u>La Cheim School, Inc.</u>

### NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT

#### AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### 1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract is entered into on July 1, 2019, between <u>East Bay Innovation Academy</u>, herein <u>after ref</u>erred to as the local educational agency ("LEA"), a member of the El Dorado Coun<u>ty Charter</u> <u>SELPA and La Cheim School, Inc.</u> (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as NPS/A or "CONTRACTOR" for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 *et seq.* and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 *et seq.*, AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this agreement does not commit LEA to pay for special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA") and a Nonpublic Services student Enrollment form as specified in the LEA Procedures. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all services specified in the student's Individualized Education Plan (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days of a student's enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each student served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent or authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with nonpublic school placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a nonpublic school placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent.

#### 2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency. All nonpublic school and nonpublic agency services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 *et seq* and within the professional scope of practice of each provider's license, certification and/or credential. A current copy of CONTRACTOR's nonpublic school/agency certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code

section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this contract is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated contract.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state to license, to provide nonmedical care to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional needs. The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child, and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed. If the CONTRACTOR operates a program outside of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the appropriate licensing agency in both California and in the state where the LCI is located.

With respect to CONTRACTOR's certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS

During the term of this contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to, the provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a).

#### 4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

The term of this Master Contract shall be from July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years. However, the parties acknowledge that any subsequent Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2019. In the event the contract is not renegotiated by June 30<sup>th</sup>, an interim contract may be made available as mutually agreed upon for up to 90 days from July 1 of the new fiscal year. (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No

Master Contract will be offered unless and until all of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR is at the sole discretion of the LEA.

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR's ownership or authorized representative shall be provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized representative.

#### 5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATIONOR TERMINATION

This Master Contract includes each Individual Services Agreement and they are incorporated herein by this reference. This Master Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement. This Master Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract or a renewal.

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of teacher credentials and clearance, insurance documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued. If CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new Master Contract's effective date. If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such ninety day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion of the LEA.

#### 6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This contract shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect. In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students.

Any and all changes to a student's educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student's IEP. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a student's parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student's IEP subject to all procedural safeguards required by law.

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5) business days of the last date a service was provided. CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent

compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result of lack of provision of services while student was served by the nonpublic school or agency.

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, CONTRACTOR shall abide by the "stay-put" requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code section 56366(c) (2).

#### 7. **DEFINITIONS**

The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract:

- a. The term "CONTRACTOR" means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the California Department of Education and its officers, agents and employees.
- b. The term "authorized LEA representative" means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible for nonpublic school/agencies. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA maintains sole responsibility for the contract, unless otherwise specified in the contract.
- c. The term "credential" means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g).
- d. The term "qualified" means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and designated instruction and services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which he or she is providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations. (Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (r)).

e The term "license" means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to themselves using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental health and

board and care services at a residential placement. If a license is not available through an appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(l).

- f. "Parent" means a biological or adoptive parent, unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal authority to make educational decisions for the child, a guardian generally authorized to act as the child's parent or authorized to make educational decisions for the child, an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally responsible for the child's welfare, a surrogate parent, a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational decisions on the child's behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2). Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the nonpublic school or agency under contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services for a child. (California Education Code section 56028).
- g. The term "days" means calendar days unless otherwise specified.
- h. The phrase "billable day" means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs.
- i. The phrase "billable day of attendance" means a school day as defined in California Education Code Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA.
- j. It is understood that the term "Master Contract" also means "Agreement" and is referred to as such in this document.

#### **ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT**

#### 8. NOTICES

All notices provided for by this contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of the Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of this Master Contract.

#### 9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master Contract, "records" shall include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through

additional instructional assistants, NPA behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state nonpublic school and/or agency certifications by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Positive attendance is required.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of CONTRACTOR's employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an access log for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, and date/time of access for each individual requesting or receiving information from the student's record. Such log needs to record access to the student's records by: (a) the student's parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the student's parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records. For purposes of this paragraph, "employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR" do not include subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall grant parents access to student records, and comply with parents' requests for copies of student records, as required by state and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency closure, to forward student records within ten (10) business days to LEA. These shall include, but not limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, and reports. LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within five (5) business days.

#### **10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE**

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

#### 11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

This contract binds CONTRACTOR's successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of any change of ownership or corporate control.

#### 12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the County where the LEA is located.

# 13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking such modification

shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days' notice of any such changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which the modification or changes are based.

#### 14. **TERMINATION**

This Master Contract or Individual Service Agreement may be terminated for cause. The cause shall not be the availability of a public class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the public school program at an IEP team meeting. To terminate the contract either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Master Contract. ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 5 or 6. CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice.

#### 15. INSURANCE

CONTRACTOR shall, at his, her, or its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term of this Agreement, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof:

#### **PART I**

- A. **Commercial General Liability Insurance**, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:
  - \$2,000,000 per occurrence
  - \$ 500,000 fire damage
  - \$,000 medical expenses
     \$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury
     \$3,000,000 general aggregate
     \$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual molestation or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR's policy should have an exclusion for sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a supplemental policy providing such coverage.

B. **Business Auto Liability Insurance** for all owned scheduled, non-owned or hired automobiles with a \$1 million combined single limit.

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.

If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from students' homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements.

C. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance in a form and amount covering CONTRACTOR's full liability under the California Workers' Compensation Insurance and Safety Act and in accordance with applicable state and federal laws.

Part A – Statutory Limits Part B - \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000/\$1,000,000 Employers Liability

D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, including Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits:

\$1,000,000 per occurrence \$2,000,000 general aggregate

- E. CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this contract and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of Education additional insured's premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR's obligations under this contract at no additional charge.
- F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above \$100,000 must be declared to and approved by the LEA. At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR's sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation.
- G. For any claims related to the services, the CONTRACTOR's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects to the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- H. All Certificates of Insurance may reference the contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on the certificate.

# PART II - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY ("RTC")

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school affiliated with a **residential treatment center (NPS/RTC**), the following insurance policies are required:

- A. Commercial General Liability coverage of \$3,000,000 per Occurrence and \$6,000,000 in General Aggregate. The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as *named* additional insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC's insurance primary despite any conflicting provisions in the RTC's policy. Coverage shall be maintained with no Self-Insured Retention above \$100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA.
- B. **Workers' Compensation Insurance** in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance

coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of **\$1,000,000/\$1,000,000**.

- C. **Commercial Auto Liability** coverage with limits of **\$1,000,000** Combined Single Limit per Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides student bus services, the required coverage limit is \$5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence.
- D. Fidelity Bond or Crime Coverage shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be \$250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured retention.
- E. **Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice** coverage with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.
- F. **Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage**, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum limits of **\$3,000,000** per occurrence and **\$6,000,000** general aggregate.

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations.

#### 16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors ("LEA Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall arise immediately upon tender of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR. The LEA and the Member District(s) shall have the right in their sole discretion to select counsel of its choice to provide the defense at the sole cost of the CONTRACTOR or the applicable insurance carrier.

To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors ("CONTRACTOR Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent or willful act or omission of LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities).

LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the state of California, that the selfinsurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its self-insurance covers LEA's indemnification obligations under this Master Contract.

#### 17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this Agreement as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any

commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.

If the LEA is held to be a partner, joint venturer, co-principle, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that holding, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.

#### 18. SUBCONTRACTING

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract. In the event LEA determines that it can provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s). If LEA elects to provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of receipt of CONTRACTOR's original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s).

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the fullest extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the provision of special education and/or related services (including without limitation transportation) for any student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term of each subcontract. Such subcontractor's insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage required by Section 15. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor's work commences. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA Board of Education as additional insured.

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract. All Certificates of Insurance may reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate. In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in Section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.

#### **19.** CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student's advocate. Pursuant to California Education code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at CONTRACTOR's facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest.

Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, LEA shall neither execute an ISA with CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR

to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e. before or after the student is enrolled in CONTRACTOR's school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as "IEE") and its recommendations, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom the IEE is requested. Likewise, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund services through the evaluator whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund. When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE.

When CONTRACTOR is a Nonpublic Agency, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an individual who was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty five (365) days prior to executing this contract. This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to ten months of the school year by LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a private pay or tuition free "scholarship" basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings.

#### 20. NON-DISCRIMINATION

CONTRACTOR shall not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of gender, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, or disability or any other classification protected by federal or state law, in employment or operation of its programs.

#### EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

#### 21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)

LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan (hereinafter referred to as "ITP") of each student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide to each student special education and/or related services (including transition services) within the nonpublic school or nonpublic agency consistent with the student's IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services outlined in the student's IEP. If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease.

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities for students, as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student's enrollment under the terms of this Master Contract). LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence disabilities when specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the nonpublic school. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent

health and safety regulations. CONTRACTOR may charge a student's parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility.

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education shall not interfere with the student's receipt of special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in writing.

#### 22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION

All nonpublic school and nonpublic agency services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 *et seq.*, and shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment, which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize evidence-based practices and predictors and be consistent with LEA's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Students shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted Common Core State Standards ("CCSS") for curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive; and provide standards – aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used by a local education agency (LEA), that contracts with the nonpublic school: (b) college preparation courses; (c) extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college counseling.

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades nine through twelve inclusive, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading toward graduation or completion of LEA's diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall not award a high school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA's graduation requirements.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and predictors and be consistent with LEA and CDE guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. The nonpublic agency providing Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the nature of their nonpublic agency service for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA. School-based services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. Except for services provided by a CONTRACTOR that is a licensed children's institution, all services not provided in the school setting require the presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as requested. Licensed Children's Institution (LCI) CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is present during the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a written

description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master Contract. CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a trained behaviorist or trained equivalent on staff. It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing.

#### 23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and pass time shall be at the same level that Ed. Code prescribes for the LEA.

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

#### 24. CLASS SIZE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing. Upon prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a ratio of 1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to provide services to students with disabilities.

In the event a nonpublic school is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students, and the vacancy has direct impact on the California Department of Education Certification of that school, the nonpublic school shall develop a plan to assure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated staff. The nonpublic school and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may be increased to assure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not apply to a nonpublic agency.

#### 25. CALENDARS

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school calendar with the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent to the number of days determined by the LEA's extended school year calendar. Billable days shall include only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the IEP (developed by the LEA) for each student. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change

its school calendar and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA. Nothing in this Master Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes.

Unless otherwise specified by the students' IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site. A student shall only be eligible for extended school year services if such are recommended by his/her IEP Team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school year shall consist of twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP Team convened by the LEA. Any days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing, prior to the start of the extended school year.

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school year and actually received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any nonpublic school service. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, President's Day, Memorial Day and Independence Day. With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by the LEA.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved calendar prior to the initiation of services. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. Unless otherwise specified in the LEA student's ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those days that the LEA student's school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school. CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the LEA calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing. Student must have actually been in attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any nonpublic agency service provided by CONTRACTOR. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

#### 26. DATA REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing information with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide all data related to any and all sections of this contract and requested by and in the format required by the LEA. It is understood that all nonpublic school and agencies shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to by the LEA. Additional progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access.

The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data including, but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA may approve use of CONTRACTOR'S provided forms at their discretion.

#### 27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive Environment ("LRE") options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate.

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings.

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team's recommended activities to support the transition.

#### 28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer all Statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress ("CAASPP"), Desired Results Developmental Profile ("DRDP"), California Alternative Assessment ("CAA"), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram, , the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("ELPAC"), and as appropriate to the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code section 52052, in the same manner as public schools. Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability program. LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR'S qualified staff. CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as required by LEA.

#### 29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS

CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation, standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, and standardized testing and IEPs. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s).

#### **30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS**

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 56521.1 and 56521.2. LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the federal law and it's implementing regulations. If the Individualized Education Program ("IEP") team determines that a student's behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention Plan ("BIP"), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student's behavioral

problems through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all of its staff members are trained annually in crisis intervention and emergency procedures as related to appropriate behavior management strategies. Training includes certification with an approved SELPA crisis intervention program. Evidence of such training to applicable or relevant staff shall be submitted to the LEA at the beginning of the school year and within six (6) days of any new hire as referenced above.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for a BIP, and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency.

CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others. It requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used. Emergencies *require* a behavior emergency report form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for administrative action. CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone. If the student's IEP does not contain a Behavior Intervention Plan ("BIP") or Positive Behavior Intervention Plan ("PBIP"), an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan. If the student already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule with LEA an IEP meeting within two (2) days.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following: (1) Any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, electric-shock (2) An intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual. (3) An intervention that denies adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities. (4) An intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma. (5) Restrictive interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, including the procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention. (6) Locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room. (7) An intervention that precludes adequate supervision of the individual. (8) An intervention that deprives the individual of one or more of his or her senses. (b) In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child's learning or that of others, the individualized education program team shall consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations.

(Added by Stats. 2013, Ch. 48, Sec. 43. Effective July 1, 2013.)

All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple uses by the same individual. CONTRACTOR shall notify the student's parent/guardian when any type of physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used. Upon the use of any type of physical or mechanical restraint or seclusions of a District student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the reporting and notification requirements listed above.

#### 31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with state and federal law and regulations.

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA and a manifestation IEP team meeting shall be scheduled. Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the student's name; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such discipline report. A copy of the student's behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) day of suspension. CONTRACTOR shall notify and invite LEA representatives to the IEP team meeting where the manifestation determination will be made.

#### **32.** IEP TEAM MEETINGS

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the nonpublic school; and (3) whether changes to the student's IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be transitioned to a public school setting. (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)) and pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).)

If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document, if appropriate, a description of activities provided to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team. Except as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student's IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that attendance at an IEP meeting is part of CONTRACTOR'S professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this Master Contract.

It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for all IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA's discretion. The SELPA shall provide training for any NPS and NPA to assure access to the approved system. The NPS and/or NPA shall maintain confidentiality of all IEP data on the approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the system. When a

student dis-enrolls from the NPS, the NPS/NPA shall discontinue use of the approved system for that student.

Changes in any student's educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student's IEP. In the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student's IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student's placement. Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.

#### 33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 42238.01(b). The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has designated as the educational liaison for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a nonpublic school by the LEA any time after the completion of the pupil's second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless provided notice otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1.

#### 34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations and hearings, as requested by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state and/or federal governmental body or agency. Full participation shall include, but in no way be limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator and/or the immediate provision of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of CONTRACTOR's program and/or the implementation of a particular student's IEP/Individual and Family Service Plan ("IFSP").

#### 35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent complaints. These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 *et seq.*; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ("HIPAA"). CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA.

#### 36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards. At a minimum, progress reports shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A copy of the progress reports/report cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR's place of business and shall be submitted to the LEA and LEA student's parent(s).

The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans. The LEA may request such data at any time within five (5) years of the date of service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data supporting progress within five (5) business days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by the LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the student's annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student's present levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices. CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of its reports, documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days prior to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols and data collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All assessments resulting from an assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that CONTRACTOR perform such additional assessment. Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at the LEA's sole discretion.

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA. For Nonpublic Agency services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065, shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA. Supervision means the direct observation of services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each professional's license, certification, or credential.

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student's parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings. It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil's record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request.

#### 37. TRANSCRIPTS

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them on LEA approved forms to the student's school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA.

#### 38. STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

Within five (5) school days after CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student's change of residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA of the student's change of residence as specified in LEA Procedures. Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation to notify CONTRACTOR of the student's change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents.

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student's change of residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered after the student's change of residence.

#### 39. WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including student's change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and student's discharge against professional advice from a Nonpublic Schools/Residential Treatment Center ("NPS/RTC").

#### 40. PARENT ACCESS

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters. CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA students.

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent's reasonable request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC. CONTRACTOR shall require that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA at least thirty (30) days in advance. CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations and for providing travel information to the parent as appropriate. Payment by LEA for approved travel-related expenses shall be made directly through the LEA.

CONTRACTOR providing services in the student's home as specified in the IEP shall assure that at least one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an emergency, is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization for emergency situation. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider.

For services provided in a pupil's home as specified in the IEP, CONTRACTOR must assure that the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided to the LEA.

#### 41. SERVICES AND SUPERVISION AND PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT

If CONTRACTOR provides services on LEA public school campuses, CONTRACTOR shall comply with Penal Code Section 627.1 *et. seq.*, and LEA procedures regarding visitors to school campuses specified by LEA policy and in the LEA procedures, and the procedures of the campus being visited. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for purchase and provision of the supplies and assessment tools necessary to implement the provision of services on LEA public school campuses.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed along with all procedures for being on campus consistent with school and LEA policy. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the educational program and all nonpublic agency service providers shall work collaboratively with the classroom teacher, who shall remain in charge of the instructional program.

It is understood, that all employees, subcontractors and volunteers of any certified nonpublic school or agency shall adhere to customary professional standards when providing services. All practices shall be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession. Reports regarding student progress shall be consistent with the provision of the contract.

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student's school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in an emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA.

#### 42. LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION ("LCI") CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER ("RTC") CONTRACTORS

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b), AB 1858 (2004), AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003), AB 1261 (2005), AB 1166 Chapter 171 (2015), AB 167 Chapter 224 (2010), AB 216 Chapter 324 (2013), AB 379 Chapter 772 (2015), AB 1012 Chapter 703 (2015), and the procedures set forth in the LEA Procedures. An LCI shall not require that a pupil be placed in its nonpublic school as a condition of being placed in its residential facility.

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic, nonsectarian school that is owned, operated by, or associated with a residential treatment center (hereinafter referred to as "NPS/RTC"), CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1412(a)(1)(A) and Education Code section 56000, et seq.; amended and reorganized by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA), 20 U.S.C. section 1401(29); Education Code section 56031; Cal. Code Regs., Title 5, section 3001 et seq., Cal. Code Regs., Title 2, section 60100 et seq. regarding the provision of counseling services, including residential care for students to receive a FAPE as set forth in the LEA student's IEPs.

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic, nonsectarian school that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special education. For those identified special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each student's IEP at the time of enrollment.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with nonpublic school placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a nonpublic school placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent or another adult with educational decision-making rights.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

#### 43. STATE MEAL MANDATE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under California Education Code sections 49530, 49530.5 and 49550.

#### 44. MONITORING

CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for periodic monitoring of each student's instructional program and shall be invited to participate in the formal review of each student's progress. LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student's records and progress. Such access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office. CONTRACTOR shall be invited to participate in the review of each student's progress.

If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction ("Superintendent") shall monitor CONTRACTOR'S facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and (3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three.

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA and CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the nonpublic school, compliance with relevant state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or corrective action procedures related to review findings.

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause. The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance.

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California Education Code Section 33126.

#### PERSONNEL

#### 45. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237, 35021.1 and 35021.2 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as "CDOJ") and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers who will have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers,

unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, or subcontractors who may come into contact with students have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee's conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j). Clearance certification shall be submitted to the LEA.

The passage of AB 389 amends Education Code sections 44237 and 56366.1 as to the verification that the CONTRACTOR has received a successful criminal background check clearance and has enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service, as specified, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. Further this bill deletes the exemption for applicants possessing a valid California state teaching credential or who are currently licensed by another state agency that requires a criminal record summary, from submitting two (2) sets of fingerprints for the purpose of obtaining a criminal record summary from the Department of Justice and the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency. Background clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.

#### 46. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations sections 3001(y), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession, and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher's scope of practice.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided to the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)).

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 45340 *et seq.* and 45350 *et seq.* Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate's (or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness,

writing readiness, and mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

#### 47. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA in writing within thirty (30) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to students as specified in the LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any student.

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is providing services under this Master Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 48. STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute for their student. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative.

# 49. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME

It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified nonpublic school or agency shall adhere to the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall only be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to the CONTRACTOR.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by nonpublic agency providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the CONTRACTOR. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the instructional program.

For services provided in a pupil's home as specified in the IEP, CONTRACTOR must assure that the parent or LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written shall also be provided to the LEA.

#### **HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES**

#### 50. HEALTH AND SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 *et. seq.*, 49406, and Health and Safety Code Section 3454(a) regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual comes in contact with a student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code.

#### 51. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to: disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning permits; and occupancy capacity. When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR's facilities as required complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 52. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49423 when CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the administration of such medication after the student's parent(s) provides to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student's parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician's statement. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to whom medication is administered. Such written log shall specify the student's name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR's employee who administered the medication. CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for assuring appropriate staff training in the administration of such medication consistent with physician's written orders. Any change in medication type, administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.

#### 53. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures specified in LEA Procedures.

#### 54. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e. reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA.

#### 55. SEXUAL HARASSMENT

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR's policy, as well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.

#### 56. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 49370. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The written statement shall be submitted as specified by the LEA.

# 57. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the school or agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services specified in the student's IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides. Original attendance forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being billed for payment.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be properly submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA in the LEA Procedures. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when the service was provided.

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training.

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days of LEA's receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA.

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond December 31<sup>st</sup> after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or re-billing error is the responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year. LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee.

#### 58. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole or in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive services; (c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more students enrolled in CONTRACTOR's educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student's change of residence to another district or confirms the change or residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA within five (5) days of such confirmation; or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for regular ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety (90) days. The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected.

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding paragraph are as follows: (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of overpayment; (c) the entire amount of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e) the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service provided to the student.

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA's withholding payment and the amount to be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA's withholding payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies. Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR's written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR's time to correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied.

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR's notice within thirty (30) business days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the withholding of payment continues after the LEA's response to CONTRACTOR's notice, CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.

<u>After forty-five (45) business days</u>: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA's Representative of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in writing within fifteen (15) business days.

<u>After sixty (60) business days</u>: Disagreements between the LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code Section 56366(c) (2).

#### 59. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students.

#### 60. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES

#### NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE

Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher.

Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in student's IEP.

#### NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, no later than the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) cumulative day of a student's unexcused absence, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence as specified in the LEA Procedures.

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. LEA shall not pay for services provided on days that a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under state law. *Per Diem* rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student's attendance

does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance ("ADA") reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-up services.

#### NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. LEA shall not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not provided shall be included.

#### NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) consecutive service day of the student's absence, as specified in the LEA Procedures. LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services when a student is absent.

#### 61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides, bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents evidencing other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state nonpublic school and/or agency certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Such access shall include unannounced inspections by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR's offices (to be specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided to LEA within five (5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide assistance for such examination or audit. LEA's rights under this section shall also include access to CONTRACTOR's offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR's employees. If any document or evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA agrees to the use of the electronic format.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA's written notice demanding payment.

#### 62. RATE SCHEDULE

The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on the required minimum number of minutes per grade level as noted in California Education Code Section 46200-46208.

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A.

#### 63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that:

- (a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are <u>not</u> presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency, and
- (b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these offenses.

The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives. This contract is effective on the  $1^{st}$  day of July, 2019 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2020, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

CONTRACTOR				
La Cheim School, Inc				

LEA East Bay Innovation Academy

Nonpublic School/Agency	LEA Name
Ву:	Ву:
SignatureDateMichael Thomas, CEO	Signature Date
Name and Title of Authorized Representative	Name and Title of Authorized Representative
Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to:	Notices to LEA shall be addressed to:
Karen Jackson, M. Ed Program Director	
Name and Title	Name and Title
La Cheim School, Inc.	EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY
Nonpublic School/Agency/Related Service Provide	er LEA
4892 San Pablo Dam Road	
Address	Address
El Sobrante CA 94803	СА
City State Zip	City State Zip
(510) 243-2360 (510) 243-5293	
Phone Fax	Phone Fax
karen@lacheim.org	
Email	Email
	Additional LEA Notification (Required if completed)
	Name and Title
	Address

State

Fax

Zip

Email

Phone

City

# **Cover Sheet**

# February Intercession Status/Instructional Minute Recovery Due to Dire Days

Section:	III. Academic Excellence
Item:	A. February Intercession Status/Instructional Minute Recovery Due to Dire
Days	
Purpose:	Discuss
Submitted by:	
<b>Related Material:</b>	SY.19-20 Calendar FINAL 2020.01.09.pdf

#### **East Bay Innovation Academy**

#### 2019-2020 School Calendar

July 2019										
Su	М	Tu	W	Th	F	Sa				
	1	2	3	4	5	6				
7	8	9	10	11	12	13				
14	15	16	17	18	19	20				
21	22	23	24	25	26	27				
28	29	30	31							

			0-1		040		
23	<b>C</b>	M		ober 2		-	6.
	Su	M	Tu 1	W 2	Th 3	F 4	Sa 5
	6	7	8	2	ہ 10	4 11	5 12
	13	14	15	16	17	18	12
	20	21	22	23	24	25	26
	27	28	29	30	31		

19	January 2020										
	Su	М	Tu	w	Th	F	Sa				
				1	2	3	4				
	5	6	7	8	9	10	11				
	12	13	14	15	16	17	18				
	19	20	21	22	23	24	25				
	26	27	28	29	30	31					

19			A	oril 20	20		
	Su	М	Tu	w	Th	F	Sa
				1	2	3	4
	5	6	7	8	9	10	11
	12	13	14	15	16	17	18
	19	20	21	22	23	24	25
	26	27	28	29	30		



School Closed: Holiday

Early release

First and Last Day of School, Early release

Intersession, PLP Prep, Capstone Presentations (last week)

PLP Days. No classes for students. 1 hour personalized learning plans appointments will be scheduled for each EBIA student and their guardians School Closed: Faculty PD

State (SBAC) and Advanced Placement (AP) testing

Summer Session

Non-Planned Closure Days- One/both sites may have been impacted

15			Au	gust 2	019		
	Su	м	Tu	w	Th	F	Sa
					1	2	3
	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
	11	(12)	13	14	15	16	17
	18	19	20	21	22	23	24
	25	26	27	28	29	30	31

13			Nove	ember	2019		
	Su	М	Tu	w	Th	F	Sa
							2
	3	A.	3	6	7	8	9
	10	11	12	13	14	15	16
	17	18	19	20	21	22	23
	24	25	26	27	28	29	30

19		February 2020									
	Su	м	Tu	w	Th	F	Sa				
							1				
	2	3	4	5	6	7	8				
	9	10	11	12	13	14	15				
	16	17	18	19	20	21	22				
	23	24	25	26	27	28	29				

20	May 2020										
	Su	м	Tu	w	Th	F	Sa				
						1	2				
	3	4	5	6	7	8	9				
	10	11	12	13	14	15	16				
	17	18	19	20	21	22	23				
	24	25	26	27	28	29	30				
	31										

20	September 2019										
	Su	М	Tu	w	Th	F	Sa				
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7				
	8	9	10	11	12	14	14				
	15	16	17	18	19	20	21				
	22	23	24	25	26	27	28				
	29	30									

15		December 2019								
	Su	М	Tu	w	Th	F	Sa			
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7			
	8	9	10	11	12	13	14			
	15	16	17	18	19	20	21			
	22	23	24	25	26	27	28			
	29	30	31							

18	March 2020										
	Su	м	Tu	w	Th	F	Sa				
	1			4	5	6	7				
	8	9	10	11	12	13	14				
	15	16	17	18	19	20	21				
	22	23	24	25	26	27	28				
	29	30	31								

5	June 2020										
	Su	Ň	Ţu	Ŵ	Ţh	F	Sa				
			2	3	4	5	6				
	7	8	9	10	11	12	13				
	14	15	16	17	18	19	20				
	21	22	23	24	25	26	27				
	28	29	30								



### 2019-2020 CALENDAR OF EVENTS

	DATE	EVENT
	Jul-1	First Day of Summer School
	Jul-4	School Closed-Holiday: Independence Day
	Jul-26	Last Day of Summer School
	Jul-29	First Day of Teacher PD
	Aug-3	Family Work Day at Lower School
	Aug-4	Family Work Day at Upper School
	Aug-8	Orientation for Lower School (New & Returning Day)
	Aug-9	Orientation for Upper School (New & Returning Day)
$\bigcirc$	Aug-12	First Day of School, early release
	Aug-12-16	Early Release
	Aug-14	Family Evening Potluck
	Aug-19	First full day of classes
	Aug-19	First day of Quest (After-school program at Lower School)
	Aug-28	Lower School Back to School Night
	Aug-29	Upper School Back to School Night
	Sep-2	School Closed-Holiday: Labor Day
$\bigcirc$	Sep-TBD	PAC (Parent Advisory Council) meeting
×	Oct-25	End of Trimester 1 & Quest
$\wedge$	Oct-28- Nov-1	Intersession; No Quest
	Oct-30	Teacher Appreciation
	Nov-4-5	PLP Days, no classes
*	Nov-6	Start of Trimester 2 & Quest
	Nov-11	School Closed-Holiday: Veterans Day
	Nov-25-29	School Closed-Holiday: Thanksgiving
	Dec-TBD	PAC (Parent Advisory Council) meeting
	Dec-23-Jan-4	School Closed: Winter Recess
	Jan-6	Classes Resume
	Jan-17	Cafecito @ EBIA Upper School
	Jan-20	School Closed-Holiday: Martin L. King Jr. Day
	Feb-17	School Closed-Holiday: Presidents Day
	Feb-21	Cafecito @ EBIA Lower School
X	Feb-21	End of Trimester 2 & Quest
$\wedge$	Feb-25-28	Intersession; No Quest
	Feb-26	Teacher Appreciation
$\mathbf{\nabla}$	Mar-2-3	PLP Days, no classes
X	Mar-4	Start of Trimester 3 & Quest
$\bigcirc$	Mar-12	PAC (Parent Advisory Council) meeting
	Mar-20	Cafecito @ EBIA Upper School
	Mar-30-Apr-3	School Closed: Spring Recess
	Mar-31	School Closed-Holiday: Cesar Chavez Day
	Apr-6	Classes Resume
	Apr-16	Upper School Course Registration
	Apr-17	Cafecito @ EBIA Lower School
	Apr-18	Springfest (Community Fundraiser on Saturday)
	May-4-15	State & AP Testing
	May-15	Cafecito @ EBIA Upper School
	May-25	School Closed-Holiday: Memorial Day
	May-29	Upper School Graduation
p	Jun-1	Last Day of School for 12th Grade
$\wedge$	Jun-1-4	Capstone Projects, Intersession
Ø	Jun-5	Last Day of School for Students- Early Release
annat la	Jun-5	8th Grade Promotion
	Jun-8	Staff Closing Day- Last Day for Teachers
	54.1.5	

#### KEY

School Closed: Holiday	School Closed: Faculty PD
Early release	State (SBAC) and Advanced Placement (AP) testing
O First and Last Day of School, Early release	PLP Days. Non Instructional Days
Intersession, PLP Prep, Capstone Presentations(last week)	Summer Session
Parent Advisory Council Meeting	Start/End of Trimester
Upper School Event	Lower School Event

# **Cover Sheet**

## Review and Approval of 2018-2019 Final External Audit Report

Section:	IV. Finance and Development
Item:	A. Review and Approval of 2018-2019 Final External Audit Report
Purpose:	Vote
Submitted by:	
Related Material:	EBIA 18-19 Audit Report FINAL.pdf EBIA 18-19 G1 Audit Report FINAL.pdf

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL NUMBER: 1620

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019



CLAconnect.com

WEALTH ADVISORY

OUTSOURCING

AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY TABLE OF CONTENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT	1
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION	3
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES	4
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS	5
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES	6
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	7
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE	14
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME	15
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE	16
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	17
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	18
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN	10
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS	19
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE	21
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS	23
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS	24



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP CLAconnect.com

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors East Bay Innovation Academy Oakland, California

#### **Report on the Financial Statements**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of East Bay Innovation Academy (the Academy), a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.



Board of Directors East Bay Innovation Academy

#### Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to on page 1 present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Academy as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Other Matters**

#### Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the Academy's financial statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued a report dated November 22, 2019 on our consideration of the Academy's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness on the Academy's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Academy's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Clifton Larson Allen LLP

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Glendora, California November 22, 2019

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION JUNE 30, 2019

#### ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS Cash and Cash Equivalents Accounts Receivable - Federal and State Accounts Receivable - Other Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets	\$ 181,425 975,343 19,659 73,034
Total Assets	\$ 1,249,461
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS	
CURRENT LIABILITIES Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities Revolving Loan Payable, Current Portion Total Current Liabilities Total Liabilities	\$ 605,955 50,008 655,963 655,963
NET ASSETS Without Donor Restrictions With Donor Restrictions Total Net Assets Total Liabilities and Net Assets	\$ 553,540 39,958 593,498 1,249,461

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	Without Donor Restrictions		With Donor Restrictions		Total
REVENUES					
State Revenue:					
State Aid	\$	3,290,679	\$	-	\$ 3,290,679
Other State Revenue		996,881		3,748	1,000,629
Federal Revenue:					
Grants and Entitlements		370,179		-	370,179
Local Revenue:					
In-Lieu Property Tax Revenue		1,362,254		-	1,362,254
Contributions		195,503		-	195,503
Interest Income		2		-	2
Other Local Revenue		161,231		36,210	197,441
Other Revenue		98,917		-	98,917
Total Revenues		6,475,646		39,958	 6,515,604
EXPENSES					
Program Services		5,959,511		-	5,959,511
Management and General		458,535		-	458,535
Fundraising		6,313			 6,313
Total Expenses		6,424,359		-	 6,424,359
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS		51,287		39,958	91,245
Net Assets, Beginning of Year		502,253		-	 502,253
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR	\$	553,540	\$	39,958	\$ 593,498

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

#### CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets	\$ 91,245
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash	
Used by Operating Activities:	
Change in Operating Assets:	
Accounts Receivable - Federal and State	(434,611)
Accounts Receivable - Other	(3,654)
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets	(28,345)
Change in Operating Liabilities:	
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities	273,063
Deferred Revenue	 (50,000)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities	(152,302)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES	
Repayments of Debt	(49,998)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities	 (49,998)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	(202,300)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year	 383,725
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR	\$ 181,425
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION Cash Paid for Interest	\$ 3,927

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	Program Services		Management and General		Fundraising		Total Expenses
Compensation and related expenses							
Salaries - Certificated	\$	2,716,516	\$	39,058	\$	-	\$ 2,755,574
Salaries - Classified		561,219		44,500		-	605,719
Employee Benefits		792,499		12,475		-	804,974
Books and Supplies		382,003		13,650		-	395,653
Travel and Conferences		1,086		-		-	1,086
Dues and Memberships		12,449		-		-	12,449
Operation and Housekeeping Services		136,373		15,628		-	152,001
Rental, Leases, and Repairs		370,405		63,647		-	434,052
Communications		23,346		255		-	23,601
Professional/ Consulting Services and							
Operating Expenditures		963,615		222,885		6,313	1,192,813
Direct Support/Indirect Cost Charges		-		46,437		-	46,437
Total	\$	5,959,511	\$	458,535	\$	6,313	6,424,359

#### NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### Nature of Activities

East Bay Innovation Academy (the Academy) is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation and is organized to manage and operate a public charter schools located in Alameda County. The Academy is economically dependent on state and federal funding.

The charter may be revoked by the Oakland Unified School District for material violations of the charter, failure to meet pupil outcomes identified in the charter, failure to meet generally accepted standards of fiscal management, or violation of any provision of the law.

#### Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Academy defines its cash and cash equivalents to include only cash on hand, demand deposits, and liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

#### Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

#### **Basis of Accounting**

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual method of accounting and accordingly reflect all significant receivables and liabilities.

#### Functional Allocation of Expenses

Costs of providing the Academy's programs and other activities have been presented in the statement of functional expenses. During the year, such costs are accumulated into separate groupings as either direct or indirect. Indirect or shared costs are allocated among program and support services by a method that best measures the relative degree of benefit.

#### **Basis of Presentation**

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Financial Accounting Standards Board.

#### NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

#### Net Asset Classes

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

*Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions* – Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The governing board has designated, from net assets without donor restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve and board-designated endowment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Gifts of long-lived assets and gifts of cash restricted for the acquisition of long-lived assets are recognized as restricted revenue when received and released from restrictions when the assets are placed in service. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

We report contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

#### Accounts Receivables

Accounts receivable primarily represent amounts due from federal and state governments as of June 30, 2019. Management believes that all receivables are fully collectible; therefore, no provisions for uncollectible accounts were recorded.

#### Property Taxes

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on September 1 and are payable in two installments on or before November 1 and February 1. Unsecured property taxes are not a lien against real property and are payable in one installment on or before August 31. The County bills and collects property taxes for all taxing agencies within the County and distributes these collections to the various agencies. The sponsor agency of the Academy is required by law to provide in-lieu property tax payments on a monthly basis, from August through July. The amount paid per month is based upon an allocation per student, with a specific percentage to be paid each month.

#### NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

#### **Compensated Absences**

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as a liability of the Academy. The entire compensated absences liability is reported on the statement of financial position. Employees of the Academy are paid for days or hours worked based upon Board approved schedules which include vacation. Sick leave is accumulated however, not paid out. Certificated unionized staff receive 10 days of sick leave at the beginning of the year per union contracts. Non-certified hourly staff eligible for sick days are accrued at 1 hour per 30 hours worked.

#### Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from the California Department of Education are recognized as revenue by the Academy based on the average daily attendance (ADA) of students. Revenue that is restricted is recorded as an increase in net assets without donor restriction, if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other restricted revenues are reported as increases in net assets with donor restriction.

#### **Contributions**

All contributions are considered to be available for general use unless specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted to specific use or future periods are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. Restricted contributions that are received and released in the same period are reported as contribution revenue without donor restrictions. Unconditional promises to give expected to be received in one year or less are recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional promises to give expected to be received in more than one year are recorded at fair value at the date of the promise. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.

#### Income Taxes

The Academy is a nonprofit entity exempt from the payment of income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) and California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 23701d. Accordingly, no provision has been made for income taxes. Management has determined that all income tax positions are more likely than not of being sustained upon potential audit or examination; therefore, no disclosures of uncertain income tax positions are required. The Academy is subject to income tax on net income that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to the exempt purposes. The School files and exempt School return and applicable unrelated business income tax return in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and with the California Franchise Tax Board.

#### Change in Accounting Principle

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) – Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment return. The Academy has implemented ASU 2016-14 and have adjusted the presentation in these financial statements accordingly.

#### NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

#### Subsequent Events

The Academy has evaluated subsequent events through November 22, 2019, the date these financial statements were available to be issued.

#### NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure are those without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date. Financial assets available for general expenditures are comprised of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable for a total amount of \$1,136,469.

As part of The Academy's liquidity management plan, it invests cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term investments, CDs, and money market funds, and has a \$70,000 line of credit for needs beyond available cash flow.

#### NOTE 3 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Academy maintains an interest bearing cash account with a financial institution. The account at this institution is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At times, cash in this account exceeds the maximum insured amount. The Academy has not experienced any losses regarding this account and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash and cash equivalents.

#### NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT

#### **California Department of Education**

The Academy received a revolving loan from the California Department of Education (CDE) in the amount of \$250,000. The loan requires annual principal payments of \$50,000. The loan has a term of five years and carries an interest rate of 0.24%. Annual payments of principal and interest are deducted from the Academy's apportionment.

The loan repayment by year is as follows:

<u>Year Ending June 30,</u>	
2020	 50,008
Total	\$ 50,008

#### NOTE 5 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT

#### Multi-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by agencies of the state of California. Certificated employees are members of the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS).

The risks of participating in this multi-employer defined benefit pension plan are different from single-employer plans because: (a) assets contributed to the multi-employer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating employers, (b) the required member, employer, and state contribution rates are set by the California Legislature and detailed in Teachers' Retirement Law, and (c) if the Academy chooses to stop participating in the multi-employer plan, it may be required to pay a withdrawal liability to the plan. The Academy has no plans to withdraw from this multi-employer plan.

#### State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS)

#### Plan Description

The Academy contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a costsharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by STRS.

The plan provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. According to the most recently available Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Actuarial Valuation Report for the year ended June 30, 2018, total plan net assets are \$225 billion, the total actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits is \$374 billion, contributions from all employers totaled \$4.9 billion, and the plan is 64% funded. The Academy did not contribute more than 5% of the total contributions to the plan.

Copies of the STRS annual financial reports may be obtained from STRS, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento, California 95826 and www.calstrs.com.

#### Funding Policy

Active plan members hired before January 1, 2013 are required to contribute 10.25% of their salary and those hired after are required to contribute 9.205% of their salary. The Academy is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the STRS Teachers' Retirement Board. Under the 2014 funding plan, employer contributions on compensation creditable to the program will increase every year for the next seven years, up to 19.10% in 2020–21. The required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2019 was 16.28% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established and may be amended by state statute.

#### NOTE 5 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT (CONTINUED)

#### State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS) (Continued)

The Academy's contributions to STRS for the past three years are as follows:

	F	Required	Percent
<u>Year Ending June 30,</u>	Co	ontribution	Contributed
2017	\$	217,630	100%
2018	\$	287,012	100%
2019	\$	428,671	100%

#### NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

The Academy has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement would not be material.

#### NOTE 7 FUNCTIONALIZED EXPENSES

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include salaries and wages, pension expense, other employee benefits, payroll taxes which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort. Also allocated are occupancy and insurance expenses which are allocated on a square footage basis. Office expenses were allocated based on estimated usage and professional services were allocated on an indirect cost basis.

#### NOTE 8 LINE OF CREDIT

The Academy has a revolving line of credit with Bank of America for \$70,000 that carries an interest rate of 11.75%. There was no balance as of June 30, 2019.

#### NOTE 9 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

As of June 30, 2019 the Academy had the following net assets with donor restrictions:

\$ 3,748
36,210
\$ 39,958

#### NOTE 10 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Academy is a party to a legal proceeding in the normal course of activities. The Academy did not identify any pending litigation that would have a material effect of the Academy's financial condition of results of activities.

#### SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

East Bay Innovation Academy (the Academy) was established in October 2013, and granted its charter through Oakland Unified School District (the District) and its charter school status from the California Department of Education. The charter may be revoked by the District for material violations of the charter, failure to meet or make progress towards student outcomes, failure to meet generally accepted standards of fiscal management, or violation of any provision of the law.

Charter School number authorized by the State: 1620

The Board of Directors and the Administrator as of the year ended June 30, 2019 were as follows:

#### **BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

Office

Memb	er
------	----

Shelley Benning Laurie Jacobson Jones

Kelly Garcia Ken Berrick Saamra Mekuria-Grillo Kimberly Smith Board Chair / Co-Founder Vice Chair and Treasurer / Co-Founder Secretary Board Member Board Member Board Member

**ADMINISTRATORS** 

Term Expires (3 year term)

August 2019 August 2019

August 2019 June 2019 October 2020 Emeritus

Devin Krugman

Head of School

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	Instructiona	Instructional Minutes		
	Requirement	Actual	Days	Status
Grade 6	54,000	56,910	184	In compliance
Grade 7	54,000	56,910	184	In compliance
Grade 8	54,000	56,910	184	In compliance
Grade 9	64,800	71,385	184	In compliance
Grade 10	64,800	71,385	184	In compliance
Grade 11	64,800	71,385	184	In compliance

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

	Second Peric	od Report	Annual Report	
	Classroom		Classroom	
	Based	Total	Based	Total
Grades 4-6	107.99	107.99	108.33	108.33
Grades 7-8	235.67	235.67	235.35	235.35
Grades 9-12	184.29	189.92	181.74	187.35
ADA Totals	527.95	533.58	525.42	531.03

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

June 30, 2019 Annual Financial Report Fund Balances (Net Assets)	\$	631,500
Adjustments and Reclassifications:		
Increase (Decrease) of Fund Balance (Net Assets):		
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities		(38,002)
Deferred Revenue		-
Net Adjustments and Reclassifications		(38,002)
June 30, 2019 Audited Financial Statement	•	
Fund Balances (Net Assets)	\$	593,498

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

#### PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

#### NOTE 1 SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the Academy and whether the Academy complied with the provisions of California Education Code.

#### NOTE 2 SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the Academy. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of state funds are made to charter schools. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels.

# NOTE 3 RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the net assets of the charter school as reported on the Annual Financial Report form to the audited financial statements.



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP CLAconnect.com

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH *GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS*

Board of Directors East Bay Innovation Academy Oakland, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America, the financial statements of East Bay Innovation Academy (the Academy), a nonprofit California public benefit corporation, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then ended, the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 22, 2019.

#### **Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Academy s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Academy's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Academy's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Board of Directors East Bay Innovation Academy

#### **Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Academy's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

#### Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Clifton Larson Allen LLP

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Glendora, California November 22, 2019



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP CLAconnect.com

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Board of Directors East Bay Innovation Academy Oakland, California

We have audited East Bay Innovation Academy's (the Academy) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 2018-2019 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel for the year ended June 30, 2019. The Academy's state compliance requirements are identified in the table below.

#### Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for the compliance with the state laws and regulations as identified below.

#### Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Academy's compliance based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to below. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America, and the 2018-2019 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the specific areas listed below has occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Academy's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on state compliance. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Academy's compliance.

#### **Compliance Requirements Tested**

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine the Academy's compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

	Procedures
Description	<u>Performed</u>
School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools:	
California Clean Energy Jobs Act	Not applicable
Before/After School Education and Safety Program	Not applicable
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds	Yes



#### Board of Directors East Bay Innovation Academy

	Procedures
Description	Performed
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts	Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan	Yes
Independent Study-Course Based	Not applicable
Charter Schools:	
Attendance	Yes
Mode of Instruction	Yes
Nonclassroom-based instructional/independent study	No <sup>1</sup>
Determination of funding for nonclassroom-based instruction	Not applicable
Annual instructional minutes – classroom based	Yes
Charter School Facility Grant Program	Yes

<sup>1</sup>Nonclassroom ADA was under the threshold that requires testing.

#### **Opinion on State Compliance**

In our opinion, the Academy complied with the laws and regulations of the state programs referred to above in all material respects for the year ended June 30, 2019.

#### **Purpose of this Report**

The purpose of this report on state compliance is solely to describe the results of testing based on the requirements of the 2018-2019 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Clifton Larson Allen LLP

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Glendora, California November 22, 2019

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

All audit findings must be identified as one or more of the following categories:

Five Digit Code	Finding Types
10000 20000	Attendance Inventory of Equipment
30000	Internal Control
40000	State Compliance
42000	Charter School Facilities Program
43000	Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental
	Instruction
50000	Federal Compliance
60000	Miscellaneous
61000	Classroom Teacher Salaries
62000	Local Control Accountability Plan
70000	Instructional Materials
71000	Teacher Misassignments
72000	School Accountability Report Card

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*.

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

There were no findings and questioned costs related to the basic financial statements or state awards for the prior year.



Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered investment advisor. | CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY MEASURE G1 PARCEL TAX PERFORMANCE AUDIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019



CLAconnect.com

WEALTH ADVISORY

OUTSOURCING

AUDIT, TAX, AND CONSULTING

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY TABLE OF CONTENTS JUNE 30, 2019

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT	. 1
BACKGROUND INFORMATION	. 3
OBJECTIVES	. 3
SCOPE OF THE AUDIT	. 3
PROCEDURES PERFORMED	. 3
FINDINGS AND RESPONSES	. 4
SCHEDULE OF INCOME STATEMENT ACCOUNTS	
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019	. 5



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP CLAconnect.com

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors East Bay Innovation Academy Oakland, California

We have conducted a performance audit of compliance as required by Oakland Unified School District (OUSD) of East Bay Innovation Academy for the year ended June 30, 2019.

We conducted our performance audit in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our conclusions based on our audit objectives. We believe that the evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives.

Our audit was limited to the objectives listed in this report which includes determining East Bay Innovation Academy's compliance with the performance requirements for the Teacher Retention and Middle School Improvement Act Fund (Measure G1) funds under the applicable provisions of Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIII A of the California Constitution. Management is responsible for East Bay Innovation Academy Measure G1 compliance with those requirements.

Solely to assist us in planning and performing our performance audit, we obtained an understanding of the internal control of East Bay Innovation Academy to determine if internal controls were adequate to help ensure compliance with the requirements of Measure G1, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIII A of the California Constitution. Accordingly, we do not express any assurance on internal control.

The results of our tests indicated that, in all significant respects, East Bay Innovation Academy expended Measure G1 funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, only for the specific purposes identified by OUSD and approved by the voters, in accordance with the requirements of Measure G1, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIII A of the California Constitution.



Board of Directors East Bay Innovation Academy

The purpose of this report is intended solely for the information and use of OUSD, the board of directors and management of East Bay Innovation Academy, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Clifton Larson Allen LLP

**CliftonLarsonAllen LLP** Glendora, California November 15, 2019

(2)

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY MEASURE G1 PARCEL TAX PERFORMANCE AUDIT JUNE 30, 2019

#### BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Teacher Retention and Middle School Improvement Act (Measure G1) was authorized by an election of the registered voters of the County of Alameda. Measure G1 was established to provide a districtwide educator salary increase designed to attract/retain teachers; provide enhanced middle school art, music, languages/other programs in addition to core educational programs; improve academic achievement; provide safe, positive schools, and prepare students for college/careers in Oakland Unified School District (OUSD) schools as well as charter schools in Oakland. The funds for this measure will come from OUSD levying a tax of \$120 per parcel, providing \$12.4 million annually, for 12 years, with exemptions for senior and low income residents.

#### OBJECTIVES

- Ensure proceeds and expenditures of the parcel tax are fully accounted in the books and records of the charter school.
- Ensure expenditures are in support of allowable uses as per the ballot language, separately with respect to middle school grants and salary for school site educators.
- Ensure that the charter school receiving middle school grant funding has an approved education improvement plan with the minimal requirements specified in the ballot.
- For the charter school receiving middle school grant funding, make a positive statement about the issue of supplanting versus supplementing.

#### SCOPE OF THE AUDIT

• The scope of our performance audit covered the fiscal period from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019. The sample of expenditures tested included object and resource codes associated with the Measure G1. The propriety of expenditures funded through other state, federal or local funding sources, other than the proceeds of Measure G1, were not included within the scope of our audit. Expenditures incurred subsequent to June 30, 2019, were not reviewed or included within the scope of our audit or in this report.

#### PROCEDURES PERFORMED

- 1. We obtained parcel tax expenditure detail reports prepared by the charter school and agreed amounts to the general ledger.
- 2. We selected a sample of payroll related expenditures, obtained and reviewed the necessary supporting documentation to satisfy ourselves that they were only to provide raises to "school site educators," as the term was used in the ballot text. We also tested payroll benefits for reasonableness.

(3)

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY MEASURE G1 PARCEL TAX PERFORMANCE AUDIT JUNE 30, 2019

- 3. We ensured the same percentage increase in salary was applied to all school site educators.
- 4. We reviewed the nature of the expenditures incurred by the charter school site for the middle school grant funding, and review source documents as appropriate, and ensured they were within the specific purpose of the ballot language.
- 5. We verified if the parcel tax middle school grant is funding supplemental activities by performing the following procedures. Ascertained if funds were used to provide services, which were legally required to be made available by virtue of being a school. Also, performed procedures to ascertain whether the parcel tax funded services that were previously provided with another funding source.
- 6. We obtain the approved education improvement plan for the charter school and perform the following procedures. Ensured the plan contains the minimal elements required by the ballot. Verified the actual parcel tax expenditures are consistent with the approved plan.
- 7. We examined supporting documentation to validate the amount of Measure G1 Parcel Tax revenues received.

FINDINGS AND RESPONSES None noted.

#### EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY MEASURE G1 PARCEL TAX PERFORMANCE AUDIT JUNE 30, 2019

#### SCHEDULE OF INCOME STATEMENT ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Measure G1 Revenues:	
Measure G1 Parcel Tax Revenues	\$ 92,966
Measure G1 Expenditures:	
Raises to School Site Educators	75,719
Middle School Grants	17,027
Total Expenditures	 92,746
Revenues less Expenditures - Measure G1	\$ 220

(5)



Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered investment advisor. | CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

#### **Cover Sheet**

#### Finance Update - YTD December 2019

Section:	IV. Finance and Development
Item:	B. Finance Update - YTD December 2019
Purpose:	Vote
Submitted by:	
Related Material:	EBIA 19-20 DEC Financials 2020.01.14 CF.pdf EBIA 19-20 DEC Financials 2020.01.14 YTD.pdf EBIA Financial Presentation to the board Jan 2020.pdf

## East Bay Innovation Academy Monthly Cash Forecast As of Dec close

=					٨٥	2019/20 tual & Projec	tod							
-	<b>Jul</b> Actual	Aug Actual	Sep Actual	Oct Actual	Nov Actual	Dec Actual	Jan Projected	Feb Projected	<b>Mar</b> Projected	Apr Projected	<b>May</b> Projected	<b>Jun</b> Projected	Forecast	AP/AR
Beginning Cash	181,425	291,986	151,539	60,599	58,195	151,238	74,524	10,514	(71,788)	5,384	97,762	124,651		
Revenue														
LCFF Entitlement	196	248,041	329,776	545,523	408,331	408,331	483,601	408,331	585,157	472,806	472,806	472,806	5,373,098	537,392
Federal Income	-	11,615	-	(4,271)	-	1.669	32,743	22,709	45,834	15,726	10,709	28,271	211,585	46,580
Other State Income	13.947	14.872	28.363	24,320	25,105	39,906	1,966	212.296	33,490	152,115	65,791	33,490	1.004.593	358,932
Local Revenues	1,822	21,264	3,982	12,792	2,351	1,657	27,175	30,144	15,573	5,181	22,695	15,573	165,250	5,040
Fundraising and Grants	3,291	3,349	36,899	35,391	13,799	8,642	22,545	17,977	12,977	12,977	12,977	12,977	223,800	30,000
Total Revenue	19,257	299,141	399,020	613,755	449,586	460,206	568,030	691,457	693,031	658,805	584,978	563,117	6,978,326	977,944
Expenses														
Compensation & Benefits	183,366	426,179	475,434	454,992	423,367	421,897	478,636	434,191	434,191	429,326	429,326	345,904	4,936,809	-
Books & Supplies	16,559	28,485	14,417	30,792	9,619	6,109	20,424	18,716	18,716	18,716	18,716	18,716	219,987	-
Services & Other Operating Expenses	100,546	144,661	154,324	125,869	135,732	150,341	163,594	145,302	187,403	134,501	134,498	175,433	1,828,122	75,919
Capital Outlay	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total Expenses	300,471	599,325	644,175	611,653	568,718	578,347	662,654	598,210	640,310	582,543	582,540	540,053	6,984,918	75,919
Operating Cash Inflow (Outflow)	(281,214)	(300,184)	(245,155)	2,101	(119,131)	(118,142)	(94,625)	93,247	52,720	76,262	2,438	23,064	(6,592)	902,025
Revenues - Prior Year Accruals	585,873	210.423	40.172	142,316	-	-	14.700	201	201	201	201	201		
Expenses - Prior Year Accruals	(7,519)		-	38,000	-	-		-	-	-				
Accounts Receivable - Current Year	(.,)	-			-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Accounts Payable - Current Year	(170,147)	(68,077)	26,692	(86,899)	2,451	31,389	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Summerholdback for Teachers	(89,466)	17.391	17,351	18,410	18.058	18,370	24,250	24.250	24,250	24,250	24,250	24,250		
Loans Payable (Current)			70.000	(70,000)	200,000	-	,	(200,000)	,	,50	,_00	,		
Loans Payable (Long Term)	-	-	-	(8,333)	(8,333)	(8,333)	(8,335)	()	-	(8,335)	-	-		
Capital Leases Payable	-	-	-		-		-	-	-	-	-	-		
Other Long Term Debt	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Capital Expenditure & Depreciation	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Other Balance Sheet Changes	73,034	-	-	(38,000)	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Ending Cash	291,986	151,539	60,599	58,195	151,238	74,524	10,514	(71,788)	5,384	97,762	124,651	172,167		

		Actual		В	udget vs. Actua				Buc				_
	Oct	Nov	Dec	Actual YTD	Budget YTD	Variance (YTD less Budget)	Approved Budget	Previous Month's Forecast	Current Forecast	(Previous vs. Current Forecast)	Budget Remaining	Forecast Remaining	% of Foreca Spent
SUMMARY													
Revenue													
LCFF Entitlement	545,523	408,331	408,331	1,940,198	2,031,020	(90,822)	5,407,042	5,335,943	5,373,098	37,154	3,466,844	3,432,900	36%
Federal Revenue	(4,271)	-	1,669	9,013	24,428	(15,415)	299,578	220,548	211,585	(8,963)	290,565	202,572	4%
Other State Revenues	24,320	25,105	39,906	146,513	272,341	(125,828)	896,083	1,021,704	1,004,593	(17,112)	749,570	858,080	15%
Local Revenues	12,792	2,351	1,657	43,869	54,399	(10,530)	169,001	165,250	165,250	-	125,132	121,381	27%
Fundraising and Grants	35,391	13,799	8,642	101,370	85,080	16,290	225,200	223,800	223,800	-	123,830	122,430	45%
Total Revenue	613,755	449,586	460,206	2,240,963	2,467,267	(226,304)	6,996,905	6,967,246	6,978,326	11,080	4,755,941	4,737,362	32%
Expenses													
Compensation and Benefits	454,992	423,367	421,897	2,385,236	2,407,131	21,895	4,932,448	4,918,398	4,936,809	(18,411)	2,547,212	2,551,574	48%
Books and Supplies	30,792	9,619	6,109	105,981	254,584	148,604	348,963	219,987	219,987	-	242,982	114,006	48%
Services and Other Operating Expenditures	125,869	135,732	150,341	811,472	804,783	(6,689)	1,706,437	1,827,829	1,828,122	(293)	894,965	1,016,650	44%
Depreciation	· ·	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Total Expenses	611,653	568,718	578,347	3,302,688	3,466,498	163,810	6,987,848	6,966,213	6,984,918	(18,705)	3,685,159	3,682,230	47%
Operating Income	2,101	(119,131)	(118,142)	(1,061,725)	(999,231)	(62,494)	9,057	1,033	(6,592)	(7,625)	1,070,782	1,055,132	
Fund Balance													
Beginning Balance (Unaudited)	(195,053)	(192,952)	(312,083)	631,500	631,500		564.499	631,500	631,500				
Audit Adjustment	(,,	( - , ,	(* ,***,	-	-		-	-	-				
Beginning Balance (Audited)				631,500	631,500		564,499	631,500	631,500				
Operating Income	2,101	(119,131)	(118,142)	(1,061,725)	(999,231)		9,057	1,033	(6,592)				
Ending Fund Balance	(192,952)	(312,083)	(430,225)	(430,225)	(367,731)		573,556	632,533	624,908				
Capital Outlay	_			_			-	-	-				

As of Dec close		Actual			Budget vs. Actu	al			Buc	dget			
						Variance			<b>a</b> <i>i</i>	(Previous vs.			
	Oct	Nov	Dec	Actual YTD	Budget YTD	(YTD less Budget)	Approved Budget	Previous Month's Forecast	Current Forecast	Current Forecast)	Budget Remaining	Forecast Remaining	% of Forecast Spent
Detail			200		Budgot HB								
Enrollment Breakdown	МЗ	M4	M5										
6	13		136				120		135		-		
7	12		120				118		120		-		
8	11		115				120		112		-		
9	7		78				80		79		-		
10	7		78				85		79		-		
11	6		61				67		61		-		
12	3	4 34	34				36		33		-		
Enrollment Summary							-	-	-		-		
4-6	13		136				120		135		-		
7-8	23		235				238 268		232 252		-		
9-12 Total Enrolled	25 61		251 622				626		252 619		-		
	01	9 019	022				020	619	019		-		
ADA %													
4-6	96.4	% 96.9%	96.9%				96%	6 96%	96%				
7-8	96.5	% 95.7%	95.9%				96%	6 96%	96%				
9-12	94.4	% 93.7%	94.7%				93%	6 93%	94%				
Average	95.6	% 95.2%	95.6%				95%	<b>6 95%</b>	95%				
ADA													
4-6	130						115.3		129.6				
7-8	222						228.		222.7				
9-12	231						249.2		236.9				
Total ADA Demographic Information	584		594.5 P-1				592.9	9 586.7	589.2				
Prior Year			P-1										
ADA (P-2)							534	534	533.60				
CALPADS Enrollment (for unduplicated % calc)							562		562				
# Unduplicated Count (CALPADS)							157		157				
# Free & Reduced Lunch (FRL) (CALPADS)							133		133				
# ELL (CALPADS)							33		33				
Current Year								-	-				
CALPADS Enrollment (for unduplicated % calc)							626	618	617				
# Unduplicated Count (CALPADS)	1						175		207				
# Free & Reduced Lunch (FRL) (CALPADS)	1						148		177				
# ELL (CALPADS)							37		39				
New Students	1						68	61	57				
	1												
	1												

As of	Dec close													
			Actual		Bi	udget vs. Actua				Buc				_
							Variance	Ammanuad	Desuisue Manthle	Current	(Previous vs.		Ferrert	0/
		Oct	Nov	Dec	Actual YTD	Budget YTD	(YTD less Budget)	Approved Budget	Previous Month's Forecast	Current Forecast	Current Forecast)	Budget Remaining	Forecast Remaining	% of Forecast Spent
REVE	NUE T	000	1101		/lotual 11D	Dudget ITD	Duugoty	Budgot	10100001	1 or occupit	1 broodbry	Daagot Homanning	rtonnannig	opont
	Entitlement													
8011	Charter Schools LCFF - State Aid	387,260	299,351	299,351	1,318,574	1,345,381	(26,807)	3,796,162	3,720,646	3,750,863	- 30,217	- 2,477,588	- 2,432,289	35%
8012	Education Protection Account Entitlement	26,680	-	299,551	26,680	26,680	(20,007)	118,584		117,840	504	91,904	2,432,209	23%
8012	State Aid - Prior Years	20,000			196	20,000	196	-	196	196	-	(196)	51,100	100%
8096	Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes	131,583	108,980	108,980	594,748	658,959	(64,211)	1,492,297	1,497,765	1,504,198	6,433	897,549	909,450	40%
	SUBTOTAL - LCFF Entitlement	545,523	408,331	408,331	1,940,198	2,031,020	(90,822)	5,407,042	5,335,943	5,373,098	37,154	3,466,844	3,432,900	36%
8100	- Federal Revenue	_												
8181	Special Education - Entitlement	-	-		-		-	70,250	70,250	70,250	-	70,250	70,250	0%
8182	Special Education - Entitlement		-		-	-		150,547		48,000	-	150,547	48,000	0%
8220	Child Nutrition Programs	(4,271)	-	1,669	9,013	12,620	(3,607)	31,550		36,837	_	22,537	27,824	24%
8291	Title I	-	-	-	-	7,527	(7,527)	30,107		36,429	(9,057)		36,429	0%
8292	Title II	-	-		-	1,781	(1,781)	7,124		10,069	94	7,124	10,069	0%
8294	Title IV	-	-	-	-	2,500	(2,500)	10,000	10,000	10,000	-	10,000	10,000	0%
	SUBTOTAL - Federal Income	(4,271)	-	1,669	9,013	24,428	(15,415)	299,578	220,548	211,585	(8,963)	290,565	202,572	4%
8300	Other State Revenues	-	-											
8319	Other State Apportionments - Prior Years	-	-		3,258	-	3,258	-	3,258	3,258	-	(3,258)	-	100%
8381	Special Education - Entitlement (State)	25,105	25,105	25,105	128,314	129,601	(1,287)	323,141		319,936	195	194,827	191,622	40%
8382	Special Education Reimbursement (State)	-	-	-	-	-	-	179,940		305,861	(26,400)	179,940	305,861	0%
8520	Child Nutrition - State	(785)	-	104	104	947	(843)	3,155	3,070	3,070	-	3,051	2,966	3%
8545	School Facilities Apportionments	-	-	-	-	127,098	(127,098)	254,196	228,776	237,250	8,473	254,196	237,250	0%
8550	Mandated Cost Reimbursements	-	-	14,697	14,697	14,695	2	14,695		14,881	106	(2)	184	99%
8560	State Lottery Revenue	-	-	· ·	-	-	· ·	120,956		120,197	514	120,956	120,197	0%
8590	All Other State Revenue	-	-	-	140	-	140	-	140	140	-	(140)	-	100%
	SUBTOTAL - Other State Income	24,320	25,105	39,906	146,513	272,341	(125,828)	896,083	1,021,704	1,004,593	(17,112)	749,570	858,080	15%
8600	Other Local Revenue													
8634	Food Service Sales	1,878	591	253	4,470	5,048	(578)	12,620	12,279	12,279	-	8,150	7,809	36%
8660	Interest	0	0	0	1	1	0	1	1	1	-	0	0.44	66%
8676	After School Program Revenue	8,847	-	110	29,831	33,750	(3,919)	45,000	45,000	45,000	-	15,169	15,169	66%
8690	Other Local Revenue	2,067	1,760	1,295	9,568	-	9,568	18,780		18,570	-	9,212	9,002.25	52%
8701	Oakland Measure N	-	-	-	-	-	-	53,600		50,400	-	53,600	50,400	0%
8703	Oakland Measure G1	-	-		-	15,600	(15,600)	39,000		39,000	-	39,000	39,000	0%
8999	Uncategorized Revenue	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
	SUBTOTAL - Local Revenues	12,792	2,351	1,657	43,869	54,399	(10,530)	169,001	165,250	165,250	-	125,132	121,381	27%
8800	Donations/Fundraising													
8801	Donations - Parents	31,967	12,688	8,247	93,329	50,080	43,249	125,200		123,800	-	31,871	30,471	75%
8802	Donations - Private	2,617	1,111	396	5,432	15,000	(9,568)	50,000		50,000	-	44,568	44,568	11%
8803	Fundraising	807	-	-	2,609	20,000	(17,391)	50,000	50,000	50,000	-	47,391	47,391	5%
	SUBTOTAL - Fundraising and Grants	35,391	13,799	8,642	101,370	85,080	16,290	225,200	223,800	223,800	-	123,830	122,430	45%
ΤΟΤΑΙ	L REVENUE	613,755	449,586	460,206	2,240,963	2,467,267	(226,304)	6,996,905	6,967,246	6,978,326	11,080	4,755,941	4,737,362	32%
	· .	,	.,		,,	,,	,,	.,	.,	.,	,	,,	,, <b></b>	

	=		Actual		В	udget vs. Actual				Bud	lget			
	-					•	Variance				(Previous vs.			-
							(YTD less	Approved	Previous Month's	Current	Current		Forecast	% of Forecast
	=	Oct	Nov	Dec	Actual YTD	Budget YTD	Budget)	Budget	Forecast	Forecast	Forecast)	Budget Remaining	Remaining	Spent
EXPEN	SES													
Compe	nsation & Benefits													
1000	Certificated Salaries	-	-	-										
1100	Teachers Salaries	189,612	186,263	190,611	959,191	973,456	14,265	2,036,439	2,065,534	2,065,534	-	1,077,248	1,106,343	46%
1103	Teacher - Substitute Pay	880	694	1,149	4,984	24,524	19,540	51,500	10,000	10,000	-	46,516	5,016	50%
1148	Teacher - Special Ed	18,206	17,406	17,406	83,935	108,605	24,670	264,761	179,237	179,237	-	180,826	95,302	47%
1150	Teacher - Summer School	-	-	-	-	10,000	10,000	10,000		10,000	-	10,000	10,000	0%
1160	Teacher - Custom 2	13,076	13,469	13,862	67,331	71,000	3,669	142,000		137,821	(5,961)	74,669	70,490	49%
1300	Certificated Supervisor & Administrator Salaries	42,814	22,726	19,302	171,560	118,500	(53,060)	237,000	175,938	267,493	(91,556)	65,440	95,933	64%
1311	Cert Admin - DESEL, Curr. Instr.	41,591	50,734	50,397	279,132	249,545	(29,587)	499,090	601,526	601,526	-	219,958	322,394	46%
	SUBTOTAL - Certificated Employees	306,179	291,292	292,726	1,566,133	1,555,630	(10,503)	3,240,790	3,174,095	3,271,611	(97,516)	1,674,658	1,705,478	48%
2000	Classified Salaries													
2104	Classified - SPED	15.676	12.655	11.605	63,403	80.701	17,298	177.542	132,720	132,720	-	114,140	69.317	48%
2300	Classified Supervisor & Administrator Salaries	16,497	8.807	8,333	83,129	84,608	1.479	169,216	- , -	135,516	91,556	86,087	52,388	61%
2400	Classified Clerical & Office Salaries	15,440	14,815	15,070	88,387	73,905	(14,482)	151,000		151,000	-	62,613	62,613	59%
2402	Classified Clerical & Office Salaries - Community Enga	6,833	6,833	6,833	41,000	38,368	(2,633)	76,735	82,000	82,000	-	35,735	41,000	50%
2905	Other Classified - After School	4,636	5,826	4,636	25,322	12,600	(12,722)	31,500	76,200	76,200	-	6,178	50,878	33%
2928	Other Classified - Food	1,615	987	1,449	6,486	6,489	3	16,223	16,223	16,223	-	9,737	9,737	40%
	SUBTOTAL - Classified Employees	60,697	49,923	47,926	307,726	296,670	(11,056)	622,216	685,214	593,659	91,556	314,490	285,932	52%
3000	Employee Benefits													
3100	STRS	47,086	45,778	46,556	251,024	255,455	4,431	542,205	530,458	559,446	(28,987)	291,181	308,421	45%
3300	OASDI-Medicare-Alternative	9,908	8,982	8,721	49,505	46,931	(2,574)	99,337	103,320	93,266	10,054	49,832	43.761	53%
3400	Health & Welfare Benefits	27,083	23,398	22,088	176,036	200,644	24,608	343,962		343,962	-	167,925	167,925	51%
3500	Unemployment Insurance	297	122	27	6,027	11,212	5,185	25,284	24,833	24,833	-	19,256	18,805	24%
3600	Workers Comp Insurance	3,044	3,044	3,044	24,353	33,318	8,965	46,356	38,593	38,653	(60)	22,003	14,300	63%
3900	Other Employee Benefits	698	829	809	4,430	7,270	2,840	12,298	17,923	11,381	6,542	7,868	6,950	39%
	SUBTOTAL - Employee Benefits	88,116	82,152	81,244	511,376	554,831	43,455	1,069,442	1,059,089	1,071,539	(12,451)	558,065	560,163	48%
							1							

	=		Actual		В	udget vs. Actua				Buc	lget			
	—						Variance				(Previous vs.			-
							(YTD less	Approved	Previous Month's	Current	Current		Forecast	% of Forecast
	_	Oct	Nov	Dec	Actual YTD	Budget YTD	Budget)	Budget	Forecast	Forecast	Forecast)	Budget Remaining	Remaining	Spent
4000	Books & Supplies		-	-										
4100	Approved Textbooks & Core Curricula Materials	1,292	-	-	5,019	13,563	8,544	15,650	12,475	12,475	-	10,631	7,456	40%
4200	Books & Other Reference Materials	140	-	-	185	3,040	2,855	3,040	3,040	3,040	-	2,855	2,855	6%
4300	Materials & Supplies	1,023	-	1,543	6,842	19,156	12,313	19,156	16,941	16,941	-	12,313	10,099	40%
4320	Educational Software	14,039	-	-	42,873	43,333	460	50,000	49,441	49,441	-	7,127	6,568	87%
4330	Office Supplies	2,605	1,202	579	16,734	14,398	(2,336)	28,796	36,474	36,474	-	12,062	19,740	46%
4335	PE Supplies	-	-	46	46	-	(46)	-	-	-	-	(46)	(46)	
4352	Quest (After School)	767	760	-	1,742	5,100	3,358	10,200	5,200	5,200	-	8,458	3,458	33%
4400	Noncapitalized Equipment	-	-	-	1,140	5,100	3,960	10,200	5,200	5,200	-	9,060	4,060	22%
4410	Classroom Furniture, Equipment & Supplies	43	-	-	1,848	17,507	15,659	20,200	10,200	10,200	-	18,352	8,352	18%
4420	Computers (individual items less than \$5k)	-	-	-	26	94,336	94,310	107,200	7,200	7,200	-	107,174	7,174	0%
4423	Staff Computers	821	-	-	1,404	7,181	5,777	8,160	3,160	3,160	-	6,756	1,756	44%
4430	Non Classroom Related Furniture, Equipment & Suppl	735	-	-	735	5,610	4,875	11,220	6,220	6,220	-	10,485	5,485	12%
4710	Student Food Services	8,741	7,657	3,899	25,171	25,240	69	63,101	61,395	61,395	-	37,930	36,224	41%
4720	Other Food	588	-	41	2,216	1,020	(1,196)	2,040	3,040	3,040	-	(176)	825	73%
	SUBTOTAL - Books and Supplies	30,792	9,619	6,109	105,981	254,584	148,604	348,963	219,987	219,987	-	242,982	114,006	48%

			Actual		В	udget vs. Actual				Bue	lget			_
							Variance				(Previous vs.			
		Oct	Nov	Dec	Actual YTD	Budget YTD	(YTD less Budget)	Approved Budget	Previous Month's Forecast	Current Forecast	Current Forecast)	Budget Remaining	Forecast Remaining	% of Forecast Spent
5000	Services & Other Operating Expenses	001	NOV	Dec	Actual TTD	Dudget ITD	Duugoty	Dudget	10100001	10100001	10100005()	Dudget Hernaming	rternaming	opoint
5220	Travel and Lodging	3,029	-	704	3,936	1,020	(2,916)	2,550	6,550	6,550	-	(1,386)	2,614	60%
5300	Dues & Memberships	305	4,482	282	12,094	4,906	(7,188)	12,266	12,266	12,266	-	172	172	
5450	Insurance - Other	3,807	3,807	3,807	30,456	32,845	2,389	45,698	46,425	46,425	-	15,242	15.969	
5515	Janitorial, Gardening Services & Supplies	6,000	379	6,632	48.976	32,314	(16,663)	80,784	90.000	90,000	-	31,808	41.024	
5535	Utilities - All Utilities	3,924	6,896	1,558	25,570	37,795	12,225	75,590	75,590	75,590	-	50,020	50,020	
5610	Rent	30,495	26,745	26,745	195,935	169,464	(26,471)	338,928	338,928	338,928	-	142,993	142,993	
5611	Prop 39 Related Costs	-	-		31,679	63,359	31,679	126,717	126,717	126,717	-	95,038	95,038	
5615	Repairs and Maintenance - Building	971	50	797	4,624	4,080	(544)	10,200	6,200	6,200	-	5,576	1,576	
5616	Repairs and Maintenance - Computers	-	-	-	-	-	-	10.200	10,200	10,200	-	10,200	10,200	
5803	Accounting Fees	-	6.500	2,500	9.000	-	(9,000)	12,904	12,904	12,904	-	3,904	3.904	
5806	Assemblies	3.433	75	-	3.508	816	(2,692)	2.040	7,040	7,040	-	(1,468)	3,532	50%
5809	Banking Fees	1,866	(1,451)	43	508	765	257	1,530	5,000	5,000	-	1,022	4,492	
5810	Intersession	-	16,109	7.299	24,661	34,430	9,769	68,860	38,090	38,090	-	44,199	13,429	
5812	Business Services	5.265	5.475	5,550	32,903	33,660	758	67.320	67.320	67,320	-	34,418	34,418	
5815	Consultants - Instructional	-	-	-	-	15,300	15,300	15,300	15,300	15,300	-	15,300	15,300	0%
5820	Consultants - Non Instructional - Custom 1	-	-	1.760	2,010	11,506	9,496	28,764	28,764	28,764	-	26,754	26,754	7%
5822	Consultants - Non Instructional - Custom 3	-	-	-	-	6.732	6.732	16.830	16.830	16.830	-	16.830	16.830	0%
5824	District Oversight Fees	-	-		-	27,035	27,035	54,070	53,359	53,731	(372	) 54,070	53,731	0%
5836	Fingerprinting	-	-	67	1.626	3.078	1,452	3.551	3,561	3,561	-	1.925	1.935	
5839	Fundraising Expenses	362	10	10	1,458	6,120	4,662	15,300	35,300	35,300	-	13,842	33,842	
5843	Interest - Loans Less than 1 Year	59	8	6	73	-	(73)	-	83	83	-	(73)	10	
5845	Legal Fees	7.231	7.193	973	27.585	33,600	6,015	84.000	74,000	74,000	-	56,415	46.415	
5851	Marketing and Student Recruiting	118	-		543	722	179	1.804	1,618	1,512	106		969	
5857	Payroll Fees	386	380	378	2,380	2,497	117	4,994	4,994	4,994	-	2,614	2.614	
5860	Printing and Reproduction	-	-	-	403	183	(220)	457	457	457	-	54	54	
5863	Professional Development	125	79		9,214	10,200	986	20,400	20,400	20,400	-	11,186	11,186	
5866	SPED MH Day/NPS Services	31.988	19.806	71.005	196,966	150.000	(46,966)	300.000	406.253	406,253	-	103,034	209.287	48%
5869	Special Education Contract Instructors	15,174	12,005	7,127	42,713	50,000	7,287	125,000	125,000	125,000	-	82,287	82,287	
5872	Special Education Encroachment	-	-	-	-	-	-	15,736	15,736	15,736	-	15,736	15,736	
5875	Staff Recruiting	325	143	143	1.197	3,056	1.859	7,640	7.640	7,640	-	6,443	6,443	
5878	Student Assessment	1,182	-	-	9,182	6,000	(3,182)	15,000	15,000	15,000	-	5,818	5,818	
5880	Student Health Services	-	440		440	165	(275)	412	412	440	(28		-	100%
5881	Student Information System	_	960		13,210	17.500	4,290	35.000	23,000	23,000	(20	21.790	9.790	
5884	Substitutes	7,517	4,891	7,000	32,091	12,000	(20,091)	30,000	60,000	60,000	-	(2,091)	27,909	
5887	Technology Services	-	18,270	4,405	32,887	18,000	(14,887)	45,000	45,000	45,000	-	12,113	12,113	
5899	Miscellaneous Operating Expenses	-	397	20	555	-	(555)	-	300	300	-	(555)	(255)	
5900	Communications	1.751	2,084	1,411	12,291	15,000	2,709	30,000	30,000	30,000	-	17,709	17,709	
5915	Postage and Delivery	557	2,004	120	797	637	(160)	1,592	1,592	1,592	-	796	796	
3010	SUBTOTAL - Services & Other Operating Exp.	125.869	135.732	150.341	811.472	804.783	(6.689)	1.706.437	1,827,829	1,828,122	(293		1.016.650	44%
	SUBTOTAL - Services & Other Operating Exp.	123,009	130,132	150,341	011,472	004,/03	(0,009)	1,700,437	1,021,029	1,020,122	(293	) 034,905	1,010,050	44%

=		Actual		B	udget vs. Actua				Bu	dget			_
						Variance			<u> </u>	(Previous vs.			
	Oct	Nov	Dec	Actual YTD	Budget YTD	(YTD less Budget)	Approved Budget	Previous Month's Forecast	Current Forecast	Current Forecast)	Budget Remaining	Forecast Remaining	% of Forecast Spent
6000 Capital Outlay	001	NOV	Dec	Actual TTD	Budget TTD	Dudgetj	Dudget	TOICCASE	TOTECASE	T Orecast)	Dudget Kernalning	Remaining	opent
	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
6200 Buildings & Improvement of Buildings	-	-		-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	
6300 School Libraries	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
6400 Equipment	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
6410 Computers (capitalizable items)	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
6420 Furniture (capitalizable items)	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
6430 Other Equipment (capitalizable items)	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
6500 Equipment Replacement	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
SUBTOTAL - Capital Outlay	-	-		-	-		-	-		· ·	-	-	
TOTAL EXPENSES	611,653	568,718	578,347	3,302,688	3,466,498	163,810	6,987,848	6,966,213	6,984,918	(18,705	) 3,685,159	3,682,230	47%
6900 Total Depreciation (includes Prior Years)	-	-		-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	
TOTAL EXPENSES including Depreciation	611,653	568,718	578,347	3,302,688	3,466,498	163,810	6,987,848	6,966,213	6,984,918	(18,705	) 3,685,159	3,682,230	47%

# Financial Update January 2020



# Agenda

- Nov-Dec/Q2 Actuals
- Current Forecast
  - P-1 ADA
  - Calpads
- 2020-21 CA state budget outlook
- Cash Update



# Through Q2, 32% of revenues received, 47% of expenses spent

- Revenue notes:
  - Strong start to community fundraising
  - Timing delays in federal and state categorical funding

#### • Expense notes:

- Leadership transition-related expenses
- Special education services for new students



# Current Forecast: Calpads and P1 update

#### • P1 ADA (including NPS) at 594.42

- Expected attrition, late enrolls
- P2 ADA revised upwards to 589.2
- Calpads Fall 1
  - Unduplicated Pupil Count: 207
  - Unduplicated Pupil Percentage: 34%
- Net fiscal impact: +\$37K



# Forecast: aiming for balanced budget in 2019-20

- Fundraising remains critical
- Title and ERMHS funding less than anticipated
- Monitoring expenses closely

	Approved Budget	Previous Month's Forecast	Current Forecast	(Previous vs. Current Forecast)
SUMMARY				
Revenue				
LCFF Entitlement	5,407,042	5,335,943	5,373,098	37,154
Federal Revenue	299,578	220,548	211,585	(8,963)
Other State Revenues	896,083	1,021,704	1,004,593	(17,112)
Local Revenues	169,001	165,250	165,250	-
Fundraising and Grants	225,200	223,800	223,800	-
Total Revenue	6,996,905	6,967,246	6,978,326	11,080
Expenses				
Compensation and Benefits	4,932,448	4,918,398	4,936,809	(18,411)
Books and Supplies	348,963	219,987	219,987	-
Services and Other Operating Expenditures	1,706,437	1,827,829	1,828,122	(293)
Depreciation	-	-	-	-
Total Expenses	6,987,848	6,966,213	6,984,918	(18,705)
Operating Income	9,057	1,033	(6,592)	(7,625)



EAST BAY INNOVATION ACADEMY

# 2020-21 California State Budget Outlook

- 2.29% COLA for LCFF
- Funds allocated for teacher workforce initiatives
- Funds allocated for special education
- Computer Science
- Facilities bond



# Cash tight through the year

- LOC (\$70K) engaged
- Receivable sale (\$200K) completed in Nov., another one likely needed in January.
- Revenue delays experienced
  - State/federal
  - Special education
  - Local rev (reimbursement based)
- Ending cash in Dec: \$75K

